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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITEHMES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of Talent Property Group
Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the audited
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the

“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The consolidated revenue and gross profit for 2016 amounted
to approximately RMB506.8 million (2015: RMB366.0 million)
and RMB91.0 million (2015: RM77.1 million),
Increased revenue and gross profit was primarily contributed

respectively.

by the continual sales & delivery of high-rise residential units of
our flagship project, Xintian Banshan. Impairment loss provided
thereto in previous years was reversed partly in view of its latest
sales record and market condition in 2016. Commercial units
of Tianlun Garden was contracted for sales in August 2016
and a revaluation deficit had been recorded. Non-cash finance
costs of the convertible notes reduced significantly after its
full conversion in June 2016. Whereas accounting treatment
of project acquisition cost for real estate businesses in 2010
(“Previous Acquisition”) continued bringing impacts on sharing
results of our associate. For these reasons, a loss attributable to
the owners of the Company of RMB73.7 million was recorded
(2015: RMB115.1 million).
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OPERATING REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Global geo-politics had been volatile in 2016, with Black
Swan incidents occurring one after another. The process of
globalization faced severe challenges. Regional geo-politics
remained turbulent, and the conflicts between major countries
enhanced. Growth of global economy slowed down in 2016
as compared with 2015. The pattern of growth in developed
economies became split. The growth of economy in US was
relatively faster, whilst that in Japan and Europe were still weak.
In the face of these external circumstances, China insisted on
the pace of growth in a steady and yet growing manner, which
implemented a proactive fiscal policy and a prudent monetary
policy, thereby maintaining policy continuity and stability. GDP
grew by 6.7% in China, which played an important role in
stabilizing the expectations on economic growth currently by the
world. Such relaxed and favorable macro-economic environment
effectively promoted the real estate market of China to rise both
in term of volume and price. We also saw the Guangzhou region
to catch up its lagging position in 2016. However, the booming
of the real estate market raised the concerns of the regulatory
authorities. The model of “One City One Policy”, which was
featured by differentiated control policies were published, so as
to mitigate the situation at different localities. As the momentum
over control tightened, it is expected to the real estate markets
in the first and second-tier cities will resume their rational
development.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITEHMES

Xintian Banshan, the Group’s flagship project, is located in
Nanhu Scenery Zone of Baiyun District in Guangzhou. The
project was built along the mountain and facing the lake.
Accentuating the grandeur of the project is a height difference of
118 meters along the valley of the mountain. Within 20-minute
driving distance from Tianhe district of Guangzhou, the project
is set in a tranquil environment in proximity to prosperous areas.
Through ingenious combinations, the mountains and nature
formed a one-by-one special space in the neighbourhood. The
villas at Area B deployed a centripetal layout, which formed a
group closely attached to the centre. The villas at Area C spread
along the outskirt of the mountain in circular form, and became
a friendly group well knitted along the boundary. The high rise
residential apartments at Area D formed a semi-crescent shape
along the mountain and became the backdrop of this property
project. The villas at Area E freely scattered around the slope
and melted between the mountains. Although this project is not
the type of housing that has a strong demand in the market, by
capitalizing on the standard of qualities and image insisted by the
Group, this project was still successful in seizing opportunities
in the market. Through the sales team and the collective efforts
of employees, satisfactory results on the sales were obtained.
The contracted sales amount and area recorded during the year
were approximately RMB803 million (2015: RMB299 million) and
25,600 square meters (2015: 9,100 square meters). Most of the
high-rise residential apartments in Area D and villas in Area C
were sold. Looking into 2017, the Group strictly monitored the
progresses of Area B and Area E with the construction of villas,
landscape works and decoration of show flats, which will be
launched to the market later this year. In addition, we will also
explore the demand of customers, and promote the sales of
penthouse special units at Area D, left-over units at other area
and parking spaces of this project, so as to collect cash upon
sales and deliveries.
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The redevelopment project, which was located at Liwan District,
Guangzhou and acquired by the Group in late 2013, into a
10-storey building integrated with commercial and office uses -
Talent Shoes Trading Center was completed in early 2015 and
has been launched for rent. However, due to China’s economic
slowdown in recent years, tough competition from e-commerce
business and a depressed shoe sector, the existing tenants,
being small and medium enterprises, are facing difficulties in their
business operation. In light of such situation, the Group offered
rental discounts for a short and medium term in a bid to retain
more tenants and help them tide over the troubles. Looking
forward to 2017, exports from China showed recovery during
recent months. The traditional wholesale and retail operations
for the footwear industry will also be benefitted. The Group
will also strengthen its efforts in leasing through participation
in exhibitions, promotion and adjust its tenant mix, so as to
enhance the rent potential from Talent Shoes Trading Center in
future.

In order to improve the use of funds and return on assets, the
Group had always intended to dispose the commercial units of
Tianlun Garden in its investment properties portfolio. In August
2016, a sales and purchase agreement was signed with an
independent third party for its sale at RMB210 million. As of
the date of this report, the Group had received the first two
tranche of installments from the buyer. It is now in the process
of completing the domestic administrative and tax formalities
as well as considering arrangements with the buyer for the
completion of the payment of the outstanding installments and
the transfer of the property rights.

Linhe Village redevelopment project is located in the central
business district of Tianhe District in Guangzhou, which is
adjacent to Guangzhou East Railway Station. The Group
cooperates with Sun Hung Kai Properties in this project.
The project comprises a grade A commercial office building
namely “Guangzhou Commerce Centre”. A gross floor area of
approximately 32,500 square meters was sold at approximately
RMB1,119 million during the year. As to the luxurious high rise
apartment of the project, “Forest Hill”, block 1 to 4 were almost
sold out and delivered. The high rise residential apartments at
Block 5 to 7 were also close to their completion. Block 5 to 6
were already launched for pre-sale and the results had been
satisfactory.
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Benefitted from the rise in domestic consumption in China and
the sustainable growth in the economy, in particular e-commerce
industry, the logistics market in China continued to expand
during recent years. Therefore, the increase in demand for more
advanced logistics services drove the additions of logistics
facilities in China. With the expected expansion of disposable
income and urbanization, coupled with the ongoing development
of the e-commerce market and third-party logistics suppliers
market continues, the logistics facilities market in China shall
have enormous growth potential under favourable policies from
the government. In view of the above, the Group partnered with
an independent third party, Guangzhou Tongzhou Investment
Company Limited (“Guangzhou Tongzhou”) for the formation of
a project company namely Guangzhou Guoyou Logistics Co.,
Ltd. (“Guangzhou Guoyou”). Guangzhou Tongzhou is under
the same control by the founder of Guangdong Linan Logistics
Group. Guangdong Linan Logistics Group (official website: www.
linangroup.cn) is an integrated conglomerate. Its core enterprise,
Guangdong Linan Logistics Development Co., Ltd., is a leading
enterprise primarily engaged in the investment, operation,
development and management of logistics informatization, and
is also strongly appraised by provincial and municipal people’s
government in China. In addition, Guangdong Linan Logistics
Group operates a number of websites and mobile applications
that provide integrated logistics information and electronic
payment mobile services. Guangzhou Guoyou had successfully
bid the land use right for a piece of land in Yangzhou City,
Jiangsu Province in January 2017 through public tender. The
location of the land lot is advantageous, which is conducive
to the logistics layout, whilst the business environment at the
peripheral area is sound for trading industry. Through the market
research, Guangzhou Gouyou decided to develop this project
into agricultural byproducts market with a principal operation
in “wholesale of vegetables and dry goods seasoning”. The
project will be developed as a modern vegetables demonstration
site primarily attracting farms in the central region of Jiangsu
Province covering high end vegetables sales in a modern
manner. There will be different function departments such as
demonstration, trading, logistics and distribution, and integrated
business, covering the demand of Yangtze River Delta region
from Yangzhou. We expect the project to be completed after one
year, with a gross floor area of about 100,000 square meters for
sale. There will also be about 20,000 square meters for leasing
as a logistics service center, retail area and information hall.
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The commencement of logistics-related project development
will increase the land reserve and geographical coverage of the
Group whilst diversifying the risk of tightening housing policies to
be imposed by the Government. Together with the full conversion
of convertible notes issued in respect of the Previous Acquisition
into ordinary shares of the Company during 2016, the capital
base of the Group was expanded substantially. | believe that this
will outline a clearer future to the Group as a whole.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of our board of directors, | would like to take this
opportunity to thank our Shareholders, customers, banks
and business partners for their trust and support and all our
employees for their hard work and dedication. The Company and
our board of directors will continue to enhance the integrated
competitiveness of the Group and look for opportunities
prudently, so as to ensure a steady growth in results of the
Group and create value for our Shareholders and the community.

Zhang Gao Bin
Chairman and Executive Director
PRC Hong Kong

30 March 2017
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
E v NEupAE

OVERVIEW

The principal activity of Talent Property Group Limited (the
“Company”) is investment holding. On 10 December 2010, the
Company completed the acquisition of Talent Central Limited
which, through its subsidiaries, holds interests in various real
estate projects in the PRC (the “Previous Acquisition”) from
Talent Trend Holdings Limited (“Talent Trend”). In previous years,
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”)
had undergone certain reorganisation of its businesses and
projects with an objective to streamline its operations into
a more property focused business in first-tier cities in the
PRC. The Group currently engages in the business of (i) real
estate development, (i) property investment and (iii) property
management in Guangzhou, the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, approvals were
obtained from relevant authorities and independent shareholders
of the Company for the full conversion of the outstanding
convertible notes, which was issued for the Previous Acquisition,
with value of HK$2,139.85 million into ordinary shares of the
Company. After its full conversion on 3 June 2016, the capital
base of the Company was enlarged significantly.

REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded
a revenue and gross profit of RMB506.8 million and RMB91.0
million, respectively, as compared to revenue of RMB366.0
million and gross profit of RMB77.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2015.

Revenue for the year increased significantly. It was primarily
the result of continual delivery of the newly completed luxury
high-rise residential units of Xintian Banshan in Guangzhou.
During year 2016, a revenue of RMB461.2 million (2015:
RMB323.1 million) was recorded from the delivery of Xintian
Banshan with gross floor area of approximately 15,400 sgm
(2015: 11,200 sgm). Whereas, revenue from selling of other
properties held for sale was RMB16.6 million (2015: RMB11.3
million).
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Redevelopment of the 10-storey complex building, namely Talent
Shoes Trading Center, for commercial and office use located at
Zhan Xi Shoe Market was completed and opened in March 2015.
During 2016, rental income and properties management fee
income totaling RMB19.7 million (2015: RMB25.8 million) were
recorded therefrom.

Rental income and properties management fee generated from
commercial units of Tianlun Garden and other properties of
the Group totaling RMB9.3 million (2015: RMB5.8 million) was
recorded.

After taking into account the acquisition costs from Previous
Acquisition, subsequent development cost as well as provision
for impairment loss in previous years, a gross profit and overall
gross profit margin of RMB91.0 million and 18.0% (2015: a gross
profit of RMB77.1 million and gross profit margin of 21.1%),
respectively, were recorded. Majority revenue were derived from
delivery of high-rise residential units, lower gross profit margin
was due to its increased costs on internal decoration, facilities
and share of common area development costs.

DISTRIBUTION COSTS

The Group increased its effort on marketing Xintian Banshan
in Guangzhou. As a result, distribution cost increased from
RMB12.5 million in 2015 to RMB18.9 million in 2016.

ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENSES

Overall projects related compensation, commission and legal
cost reduced substantially during the year. Alongside with
reduced sundry tax levies and exchange loss, administrative and
other operating expenses lowered to RMB48.5 million (2015:
RMB66.5 million).
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
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SHARE OF (LOSS)/PROFIT OF ASSOCIATE

The Linhe Cun Rebuilding project is an old village redevelopment
project located in the CBD of Tianhe District in Guangzhou and
adjacent to the Guangzhou East Railway station. The project
involves compensation and relocation of original occupiers of the
village, demolition of existing village buildings, construction of
new buildings for the resettlement of existing occupiers and for
sales. The project is carried out by an associate which is owned
as to 30% and 70% by the Group and Sun Hung Kai Properties
Group, respectively.

Development the first two phases of the high-end residential
buildings (namely Forest Hills) was completed. Substantial units
sold were delivered in previous years. In addition to sales &
delivery of remaining units of Forest Hills, the development of
39-storey commercial tower (namely Guangzhou Commerce
Centre) was completed and sold during the year. As a result of
lower gross profit margin, higher selling expenses and higher
effective income tax rate, post-tax profit reduced substantially.
After taking into account the acquisition costs from Previous
Acquisition, the Group recorded a share of loss of RMB67.4
million (2015: profit of RMB37.0 million).

FAIR VALUE CHANGES AND IMPAIRMENT
LOSS ON PROPERTIES PORTFOLIO

Regarding our investment properties, a revaluation surplus
amounting RMB9.8 million was recorded for Talent Shoes Trading
Center after revaluation. The Group retained its tenants effectively
by launching various incentive programs. Whereas a revaluation
deficit of RMB37.6 million was made for other investment
properties. This was primarily attributable to the difference
between the disposal price of RMB210 million and the book
value of commercial units of Tianlun Garden of RMB245.7 million
as at 31 December 2015. Details of its disposal were stated in
the announcement dated 1 August 2016. As at year ended 31
December 2016, two instalments were received. As at the date
of this report, the Group was working with the purchaser in
finishing local administrative and tax procedures for the payment
of outstanding instalments and transfer of properties title.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Regarding our residential project, Xintian Banshan, garden and
landscape engineering, refined decoration and structural work of
the grand-sized luxurious villas and show flats along the valley
In 2016, the sentiment of the
residential property market in Guangzhou improved prominently.

of the mountains are ongoing.

After considering market conditions, pace of contract sales,
lifted selling prices, further development costs to be incurred as
well as the latest revaluation, a reversal of previously provided
impairment loss of RMB80.3 million (2015:
RMB116.8 million) was recorded for our completed properties for

impairment loss of
sales and properties under development.

The above revaluation was conducted by an independent
qualified professional valuer.

FINANCE COSTS

Imputed finance cost arising from convertible notes before
immediate before its full conversion was RMB45.9 million (2015:
RMB115.0 million).

Finance costs arising from bank and other borrowings (before
capitalisation) increased to RMB38.6 million (2015: RMB28.2
million) because the average outstanding balances of bank
borrowings and interest rate were lower in 2015 than 2016.

INCOME TAX (CHARGE) CREDIT

Increased recognition of revenue of Xintian Banshan led to higher
corporate income tax and land appreciation tax. Besides, less
reversal of deferred tax was recorded because of significant
reduction of fair value deficits and reversal of provision for
impairment loss for our properties portfolio. As such, income tax
charge of RMB18.7 million was recorded in 2016 instead of a tax
credit of RMB76.3 million in 2015.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

As a result of the above, the Group recorded a loss attributable
to owners of the Company of RMB73.7 million in 2016 (2015:
loss of RMB115.1 million).
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
E v NEupAE

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The following content lists out the key risks and uncertainties
facing the Group. It is a non-exhaustive list and there may be
other risks and uncertainties further to the key risk areas outlined
below.

Market Risk

The Group’s assets are predominantly in the form of land use
rights, land under development, properties under development,
properties held for sale and investment properties. In the event
of a severe downturn in the property market in Guangzhou and
Mainland China, these assets may not be readily realised.

Operational Risk

The Group’s operation is subject to a number of risk factors
distinctive to property development and property related
businesses. Default on the part of its buyers, tenants, sub-
tenants, contractors and strategic business partners, and
inadequacies or failures of internal processes, people and
systems or other external factors may have various levels
of negative impact on the results of the Group’s operations.
Additionally, accidents may happen despite systems and policies
set up for their prevention, which may lead to the Group’s
financial loss, litigation, or damage in reputation.

Risk pertaining to the property leasing and sub-
leasing

The rental rates and the occupancy rates will depend on various
factors, including but not limited to, prevailing supply and
demand conditions, economic conditions as well as the quality
of the properties. There is no assurance that the Group is able
to look for new tenants and/or sub-tenants within a short period
of time or procure new leases or renew existing leases and/or
sub-leases at the prevailing market rates.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

The Group has entered into an agreement with an independent
third party for the formation of a subsidiary namely Guangzhou
Guoyou Logistics Co., Ltd.
December 2016 and its business license had been granted by

(“Guangzhou Guoyou”) on 28

relevant government authorities on 4 January 2017. The Group
is committed to make a capital contribution of approximately
RMB24.93 million which represents 51% equity interest of
Guangzhou Guoyou. Guangzhou Guoyou has successfully bid
for the land use rights to a land parcel in Yangzhou, the PRC, for
a consideration of RMB190.81 million with a site area of 81,186
sgm on 11 January 2017. Details of these events were stated in
the announcements dated 28 December 2016 and 11 January
2017.

PROSPECT

Looking forward 2017, it is expected that the Central
Government will maintain and put forward different regulatory
measures across country based on the principle as stated in
the meeting of the Central Economic Work Conference that “the
housing properties are for accommodation but not for speculative
trading” with a view to developing a long-term sustainable
development of property markets. As such, it is expected that
the property market in tier-1 cities would cool down. Our luxury
and grand sized residential project Xiantian Banshan is well
positioned for home switching, art and life tasting rather than
for speculative trading. In addition, we have locked substantial
contracted sales for revenue recognition. These could loosen
Full

conversion of convertible notes and diversification into logistics

possible impact arising from tightening environment.

properties development in 2016 marked a milestone for better
future of the Group.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
E v NEupAE

PORTFOLIO OF PROPERTIES YIEHE
As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s properties and projectson R-ZZE— X F+-_A=+—H KEBEHNIRA
hand are shown in the table below: MERIBEEINTX :
Investment properties rREYHE
Gross floor Percentage

Lease term area (sq.m.) interest
Project and address Purpose of land HEEERE EREIL
1HE Rt A& T FAEHIRR (7 3K) %
A 10-storey commercial building built over a Commercial Medium 22,5626* 100%
basement of 3 levels, mixed commercial and [EHES R HA

office building with car parking spaces. No. 18
Zhan Xi Road, Liwan District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC
(“Talent Shoes Trading Center”)
BB RE BN 7 &R IA 71857
—IEEN=EE FRIEEERPAGEEERE
BEMAZI0ESEHEET

(RREEXHTL)

Commercial units of Shangyu Garden, Commercial Medium 2,198 100%
No. 45 Tianhe Road, Tianhe District, [EES A

Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province,

the PRC (“Shangyu Garden”)

FP B BR A B M TR RO [ KO B 4555

FEIEE ([ HEIEE ) AR El

Commercial units of Tianlun Garden, Commercial Medium 11,777% 100%
No. 17-29 Jianshe Si Ma Lu, Yuexiu District, [EES h H]

Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province,

the PRC (“Tianlun Garden”)*

PEERE BN TS RERIER17-295%

RwieE ([ RtefeE ) 2 A EA!

*

Being gross floor area of property excluding the car parking * B mBEEEE (TeREFEEM) -
spaces.

# As at 1 August 2016, the Group entered into an agreement for  # RZT—ANFNA—B  AEBRLEZYE

the disposal of this subject properties. As at 31 December 2016, At o RZE—R"F+A=1+—H" ' F&
this disposal was not yet completed. The relevant properties are B E MR - BEMELELFS PR RE
shown as “Assets classified as held for sale” in the consolidated BRIRAE [ DEARBIELEZEE]

statement of financial position.
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Properties under development

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW g
75 K W 55 Bl R

BREPYE

Planned
Saleable
GFA* Percentage

Site area (sg.m.) interest

(sq.m.) SHEITTERE % Stage of Expected
Project and address WEmME AEEEmE- #z completion completion date
HE Rtk (F7K) (FFHXK) Botk% TREBR =TI BH
Xintian Banshan 118,102 Approximately 100%  Under 2018
South Lake Village Phase I, #357,100 development ~ —ZT—\F
Tonghe Road, Baiyun District, e
Guangzhou City, Guangdong
Province, the PRC (“Xintian
Banshan”)
RFW
EBILAEE — A
PEERAEMNT B EERME
([#rREL D
Linhe Rebuilding Project 57,793 Approximately 30%  Under 2018
Tianhe District, #164,100 development —T-N\F
Guangzhou City, FEH
Guangdong Province,
the PRC
MFIAT E IR B
H B R BN T R =
* It excludes area for car parking spaces, units delivered and  * TBEEFEEEMN  ERXNARERTIARNNE

completed for delivery. fi °
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
E v NEupAE

Completed properties held for sale BIEHEZCR T Y
Gross floor Percentage
area (sq.m.) interest %
BEEEE EEEIL
Project and address (FHK) %
1H B R it (Note)
(H17)
Residential units of Approximately 100%
Xintian Banshan 4311,500
completed for delivery
ERTIFRMNEARF L EEEM
Residential units of Approximately 100%
South Lake Village Phase |, Tonghe Road, 476,900
Baiyun District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC
(VRN
PEIERE RN
A& & RME
AL —HA
ZFEEM
Car parking spaces of Dongming Xuan, N/A 100%
Tianlun Garden and Shangyu Garden A5 A

(VIS
RIGE - XfeftE M D BIERZ B
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s total assets as at 31 December 2016 were
approximately RMB3,636.8 million (31 December 2015:
approximately RMB3,511.3 million) which were financed by
the total equity and total liabilities (including convertible notes)
of approximately RMB1,829.6 million (31 December 2015:
approximately RMB184.7 million) and approximately RMB1,807.2
million (31 December 2015: approximately RMB3,326.6 million)
respectively.

The directors consider the Group will have sufficient working
capital for its operations and financial resources for financing
future investment opportunities.

The Group borrowings were all denominated in Renminbi. Bank
balances and cash were mainly denominated in Renminbi. As at
31 December 2016, there were no outstanding forward contracts
in foreign currency committed by the Group that might involve it
in significant foreign exchange risks and exposures.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 10 December 2010, convertible notes and promissory notes
in principal amount of HK$3,100 million and HK$160 million
respectively were issued as part of the consideration for the
Previous Acquisition. On 3 June 2016, all outstanding convertible
notes were converted into ordinary shares of the Company.
The Group’s gearing ratio then computed as total debts over
total assets was approximately 49.7% as at 31 December 2016
(31 December 2015: 94.7%). As at 31 December 2016, bank
borrowings were amounted to RMB184.5 million carried fixed
interest rate (2015: RMB399.5 million carried interest rate varied
in accordance with the base rate of People’s Bank of China).
Whereas other borrowings amounted to RMB60.5 million (2015:
RMB89.9 million) carried fixed interest rate.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
E v NEupAE

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The revenue and the cost of sales and income of the Group are
mainly denominated in Renminbi. Therefore, the Group is not
exposed to any other material foreign currency exchange risk.
An average rate and a closing rate of HK$1.1659: RMB1 and
HK$1.1159: RMB1, respectively, were applied on consolidation
of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2016.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, certain assets of the Group with
an aggregate amount of approximately RMB688 million (31
December 2015: RMB1,546.7 million), represented by investment
properties of approximately RMB688 million (31 December 2015:
properties under development of approximately RMB545.0
million, completed properties held for sale of approximately
RMB78.0 million and investment properties of approximately
RMB923.7 million), were pledged to secure general banking
facilities.

NUMBERS AND REMUNERATION OF
EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had approximately 191
(31 December 2015: 190) employees, with about 188 in
the Mainland China and 3 in Hong Kong. All employees are
remunerated based on industry practice and in accordance with
prevailing labor law. In Hong Kong, apart from basic salary, staff
benefits including medical insurance, performance related bonus,
and mandatory provident fund would be provided by the Group.

The adoption of a new share option scheme was approved by

the shareholders meeting held on 20 May 2013. No new share
options were granted during the current year.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group adheres to environmental sustainability from office
throughout the property portfolio. As a responsible corporation,
the Group strives to ensure minimal environmental impacts
by carefully managing its energy consumption, water usage,
property design and waste production. In addition, we engaged
construction contractors with relevant licenses that was granted
by government authorities encompass environmental protection
and work safety. The Group has closely monitored the project at
every stage to ensure the project development and construction
process are in compliance with environmental protection and
safety laws and regulations, and would require construction
contractors to immediately resolve any defect or non-compliance,
where necessary. In addition, the Group strives to minimize the
environmental impact by saving electricity and encouraging
recycle of office supplies and other materials. For further details,
please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in mainland China while the Company itself is listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. The Group would make
professional judgement and seek professional legal advice from
its legal department and, where necessary, legal advisers to
ensure transactions and businesses to be performed by the
Group are in compliance with the applicable laws, regulations
and local industry practices in material aspects.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE GROUP’S
EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group believes that the Directors, senior management and
employees are instrumental to the success of the Group and that
their industry knowledge and understanding of the market will
enable the Group to maintain the competitiveness in the market.
Therefore, the Group offered competitive remuneration package
to relevant staff. In addition, a Share Option Scheme was
adopted by the Company on 20 May 2013. At appropriate time,
option would be granted for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who can contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations.

BN YO

RERRREN

AEBUNERAEBE NTYEEETETRR
ARKEZRRRA - FRRBCENEE A
SEFEBEEEEHER  AKE  WERS
FIAE R B BE W) T BN FER A B IR B E R &
MERIE o LS AEEZBERM IR
BRIRBRE N TER 2 /AR 31 Al /8 /) G2
B ARBESEEREZYVERIRR - LERE
BRZENEIBENTARRELEERESR
W BSKZ AR R B EE AR s A& 4R
2B (NFBEE) o s - REBBAONBEBEE
Ko TE B B A P S At 2s i R E R EIR IR
TE - BRE—SFHE FL2HERR HEk
ERMmE -

BFEERER

AEENEBELETERARRNBEARER
BAmARMARAARSEETBH M LT
AREBE R B X HM &S KIE TR R
(W8 ZRBEHENEXERER - BERAK
BETOR P REBEEAT WA TERANE
B AR RMTITEER -

HASEES FFRHEEBHNE
E@&

AEERR EF SAEERENEERAE
BRI EVRRER - MR F AT R AR RS HIGH
THEASESAERMSHEST N - Bt - K
SERHERE TIRHEARF DNFHFMEE - It
Hh - ARBERZZBE—=FAA -+ HERMNE
gt E - BREKEEERRRL - AR
EEBRAEERNEEFHERNAERS
B o

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2016




BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
E v NEupAE

The Group maintains good relationship with existing and potential
customers to understand the market trends that would enable
the Group to adjust its operating and marketing strategies timely,
which are crucial to the development and success of the Group.

The Group maintains a solid and steady relationship with major
contractors to ensure product quality and progress on-schedule.
The Group works and closely monitors daily construction work of
its contractors and settled their workdone timely.

The Group places effort to build up and maintain good
relationships with various commercial banks and financial
institutions as the businesses of the Group are capital intensive
nature and require on-going funding to maintain continuous
growth.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT AND FINANCIAL
GUARANTEE

Details of the capital commitment and financial guarantee are set
out in notes 34 and 37 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. ZHANG Gao Bin — aged 37, is the Chairman of the board
of directors of the Company and the President of the Group.
Mr. Zhang is responsible for the overall strategic development,
general management, human resources and the business
operation of the Group. Mr. Zhang obtained his bachelor degree
in business administration from the University of Greenwich, the
United Kingdom. He has over ten years of experience in the
property development industry. Mr. Zhang joined the Board in
December 2016.

Mr. LUO Zhangguan — aged 32, is the executive director of
the Company as well as the general manager of finance of the
PRC group companies, responsible for business development
and daily management of finance department. Mr. Luo graduated
from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics and obtained a
bachelor degree in Economics with major in Finance (International
Finance). Mr. Luo joined department of business development of
Guangzhou branch of Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited
in 2007 and served as its credit analyst, customer service
manager and department head of SME banking, successively.
Before joining the Company, he has served as the Sub-Branch
Manager of Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited Guangzhou
Panyu sub-branch since 2012. Mr. Luo is the cousin of Mr.
Zhang Gao Bin. Mr. Luo joined the Group in April 2015.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREBAEZEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. LO Wai Hung — aged 57, obtained a bachelor degree in
Commerce from James Cook University of North Queensland,
Australia. Mr. Lo is an associate member of Institute of Chartered
Accountants in Australia and a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo is an independent
non-executive director of Shandong Weigao Group Medical
Polymer Company Limited (stock code: 1066) and C Cheng
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1486). Mr. Lo was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of LT Commercial Real Estate
Limited (Stock code: 112) in March 2017. All the aforementioned
companies are listed on Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lo was also an independent director
of China Merchant Property Development Co. Ltd. (stock code:
24) since December 2011 and was until it was delisted from
Shenzhen Stock Exchange in December 2015.

Mr. CHAN Chi Mong, Hopkins — aged 59, is the founder
member of the Institute of Leadership and Management, U.K..
Mr. Chan has over twenty years’ experiences in finance and
management. He served as the vice president and associate
director of Dean Witter Reynolds (H.K.) Ltd., and the executive
director of Silver Grant International Finance Ltd. Mr. Chan was
appointed as Justice of the Peace (JP) by the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region on 1 July 2015. He is the supervisor
of Hong Kong Pui Ching Middle School, and Hong Kong Pui
Ching Primary School. In social service, he is the board first vice
chairman of Baptist Oi Kwan Social Service. He is an independent
non-executive director of Pacific Online Limited (stock code: 543)
since May 2012. Mr. Chan joined the Group in January 2013.

Mr. MAK Yiu Tong — aged 58, graduated from the China
University of Political Science and Law with a bachelor of law
degree in 1998. Mr. Mak has extensive experience in litigation
and corporate matters. At present, he is legal executive of C. K.
Mok & Co., a firm of solicitors in Hong Kong. Mr. Mak has been
working in the law firm for over 28 years. Mr. Mak was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of Clear Lift Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 1341) in February 2017. Mr. Mak joined the
Group in December 2015.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LEE Wai Kuen — aged 43, is the Company Secretary
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He is responsible
for execution, supervision and advisory of financial reporting,
internal control, reorganisation, corporate governance and
company secretarial matters of the Company. Mr. Lee holds a
bachelor degree in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Lee had worked in an international firm of certified public
accountants and was the financial controller and company
secretary of TeleEye Holdings Ltd. (now known as Circutech
International Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8051), the finance
manager and company secretary of ePRO Ltd. (now known
as DX.com Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8086), the financial
controller of WLS Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 8021) and deputy
financial officer and company secretary of MOBI Development
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 947), during the periods from May 2004 to
June 2005, July 2005 to January 2006, January 2006 to August
2007 and August 2007 to May 2011, respectively, all of which
are listed in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee joined our
Group in May 2011.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is
committed to ensuring high standards of corporate governance
in the interests of shareholders and devotes effort to identifying
and formalising best practices. During the year ended 31
December 2016, the Company has applied the principles and the
code provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).

THE BOARD

To protect and enhance shareholder value, the Board acts with
integrity and due care for the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders. The Board is collectively responsible for
leadership and for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs. Leading the Group in
a responsible and effective manner, the Board adopts formal
terms of reference which detail its functions and responsibilities,
including, but not limited to, ensuring competent management,
approving objectives, strategies and business plans and
monitoring integrity in the Company’s conduct of affairs.
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The attendance of individual Directors at meetings of the HE-ZE—~NE+-_A=1+—BIFHREE
Company during the financial year ended 31 December 2016, fEARIEERAATE@H L HFERWMT :
was as follows:

Number of attendance*/meetings held in 2016
HERE  R-B-AFRITZEE
Annual
General
Audit Remuneration = Nomination Meeting
The Board Committee Committee Committee [

Exe® EHREEE FHZEEE 2 REEEE BFAS

Executive Director H11TE%

Mr. Zhang Gao Bin (Chairman of the Board)** 2/2 N/A 11 1/1 N/A
(appointed on 9 December 2016)

ReBEE (EFRLE) ™ A TiEH
(RZFB—NFF+ZANAEEZF)

Mr. Luo Zhangguan** 8/11 N/A 2/2 2/2 1/1

BEBEE TEA

Mr. You Xiaofei (resigned on 9 December 2016)** 9/10 N/A 2/2 2/2 11

LERKE (RZFE—ANFLZANAEE) TEm

Independent non-executive Director

BIUFHTES

Mr. Lo Wai Hung™* 11/11 2/2 2/2 2/2 1/1

EREERE

Mr. Chan Chi Mong, Hopkins** 10/11 2/2 2/2 2/2 1/1

Rz ERE™

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong** 11/11 2/2 2/2 2/2 11

BRELE

* The Directors can attend mestings in person, by phone or through = EENHSEE  BEBEARAT ZHEEETZN
other means of electronic communication in accordance with the BN EMEFRIATRBNEE -

Company’s Articles of Association.

**  During the year ended 31 December 2016, each of these Directors  * HE-—ET—XFE+_A=+—HIFE  &&

participated in seminars and conferences as well as reading ERENKehes HERS  HTIREH
newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy, general LR . REREEEERE | B E M B IAT S EITE
business, real estate or Directors’ duties and responsibilities, etc. ERETE c AEENEELSMNESABE T
The Group also continuously updates the Directors on the latest B REMEAEESRTNRIER -

developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements.
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Currently, the Company does not appoint chief executive officer.
In view of the operation of the Group, the Board believes that the
present structure of the Board will provide a strong leadership
for the Group to implement prompt decisions and to formulate
efficient strategies, which is for benefits of the Group.

Moreover, the day-to-day operation of the Group’s businesses
are shared among those executive directors and the
management of the Company. Therefore, there should be
a clear division of the responsibilities at the board level to
ensure a balance of power and authority, so that power is not
concentrated in any one individual.

Together with a balanced of skill and experience for the
business of the Group, a balanced composition of executive and
independent non-executive director of the Board shall exercise
effective independent judgment. Currently, the Board comprises
of five directors, of which two are executive directors, namely Mr.
Zhang Gao Bin (“Mr. Zhang”) and Mr. Luo Zhangguan (“Mr. Luo”)
and three independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Lo
Wai Hung (“Mr. Lo”), Mr. Chan Chi Mong, Hopkins (“Mr. Chan”)
and Mr. Mak Yiu Tong (“Mr. Mak”).

As at 31 December 2016, all the independent non-executive
directors were appointed for a term of two years and subject to
retirement and re-election in accordance with the bye-laws of
the Company. In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company,
at each annual general meeting of the Company one third of the
directors shall retire from office by rotation. The Board considers
that sufficient measures will be taken to ensure the corporate
governance practices of the Company are not less exacting than
those in the Code A4.1 and 4.2.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

The management is obliged to supply the Board with adequate
information in a timely manner to enable the members to
make informed decisions and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities. Each director has separate and independent
access to the Group’s senior management to acquire more
information and to make further enquiries if necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Board and
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees are established
with defined written terms of reference which are available to
shareholders on the Company’s website. The Board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A nomination committee of the Company had been established
by the Board with written terms of reference. The nomination
committee comprises two executive directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The nomination
committee is chaired by Mr. Zhang. The principal duties of the
Nomination Committee include, but are not limited to, making
recommendations to the Board on the structure, size and
composition of the Board and relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Director and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee
met twice during the year ended 31 December 2016 to review
the above matters.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year, the Board adopted a board diversity policy
setting out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
The Company considered diversity of board members can
be achieved through consideration of a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge.
All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for identifying
talent with adequate qualification to serve as a board member,
and will take into account the Board Diversity Policy. After
assessing the suitability of the directors’ skills and experience to
the Company’s business, the Nomination Committee confirmed
that the existing Board was appropriately structured and no
change was required. The Board Diversity Policy would be
reviewed by the Board on a regular basis to ensure continuous
efficiency.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

A remuneration committee of the Company had been
established by the Board with written terms of reference. The
remuneration committee comprises two executive directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The remuneration
committee is chaired by Mr. Chan. The remuneration committee
is responsible for assisting the Board in achieving its objective
of attracting and retaining Directors and senior management
of the highest caliber and experience needed to develop the
Group’s business successfully. The remuneration committee is
also responsible for the development of a fair and transparent
procedure in determining the remuneration policies for the
Directors and senior management of the Company and for
recommendation to their remuneration packages. During the year
ended 31 December 2016, the Remuneration Committee met
twice to review the above matters.

All employees are remunerated based on industry practice and
in accordance with the prevailing labour law. In Hong Kong,
apart from basic salary, staff benefits include medical insurance,
performance related bonus and mandatory provident fund would
be provided by the Group.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Company and the Group. In preparing the
financial statements, the Board has adopted Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants that are relevant to its operations.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, the Board has
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors (the “Audit Committee”) and reports to the board of
directors. A written terms of reference had been established.
The committee members performed their duties therein which
includes duties set out in the code provision C.3.3 (a) to (n)
of the Corporate Governance Code. The Audit Committee
held three meetings in 2016 and reviewed the Group’s annual
results for 2015 and interim results for 2016; reviewed the audit
plans and findings of the external independent auditor; made
recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of the
external auditor and its remuneration; and reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems and financial matters
pursuant to its terms of reference. The Audit Committee meets
the external independent auditor at least once a year to discuss
any areas of concerns during the audits without the presence of
the management. The annual report for the year ended 2016 of
the Company has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the fees paid/payable
to the auditor of the Company in respect of the audit services
and non audit services in 2016 were amounted to approximately
RMBO0.8 million and RMBO0.3 million respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has the responsibility to maintain appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems in order
to safeguard the interest of the Group and the Shareholders. The
Board conducted review and assessment of the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
and procedures during the financial year ended 31 December
2016 by way of discussions with the management of the Group,
members of the Audit Committee and the external independent
auditor. The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.
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During the financial year, an external consultant has been
engaged to maintain the internal audit function for the Group to
assist the Board and the Audit Committee in ongoing monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. The external consultant discussed with the executive
directors and senior management of the Group to identify key
business risks across the Group, and has adopted a risk-
based approach in developing the annual internal audit plan
with a focus on higher risk areas. Internal audit review was then
conducted in accordance with the annual internal audit plan. All
findings and recommendations on internal control deficiencies
for the year had been communicated to the management who
are required to establish remedial plans to correct those internal
control deficiencies and implement agreed action plans within
a reasonable time period. The Board and the Audit Committee
had reviewed the risk assessment results, internal audit planning
and internal audit reports submitted by the external consultant.
In respect of the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board
considered the risk management and internal control systems
are effective and adequate.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for determining the overall strategy and
corporate development and ensuring the business operations are
properly monitored. The Board reserves the right to decide all
policy matters of the Group and material transactions. The Board
delegates the day-to-day operations to general managers and
department heads who are responsible for different aspects of
the operations of the Group.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary plays an important role in supporting the
Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board and
that Board policy and procedures are followed. The Company
Secretary is responsible for advising the Board through the
Chairman and/or the executive directors on governance matters
and should also facilitate induction and professional development
of Directors. Details of the Company’s company secretary are set
out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this report.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDER
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes in regular and timely communication
with shareholders as part of its efforts to help shareholders
understand its business better and the way the Company
operates. To promote effective communication with the public at
large, the Company maintains a website (http://www.760hk.com)
on which comprehensive information about the Company’s major
businesses, financial information and announcements, annual
and interim reports and shareholders circulars are being made
available.

All shareholders of the Company are given at least 20 clear
business days’ notice of the date and venue of the annual
general meeting. According to the Listing Rules, the Board will
conduct voting at the forthcoming annual general meeting by
vote.

By-law 58 of the Company’s bye-laws provides that any
shareholder holding not less than 10% of the paid up capital of
the Company can deposit a requisition to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong with the attention to
the board or the Company secretary of the Company to require
a special general meeting to be called by the board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

The Board is endeavour to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders. The chairman of the Board, chairman of the
Audit Committee, chairman of the remuneration committee and
chairman of the nomination committee, or in their absence, other
members of the respective committees and the auditor of the
Company, are available to answer any queries that shareholders
may have in the annual general meeting.

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company,
such as telephone number, fax number, email address and postal
address, in order to enable them to make any query that they
may have with respect to the Company. They can also send
their enquiries to the Board through these means. In addition,
shareholders can contact the Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, the share registrar of the Company,
if they have any enquiries about their shareholdings and
entitlements to dividend.
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MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for directors’ securities
transactions. Having make specific enquiries of all directors
of the Company, they have confirmed that they complied with
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
accounting period covered by the annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

OVERVIEW AND SCOPE

Pursuant to Appendix 27 (the “Guide”) of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), Talent Property Group
Limited (the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group” or “we”) hereby presents this Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG”) Report to report ESG issues that have
material environmental and social impacts and are relevant to the
business of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2016
(the “Financial Year”). Unless otherwise stated, the reporting

period is from January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016.

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group has established
the ESG policy, infrastructure and framework for managing
ESG related matters. The Board of Directors oversees the
Group’s ESG strategy and reporting. An ESG working group
which comprises management personnel across the business
has been set up and directly reports to the Board of Directors
on ESG matters. The Group assessed the materiality of key
ESG issues associated with the business and operations,
prioritized the ESG issues that are most important to our
business and our stakeholders, and determined the scope and
content of disclosure in this ESG Report. Based on the result
of the materiality tests, the Group decides to include property
investment and property management in this ESG disclosure.
This ESG report covers the Group’s overall performance in two
subject areas, namely, Environmental and Social.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
I&iﬁ $ié& ksA#&m

A.

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group strives to minimize environmental impacts by

managing its energy consumption, use of resources and

waste production.

A1,

Emissions

The Group has established a mechanism to
collect emission data in order to monitor the
environmental impact of the Group’s operations.
Emissions from office administration and sales
activities are primarily attributable to its use of
electricity, water, paper and gasoline. Emissions
from property development and non-hazardous
waste produced during construction are managed
by the construction contractors as stipulated in the
agreements signed. The Group does not produce
any hazardous waste in its operations.

Our management takes reasonable efforts to
ensure the construction contractors comply with
relevant laws and regulations. During the Financial
Year, there were no incidences of non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on the environment and natural
resource relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A2,

A3.

Use of Resources

The Group’s operation is not resources or energy
intensive. Main resources used by the Group are
primarily electricity, water, paper and gasoline.
The Group implemented a number of initiatives
to achieve higher energy efficiency and reduced
resource consumption:

- Switching off lights during lunch hours;

- Setting air-conditioning at an optimal
temperature;

- Presetting the setting of printers to
two-sided printing, and Posting notice near
photocopy-machines as a reminder for
employees to save paper; and

- Promoting reuse and recycle through the
provision of recycling box in the office.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group’s business has no direct significant
impact on the environment and natural resources.
The ESG working group regularly assesses the
environmental risks of the Group. Should there be
any subsequent changes to the relevant legislation
or Group’s operation, the ESG working group
will report such changes to the Board and adopt
additional measures, if necessary, to minimize the
Group’s impact on the environment and natural
resources.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE - HERERWS

B.

SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

B1.

B2.

B3.

Employment

The Group is committed to comply with applicable
labour standards and employment laws and
regulations which are applicable to our business.
The Group has developed comprehensive human
resources policies and guidelines to govern
recruitment, compensation, promotion and
dismissal of our employees, and employees’
working hours and rest periods. The Group
also endeavors to provide equal opportunities
throughout recruitment and employment and
combat any forms of discrimination in the
workplace. During the Financial Year, there were no
incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that had a significant impact on the
employment and labour practices.

Health and Safety

The Group strives to provide a healthy and safe
workplace for our employees in all locations. Safety
guidelines are stipulated in the Employee Handbook
which are distributed to all employees. During
the Financial Year, the Group was in compliance
with relevant laws and regulations relating to
the provision of a safe working environment and
protection of employees from occupational hazards
which were applicable to our business. No severe
injuries or fatalities of the Group’s employees were
reported during the Financial Year.

Development and Training

The Group places great emphasis in developing
our employees and provides both internal and
external staff training to strengthen their knowledge
and skills. The Group has developed a Training
Policy to govern training related matters. Each
year, management prepares the Training Budget to
allocate sufficient resources for staff development
based on the result of Training Requirement Survey.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B. SOCIAL (continued)
Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

B4.

Labour Standards

The Group is committed to comply with all labour
standards relevant to our business. The Group has
established a policy to strictly prohibit any child
and forced labour. Our management personnel also
takes all reasonable steps to set up and maintain a
recruitment process to ensure there is no deviation
from this Group policy.

Operating Practices

Bb5.

B6.

Supply Chain Management

To ensure product and service quality, and to
manage environmental and social risks in the
supply chain, the Group only engages suppliers
and construction contractors with licenses that
were granted by relevant regulators or government
authorities. The Group has established a contract
policy and corresponding evaluation procedures to
govern the selection of suppliers and construction
contractors. The obligations of suppliers and
contractors with respect to environmental
protection and safety laws and regulations are
clearly specified in contracts.

Product Responsibility

The Group recognizes the importance of safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating
to the products and services provided by the
Group. The Group has established relevant policies
to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations and to fulfill our responsibility towards
our customers.
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RIE - HERERWS

B.

SOCIAL (continued)
Operating Practices (continued)

B6.

B7.

Product Responsibility (continued)

The Group closely monitors development projects
at every stage to ensure project development,
construction process and product quality are in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations,
and will require construction contractors to
immediately resolve any defects or non-compliance
incidences, where necessary. The Group
has entered into contracts with construction
contractors to obtain indemnity agreements from
contractors, and their commitment to carry out
operational and quality assurance activities as well
as ensuring regulatory compliance. The Group has
also established property acceptance procedures
to ensure the properties are ready for delivery to
our customers pursuant to the sales agreements.

Anti-corruption

The Group strives to create a corporate culture
that embraces integrity, honesty and fairness,
and is committed to conduct our business in the
absence of any undue influences. Requirements
and guidelines relating to preventing bribery,
extortion and fraud are stipulated in the Employee
Handbook and relevant ethics-related policies
for communicating the Group’s requirements
to employees and providing guidance in the
carrying out of business and operational duties.
The Employee Handbook and internal policies
are subject to periodic review and updates will
be made to ensure compliance with the latest
development of applicable laws and regulations.

Community

BS.

Community Investment

The Group takes into consideration the
communities’ interests to ensure the Group’s
business activities do not have negative impact to
the community. All employees are also encouraged
to participate in community activities and charitable
activities as contribution to society.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries and associate
are set out in notes 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in property
development, investment and management in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”).

A fair review of the Group’s business, an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business and an analysis
using financial key performance indicators are provided in the
“Chairman Statement” and the “Business and Financial Review”,
respectively, from pages 4 to 9 and pages 10 to 22 of this Annual
Report. A description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, a discussion on the Group’s environmental
policies and performance and an account of the Group’s key
relationships with its stakeholders are stated therein. The above
discussions form part of the Report of the Directors.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the Group sold less than 30% of its
goods and services to its 5 largest customers in its continuing
operation. Whereas, purchases of the Group’s five largest
suppliers and contractors accounted for 86.7% (2015: 73.0%) of
the total purchases for the year and purchases from the largest
supplier and contractor included therein amounted to 44.0%
(2015: 33.1%) of the total purchases.

As far as the directors are aware, neither the directors, their
associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”)) nor those shareholders (which, to the knowledge
of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the consolidated financial statement on pages
60 to 61.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETHRES

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 67 to 68 and note 43
to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

SUBSTANTIAL INVESTMENT AND
ACQUISITION

There was no substantial investment and acquisition.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements during the year in the share options and
share capital of the Company are set out in notes 30 and 32 to
the consolidated financial statements.

In 2010, convertible notes of principal amount of HK$3,100
million were issued as part of the consideration for the
acquisition of Talent Central Limited and its subsidiaries (details
of which were set out in the circular to shareholders dated 29
October 2010). During the year ended 31 December 2016, all the
outstanding convertible notes are converted into 6,484,393,939
ordinary shares of HK$0.004 each the Company. Details of the
convertible notes and share capital are set out in note 31 and
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements during the year in the investment
properties and plant and equipment of the Group are set out
in notes 14 and 15 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2016
are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EXEWRES

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ERE
Consolidated Results mE¥E

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t-BLEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZE-Xf —T-1F —TNF —T-=F —E--F
RMB000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ANREFT AREFT AREFT ANREFT ARETFT

(restated)”
(ET)
Revenue Wi 506,764 365,990 375,924 647,317 832,257
Loss before MRS R ATEE
income tax (54,966) (191,435) (18,900) (309,784) (747,861)
Income tax (expense)/credit FieH (%), #e (18,745) 76,309 36,628 52,116 134,488
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (B8)/ %7 (73,7111)  (115,126) 17,728 (257,668)  (613,373)
Attributable to: THATREL :
Owners of the Company ViN/NCIE DN (73,711)  (115,125) 17,728 (237,999)  (544,708)
Non-controlling interests TR - (1) - (19,669) (68,665)
(73,7111)  (115,126) 17,728 (257,668)  (613,373)
Consolidated Assets, Equity and Liabilities GEBEE HEERAERE
As at 31 December
W+ZA=1+—-H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
“2-RF —T-0F —T-MF —T-=F —T--F
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
AREBFT ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT
(restated)”
(B3
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,249,309 1,537,630 1,460,292 1,735,156 2,358,498
Current assets SEAE 2,387,501 1,973,665 2,432,955 4,158,191 4,512,275
3,636,810 3,511,285 3,893,247 5,893,347 6,870,773
LIABILITIES g
Current liabilities mEEE 1,400,458 2,829,354 3,278,537 3,276,972 2,963,581
Non-current liabilities EREEE 406,766 497,268 392,719 2,371,873 3,209,477
1,807,224 3,326,622 3,671,256 5,648,845 6,173,058
EQUITY #i
Attributable to: A AT -
Owners of the Company ARARERA 1,809,395 164,472 201,799 224,510 386,226
Non-controlling interests FEEMR R 20,191 20,191 20,192 19,992 311,489
Total Equity Bnes 1,829,586 184,663 221,991 244,502 697,715
* The figures for the year 2012 have been restated to reflect the  * BT -—ZF 8B URBRZEFEER
change in presentation currency from HK$ to RMB. BLEEAARE -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETHRES

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. ZHANG Gao Bin (Chairman)
(appointed on 9 December 2016)

Mr. LUO Zhangguan

Mr. YOU Xiaofei (Chairman)
(resigned on 9 December 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. LO Wai Hung
Mr. CHAN Chi Mong, Hopkins
Mr. MAK Yiu Tong

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, all of the directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election. Mr. Zhang
Gao Bin and Mr. Lo Wai Hung will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 23 to 25
of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of independent non-executive directors, had entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of two years and
each of these contracts is subject to termination by either party
giving not less than 1 month’s written notice.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract,
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office
or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for
the Directors and officers of the Group throughout the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the directors or the management shareholders of the
Company or any of their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) had any business which was considered to
compete or was likely to compete with the businesses of the
Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts other than employment contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2016, the interest or short position of the
Directors and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Future
Ordinance (the “SFQO”)) which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of SFO), or which were required to be and are recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:
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BRARBRETMERER (REFMAE
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Percentage of the

Capacity/ Company’s issued
Name of director Nature of interest Number of shares share capital
HAERATE BT
EEHE B REEME BB BAEAETDL
Zhang Gao Bin Personal 104,465,000 1.0%
K= A & A
Interest in controlled corporation 6,484,393,939 63.0%
REEHEE RS
Mak Yiu Tong Personal 150,000 0.0%
HiRR & A
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EXEWRES

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

So far as is known to the Directors or chief executives of the
Company, as at 31 December 2016, the interests or short
positions of substantial shareholders (other than Directors or the
chief executives of the Company) in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
SFO or were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of SFO were as follows:

FERRRAQARMS KEER D
ZERRER

BARBBEERITHRAKMN  R_T—XRF
+ZA=+—8 ' FERE (KRRESHTT
B E R IN) AR RIS S AR D B R
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RABEBEINARRREES KRGS
BB EBHFEZE MR EINER
LU

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s
underlying issued
Name Note shares interest share capital
EAQRE #IT
=t Hiat HEARGEZEE BRABDE
Talent Trend Holdings Limited 1 6,484,393,939 63.0%
Notes: WE -
(1) The entire issued share capital of Talent Trend Holdings Limited is (1) Talent Trend Holdings Limited % &F 2 # 1T %

directly, beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Zhang Gao Bin.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share option scheme of the Company was adopted on 20
May 2013 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to Participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Particulars of the scheme are set out in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements. The maximum number
of unexercised share options currently permitted to be granted
under the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise,
to 10% of the shares of the company in issue at any time. As at
30 March 2016, the number of shares of the Company available
for issue in respect thereof was 1,029,313,655, representing
10% of the issued shares of the Company. In addition, save as
determined at the discretion of the Board, there is no minimum
holding period before an Option is exercisable. No options were
granted during the year ended 31 December 2016.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option
Scheme” and the Company entered into a Second Supplemental
Deed of Amendment with Talent Trend as at 11 January 2016,
no equity linked agreements were entered into during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws and there is no restriction against such
rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of shares or other
securities of the Company by the Company or its subsidiaries
during the year.
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EETHRES

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Continuing connected transactions
Tenancy agreement

On 22 April 2016, Guangzhou Xianzhuang Properties
Development Limited (“Xianzhuang”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company as tenant entered into a tenancy agreement (the
“Tenancy Agreement”) with Tianlun Holdings Limited Company
(“Tianlun Holdings”) as lessor, for the lease of the principal place
of business of the Group in PRC (the “Office”) from 1 May 2016
to 31 December 2018. Tianlun Holdings is a limited liability
company as to approximately 84.5% held by Mr. Zhang Guo
Ming. Mr. Zhang Gao Bin, who is an executive director of the
Company as well as the ultimate controlling shareholder of the
Company, is the son of Mr. Zhang Guo Ming.

Property management agreements

On 22 April 2016, Xianzhuang entered into a property
management agreement (“Property Management Agreement 1”)
with Guangzhou Tianlun Property Management Limited Company
(“Tianlun Property Management”) for the provision of property
management service in relation to the Office. Tianlun Property
Management is a limited liability and owned as to approximately
90% by Tianlun Holdings.

On 28 December 2015, Guangzhou Kinyang Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd (“Kinyang”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company entered into a property management agreement
(“Property Management Agreement II”) with Tianlun Property
Management, for the provision of the property management
service in relation to the commercial units of Tianlun Garden
(being classified as an asset held for sales of the Group) held by
Kinyang.

The terms of the Tenancy Agreement, the Property Management
Agreement | and the Property Management Agreement Il
are on normal commercial terms and were negotiated on an
arm’s length basis between the parties. The rental chargeable
under the Tenancy Agreement was determined by reference
to the market rental of other comparable premises in nearby
location recently. On the other hand, the management fee
under the Property Management Agreement | and the Property
Management Agreement Il were determined based on range set
by market rates in line with industry practice.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The aggregate rental and property management fee paid by the
Group was approximately RMB4.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2016, which did not exceed the annual cap for the
year ended 31 December 2016 for these transactions.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
such transactions (a) were in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group; (b) were undertaken on normal
commercial terms or better terms; and that (c) the Transaction
Agreements were entered into in a fair and reasonable manner
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole and such transactions have been carried out in
accordance with the agreements governing the transactions.

For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, CHENG
& CHENG LIMITED, the auditor of the Company, has provide
a letter to the Board, confirming that nothing has come to
their attention that causes them to believe that the continuing
connected transaction abovementioned:

(i) has not been approved by the Board;

(if) are not in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Company if the transactions involve provision of goods
and services by the Company;

(i) have not been entered into in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(iv) have exceeded the respective annual caps.

Details of related party transactions are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s Corporate Governance Report is set out on
pages 26 to 34 of the annual report.
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EETHRES

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
FROM INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Company’s directors.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining shareholders of the Company
who are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming AGM
to be held on 9 June 2017 (Friday), the register of members of
the Company will be closed from 6 June 2017 (Tuesday) to 9
June 2017 (Friday), both days inclusive. In order to qualify for
attending and voting at the AGM, all transfer documents should
be lodged for registration with Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30
p.m. on 5 June 2017 (Monday).

AUDITORS

A resolution will be tabled in the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. CHENG & CHENG LIMITED as
auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Gao Bin

Chairman

PRC Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
@ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
wmom g F MOF OB A N A H

10/F., Allied Kajima Building,
138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

To the Shareholders of Talent Property Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial
statements

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Talent
Property Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 60 to 196, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flow for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2016 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BUZHBEMKREE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Valuation of investment properties

The key audit matter
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As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of investment properties
of the Group was RMB725,000,000.

Significant estimation and judgement are required by
management to determine the fair value of the investment
properties. To support management’s determination of the
fair value, the Group engaged an external valuer to perform
valuations on the investment properties at the end of the
reporting period.

The accounting policies and disclosures for the estimation of fair
value of investment properties are included in notes 2, 4 and 14.

How the matter was addressed in our audit
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We evaluated the objectivity, independence and competency of
the valuer.

We compared inputs to the valuation model, on a sample basis,
with the Group’s records, which included underlying lease
agreements and documentation, details of number of property
units held for investment purposes and current rents.

We discussed with the valuer regarding the reasonableness of
methodology and key assumptions being used in the fair value
exercise.

We performed site visits accompanied by the management for

investment properties which enabled us to assess the status of
occupancy rate.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Net realisable value assessment of the Group’s
properties under development and completed
properties for sale

The key audit matter
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As at 31 December 2016, the Group held properties under
development and completed properties held for sale amounted
to RMB1,299,920,000 and RMB355,407,000 respectively,
net of reversal of impairment loss of RMB75,019,000 and
RMB5,310,000 respectively recognised during the year ended 31
December 2016, as disclosed in notes 19 and 20 respectively to
the consolidated financial statements.

The estimation of the net realisable values (“NRV”) of properties
under development/completed properties for sale required the
management of the Group to estimate the selling prices based
on prevailing market conditions, less costs to complete and sell
the properties. Given that the Group had significant amounts of
properties under development and completed properties for sale
and that the management’s determination of the NRV required
the management of the Group to exercise significant judgment,
we concluded that the NRV assessment as one of the key audit
areas.

How the matter was addressed in our audit
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We noted that the management of the Group had engaged an
independent valuer to determine the current market values of the
properties. We assessed the valuer’s qualifications and expertise
and read their terms of engagement with the Group to determine
whether there were any matters that might have affected their
objectivity or whether there were scope limitations imposed upon
their work.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

How the matter was addressed in our audit
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We discussed with the valuer the methodology and assumptions
used in determining the market values of the properties.
Specifically, with regard to completed properties for sale, we
sample-checked the estimated market values of properties
used by the valuer to the actual selling prices of comparable
properties in the similar location near the end of the reporting
period and determined whether there was any significant
variance. With regard to the properties under development
for sale, we discussed with the management of the Group
and the valuer how they arrived at the estimated percentage
of completion, the estimated selling prices when they are
completed and the estimated costs to complete, and checked to
the sourced data on a sample basis. Further, we compared the
market values determined by the valuer with the carrying amount
of the properties recorded in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements to see whether adequate impairment had been made.

Interests in an associate

The key audit matter
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As set out in note 17 to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, the Group had a 30% equity investment in an
associate which had been accounted for using the equity
method. As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s interest in the
associate amounted to RMB510,835,000. The Group’s share of
the associate’s loss after tax for the year ended 31 December
2016 was RMB67,407,000.

The associate is a property developer in Guangzhou, the PRC.
As at 31 December 2016, the associate had properties under
development and completed properties for sale, amounted
to RMB1,917,866,000 and RMB411,884,000 respectively,
that were required to be carried at the lower of cost and NRV
in accordance with the Group’s policy. Given that the NRV
estimation required a significant management judgment and that
properties under development and completed properties for sale
represented significant components of the associate’s net assets,
we concluded that the NRV assessment of the associate’s
properties under development and completed properties for sale
was one of the key audit matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

How the matter was addressed in our audit
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We were not the statutory auditor of the financial statements
of the associate. We performed audit on material items of
the associate, e.g. turnover, cost of sales, properties under
development and completed properties held for sale.

We met the management of the associate and of the Group
and discussed with them the performance of the associate
and how the associate prepared the financial statements,
in particular, whether the accounting policies used by the
associate in preparing its financial statements were in line with
the Group’s policies. With regard to the associate’s properties
under development and completed properties for sale, we had
performed site visits to certain properties site. Further, we had
compared the carrying amount of the properties stated in the
associate’s financial statements with the latest selling prices
of the properties and assessed the construction costs to be
incurred up to completion.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to

be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BUZHBEMKREE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify your opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the Group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that

we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence and communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHEMREF

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE R MEBERGENERRNWEE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (&)
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, HEWHEZEZEEMAEBZRNEES @R
we determine those matters that were of most significance TEWLBEH NG SHBRANBEZIIER
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the AEE - AMEKEAREZREZIE - BIEEFES
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We ERARTARBRNEEE  ARNEEEY
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or BN T @  EERARBR NS EEASEEHRY
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter of when, TR#&REBH AR B EFTEH N T A
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter [ERIHEDHE @ THES@RNZEEIHRE D
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse gl tt ZEH1H -

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED BEEMEEAERAR
Certified Public Accountants (Practising) HEDI A

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017 BE —ET—+tF=H=+H
Cheng Hong Cheung EREERE

Practising Certificate number PO1802 HEFEZRE 0 P01802
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERBEREMEEKARRE

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (# 2 = —NF+=A=+—HILF)F)

2016 2015

ZE-RF —ET—hF

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B et AREFT ABRETFIT

Revenue g 6 506,764 365,990

Cost of sales and income FHE U A BK AR (415,868) (288,898)

Gross profit EF 90,986 77,092
Other revenue and H e R AFER

net income 7 11,341 181,791

Distribution costs 2k = D®N (18,872) (12,461)
Administrative and other TR EEMGERT

operating expenses (48,486) (66,533)

Loss on disposal of investment HEREMEEIE

properties - (1,609)
Fair value changes on investment & & 9% A F([EE F)

properties (27,836) (152,735)

Reversal of impairment loss/ BERPMENRERBRE

(impairment loss) of properties #BeCREEsE)

under development 75,019 (112,895)
Reversal of impairment loss/ BEEEZEBIWERN

(impairment loss) of completed  JR{EEERERE

properties held for sale CREEE) 5,310 (3,945)
Fair value changes on derivative $T4 4t TE QA FE
financial instruments bek) (4,913) (2,937)
Share of (loss)/profit of DIREE R T (BE),/
an associate S A (67,407) 36,966
Finance costs BhE AR 8 (70,018) (134,169)
Loss before income tax BRETEBAIER 9 (54,966) (191,435)
Income tax (expense)/credit Fis®t (), #5 12 (18,745) 76,309
Loss for the year FEEE (73,711) (115,126)
Loss attributable to: THALEEESRE :
Owners of the Company INNEIE F =N (73,711) (115,125)
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR R 2 - (1)
(73,711) (115,126)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERBERAMEEKARE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =F—NF+=-A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—B—RE¥F —E—hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AREFT ABRBFIT
Other comprehensive FEHMEZEEE
loss for the year (after (EFDERER)
reclassification adjustments)
ltems that may be reclassified HigrlgeEF o BEEER
subsequently to profit or loss: mIER :
Reclassification adjustment of HERHEESRERE
fair value reserve on disposal ZAVEREBET D
of available-for-sale financial pERREE
assets - 535
Exchange loss on translation of — #E /G N 7 B 755k
financial statements of foreign RZIEHEE
operations (125,132) (81,020)
Other comprehensive loss FEHMEZEEE
for the year (125,132) (80,485)
Total comprehensive loss for FEZHERALE
the year (198,843) (195,611)
Total comprehensive loss THALTEESEE
attributable to: EiE4E%E .
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE Z= N (198,843) (195,610)
Non-controlling interests IEE T FE o - (1)
(198,843) (195,611)
RMB RMB
AR A EH
Loss per share BREE 13
Basic HIK (0.974 cent ) (3.475 cents 7))
Diluted BE (0.974 cent @) (3.475 cents )
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e PR R

(As at 31 December 2016) (R=F—~NF+=H=+—H)

2016 2015
—E-REF —FE-0F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B et AR T ABRETFIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENRER
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties KEME 14 725,000 962,601
Plant and equipment 5= K 5% 15 2,074 1,565
Interests in an associate N} NS - X 17 510,835 572,464
Available-for-sale financial assets A ftH &4 fi&E 18 1,000 1,000
Deferred tax assets BERIBEE 29 10,400 -
1,249,309 1,537,630
Current assets REBEE
Properties under development BREPYE 19 1,299,920 1,466,005
Completed properties held for FIEHE 2B R T 20
sale 355,407 209,160
Trade receivables JE Y BR 3R 21 13,077 36,401
Prepayments, deposits and other FEfTFIE - &4 K EMfE
receivables &7 e 22 119,934 124,724
Tax recoverable AR B I8 7,924 9,935
Financial assets at fair value ARFERFABRER 23
through profit or loss TRIEE 140,000 -
Cash and cash equivalent HeRBEEEY 24 241,239 127,430
2,177,501 1,973,655
Assets classified as held for sale D EABIELE Y EE 25 210,000 -
2,387,501 1,973,655
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e P EGIRR

(As at 31 December 2016) (R=F—NF+=A=1—H)

2016 2015
—B-RE¥F —ZE—HF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR%TFT AR Fr
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables FEASTBR K 26 (98,431) (83,509)
Accruals and other payables FEETE & E b 50R 27 (1,015,978) (534,224)
Provision for tax TIER A (161,501) (232,481)
Borrowings B 28 (124,548) (315,354)
Convertible notes Al R 31 - (1,6683,786)
(1,400,458) (2,829,354)
Net current assets/(liabilities) FEEE (&1E) BE 987,043 (855,699)
Total assets less current HEERRBEE
liabilities 2,236,352 681,931
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEEE 29 (286,266) (323,268)
Borrowings B 28 (120,500) (174,000)
(406,766) (497,268)
Net assets EEZEE 1,829,586 184,663
EQUITY DR
Share capital f& A 32 37,628 14,384
Reserves b 33 1,771,767 150,088
Equity attributable to the owners AR RIHEA AFE(RHEZS
of Company 1,809,395 164,472
Non-controlling interests IEIE IR R = 20,191 20,191
Total equity fEREE 1,829,586 184,663

Zhang Gao Bin Luo Zhangguan
REE BERX
Director Director
EE BE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AERETRER

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (2=

FAEFA=S—AILFR)

2016 2015
—EB-RE —T—AF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B &t AR¥ T ARBETFT
Loss before income tax BRETIS TR E (54,966) (191,439)
Adjustments for: R
Interest income on financial REENRARZ 2/
assets carried at amortised BEMEBA
costs (1,177) (740)
Loss on disposal of investment &R EYEEE
properties = 1,609
Fair value changes on WEYENTFEEZS
investment properties 27,836 152,735
Fair value changes on derivative #7448 T A A T1(E
financial instruments #8) 4,913 2,937
Gain on disposal of available- HEAHREESHERE
for-sale financial assets pdl & - (229)
Management fee income from JEU B E AR E IR B
an associate WA (1,430) (923)
Provision of compensation THIERAE - 5,000
Interest income on loan to an BTYHBEARIERZ
associate FEMA 7 (5,040) (6,180)
Reversal of impairment loss/ BRAYENREEIE
(impairment loss) of e OREEsE)
properties under development (75,019) 112,895
Reversal of impairment loss/ FIEHEZERIME
(impairment loss) of MR EEBEER O
completed properties BEE)
held for sale (5,310) 3,945
Share of loss/(profit) of an DEEE R RIEE
associate O ) 67,407 (36,966)
Finance costs BhE B 8 70,018 134,169
Gain on extension of convertible — E2R]#aRX ZIE I HAA 7
notes Z Wz 7 - (103,844)
Depreciation on plant and WE R EETE
equipment
- Owned assets —BBEE 9 541 1,107
Loss on written off of WEH R M 2
plant and equipment &8 9 579 85
Reversal of over-provision BEFFHES LB
of compensation paid in R
previous years (2,807) (10,988)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERTRER

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (# 2 =F— NF+=-F=+—HI F/Z)

2016 2015
—EB-REF —T—AF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B &t AR¥TF ARBETT
Operating cash flow before LEECEHA LKL
working capital changes ERE 25,545 63,177
Decrease/(increase) in BEPMERBELES
properties under development ZBRIYERD
and completed properties ()
held for sale 114,946 (14,635)
Decrease/(increase) in trade U AR FOR (38 n)
receivables 23,324 (35,264)
Decrease in prepayments, TERHRIE - e &k
deposits and other H qth fE W GRIE R
receivables 4,790 38,945
Increase in financial assets at NAFEFAB=ZNS
fair value through profit or BhE N
loss (140,000) -
Increase in trade payables JFE 1T BR 235 1 14,922 55,028
Increase/(decrease) in accruals  FE5T & A K& B fh FEft
and other payables FIEE M, CRd) 352,853 (298,428)
Cash generated from/(used in) B EEE S(FA) 2
operations "4 396,380 (191,177)
Land appreciation tax paid B L ER (42,819) (6,038)
Income tax paid B FEH (92,604) (93,333)
Net cash generated from/ REERFE (A 2
(used in) operating activities H&EH 260,957 (290,548)
Cash flows from investing REXKZRERE
activities
Purchase of plant and equipment & 8 &5 M k& (1,609) (377)
Purchase of investment property EEEIREWE (235) (56,435)
Proceeds from disposal of HEREMERSE
investment properties, net R RIE = 11,657
Proceeds from disposal of HERHREESREER
available-for-sale financial 15558
assets = 1,729
Deposits received for disposal of HEREWELD Wike
investment properties 125,810 -
Interest received 2 HF & 1,177 739
Net cash generated from/ REXKMEB (A 2
(used in) investing activities B &FEE 125,143 (42,687)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
an\ }EEUILE%

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (# 2 = —NF+=A=+—HILF)F)

2016 2015
—AE ST IF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hat AREFT AREF T
Cash flows from financing MEXBZRERE
activities
Proceeds from bank loan RITE TSR - 400,000
Proceeds from other unsecured ﬁfﬁ%%{%gf fi 1S 58
loan - 4,197
Repayment of bank loans ERIRTTER (215,000) (187,500)
Repayment of other unsecured EEAMEEFER
loan (29,306) -
Finance costs AEKAR (32,010) (8,044)
Net cash (used in)/from MEXK (FTA) e
financing activities ZREFE (276,316) 208,653
Net increase/(decrease) in cash fﬁ\\é&fﬁi%gf@ﬁ
and cash equivalents i CRd) 548 109,784 (124,582)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—BZRER
1 January Iﬁﬁ%{g% 127,430 247,542
Effect of foreign exchange rate EREEH I TE
changes 4,025 4,470
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=—A=+—82
31 December R kR e FEY 241,239 127,430
Analysis of cash and cash BRERBEEENIN
equivalents
Bank balances and cash R1TEEBRRE 24 241,239 127,430
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ey EELE

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (# 2 =F— NF+=-F=+—HI F/Z)

Attributable to owners of the Company

LN TN 3
Currency Capital Convertible Non-
Share Share  translation Capital Contributed  redemption  Fair value notes  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve loss Total interests equity
Lt e | TER FER
B RMEE % EERE  4)EB % OVERE  FERE  ZnE8 Gh s EReE
RMBO00 ~ RMB'O00  RMB000  RMB000  ARMB000  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000 RMB000  RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETL  AREFL  AREFL  AREFL  AREFL  AREFL  ARETR  AREFT  AREFZ
At1 January 2016 RZF-~5-A-A 14,384 798,198 (116,794) 861 301,799 82 (253) 364,185 (1,197,990) 164,472 20,191 184,663
Loss for the year FEFR - - - - - - - - (73,111) (73,11) - (73,711)
Other comprehensive ~ FEEM2EFE -
loss for the year:
Exchange loss on BEGNEEL
translation of SRRz ELER
financial statement of
foreign operations - - (125,132) - - - - - - (125,132) - (125,132)
Total comprehensive FE2EHELEE
loss for the year - - (125,132) - - - - - (78,711)  (198,843) - (198,843)
Issuance of shares RARTAREERES
upon conversion of &3 (Hi#31)
convertible note
(Note 31) 2244 2,184,707 - - - - - (364,185) - 1,843,766 - 1,843,766
Asat31December ~ WZE-AE
2016 tZA=1-8 37,628 2,982,905 (241,926) 861 301,799 82 (253) - (1,211,701) 1,809,395 20,191 1,829,586
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
CE D TE

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (# 2 = —NF+=A=+—HILF)F)

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARRERAEE
Currency Capital Convertible Non-
Share Share  translation Captal  Contributed ~ redemption Fair value notes  Accumulated controling Total
capital premium reserve fesenve surplus resernve reserve reserve loss Total nterests equity
g EXED AR FER
Bx KHEE BE  ATRE  SAE% R OTHERER  FEBE  ZHER B B ESER
RMB000 ~ RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RAMBOO0  AMBO00  AMBOO0  AMBO00  AMBO00  RMBO000  RMB000 RMBOO0  RMB'000
NEETT  NEETT  AEETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARRTT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2015 RZE-15-F-A 12,452 610,850 (35,774) 861 301,799 82 (788) 395,182 (1,082,865) 201,799 20,192 221,991
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - - - (18128 (15,129) (1) (11512
Other comprehensive ~ EEEM2EFE -
loss for the year:
Reclassfication LETHIESHEE
adjustment of fair BATEREIER
value reserve on HERE
disposal of available-
for-sale financial
assets - - - - - - 535 - - 535 - 535
Exchange loss on RESNER IHR
translation of RESER
financial statement of
foreign operations - - (81,020) - - - - - - (81,020) - (81,020)
Total comprenensive loss £ 2 F 1A%
for the year - - (81,020) - - - 535 - (115125 (195610) (1) (195611)
Issuance of shares RABTEREERES
upon conversion o FRf3 (431
convertible note
(Note 31) 1,932 187,348 - - - - - (30,997) - 158,283 - 158,263
As at 31 December RE-1F
2015 TZA=1-H 14,384 798,198 (116,794) 861 301,799 82 (259) 364,185 (1,197,990) 164,472 20,191 184,663
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (2= —NF+=A=+—HILFZE)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Talent Property Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda and domiciled
in Hong Kong. The addresses of its registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the corporate information section to the annual report.
The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the principal subsidiaries
are including (i) real estate development, (ii) property
investment and (iii) property management.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016 were approved for issue by the board
of directors on 30 March 2017.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements on pages
60 to 196 have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”),
term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong

which collective

Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). These
consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VPN

A N =

BTSRRI RE

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are summarised below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented unless otherwise stated. The
adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and the
impacts on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, if any, are disclosed in note 3.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except
for investment properties, financial instruments
classified as available-for-sale, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and early
redemption option embedded in convertible
notes which are stated as fair value as explained
in the accounting policies set out below. The
measurement bases are fully described in the
accounting policies below.

Non-current assets held for sale are stated at the
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell (see note 2.23).
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (2= —NF+=A=+—HILFZE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, at the end of reporting period. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgment
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VPN

A N =

BTSRRI RE

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries and associate (see notes 2.3 and 2.4
below) made up to 31 December.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the
date that control commences until the date that
control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the company, and in respect of which the group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the group can elect to measure any
non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (2= —NF+=A=+—HILFZE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the company. Loans from holders
of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented
as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position in accordance with note 2.17
depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

=

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (=%

2.

—NFEFZA=1—HIFFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying
amounts at the date when control is lost, (ii)
derecognises the carrying amount of any non-
controlling interests in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income
attributable to them),
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration

and (iii) recognises the

received and the fair value of any retained interest,
with any resulting difference being recognised as
a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the
Group. When assets of the subsidiary are carried
at revalued amounts or fair values and the related
cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity, the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained
earnings as specified by applicable HKFRSSs).
The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement” or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or a jointly controlled
entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (B2 =F—NF+=A=1+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

In consolidated financial statements, acquisition
of subsidiaries (other than those under common
control) is accounted for by applying the acquisition
method. This involves the estimation of fair value
of all identifiable assets and liabilities, including
contingent liabilities of the subsidiary, at the
acquisition date, regardless of whether or not they
were recorded in the financial statements of the
subsidiary prior to acquisition. On initial recognition,
the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are
included in the consolidated statement of financial
position at their fair values, which are also used
as the bases for subsequent measurement in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or
included in a disposal group. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividends received and receivable at
the reporting date. All dividends whether received
out of the investee’s pre or post-acquisition profits
are recognised in the Company’s profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VPN

A N =

BTSRRI RE

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method, unless it is classified as held for
sale or included in a disposal group. Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recorded
at cost and adjusted for any excess of the Group’s
share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net as sets over the cost of
the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment
is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the
Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-
tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in profit or loss
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, whereas the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the class of other comprehensive
income in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (& Z—%

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

24

Associates (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

For investments in associates recognised using the
equity method, the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of the
investment as a whole with its carrying amount
and recognised in profit or loss. A reversal of
impairment losses is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to
profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VPN
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BTSRRI RE

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5

Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in thousands of units of Renminbi
(RMB’000), which is different from the functional
currency of the Company, Hong Kong Dollars
(HK$). As the Renminbi (“RMB”) denominated
transactions and balance became a more
significant component to the consolidated financial
statements, the management considers that it is
more appropriate to use RMB as the presentation
currency for the Group’s.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of the
individual entity using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of
the reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and
liabilities are recognised in the profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (& Z—%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

Foreign currency translation (continued)

In the consolidated financial statements,
all individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation currency,
Assets and
liabilities have been translated into Renminbi at

have been converted into Renminbi.

Income
and expenses have been converted into Renminbi

the closing rates at the reporting date.

at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates, or at the average rates over the reporting
period provided that the exchange rates do not
fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from
this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in the currency translation reserve in equity.

When a foreign operation is sold, such cumulative
amount of the exchange differences are reclassified
from equity to profit or loss as part of the gain or
loss on sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of
goods and net of rebates and discounts. Provided
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised as
follows:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BTSRRI RE

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised
when the risks and rewards of properties are
transferred to the purchasers, which is when
the construction of relevant properties has been
completed and the properties are delivered to the
purchasers pursuant to the sale agreement and
collectability of related receivables is reasonably
assured. To the extent that the Group has to
perform further work on the properties already
delivered to the purchasers, the relevant expenses
shall be recognised simultaneously. Deposits and
instalments received on properties sold prior to
the date of revenue recognition are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position
under current liabilities as receipt in advance from
customers.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Rental income of property leasing under operating
leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms.

Service income is recognised when services are
rendered.

Property management service income is recognised
on a pro-rata basis over the life of the agreement
corresponding to notional delivery of the service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (2= —NF+=A=+—HILFZE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation on other assets, is provided to write
off the cost or revalued amounts less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method, at the following rates per
annum:

Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and office equipments

Motor vehicles

The asset’s residual values, depreciation methods
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other costs, such as
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Impairment of non-financial assets

Plant and equipment and interests in associate and
subsidiaries are subject to impairment testing.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under the Group’s accounting policy, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease according to that policy.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of
money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As
a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating
unit level.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (B2 =F—NF+=A=1+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

As assessment is made at the end of each
reporting periods as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognised impairment
loss may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset. A
reversal of impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals
are recognised, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance
with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields and/
or for capital appreciation, and that is not occupied
by the Group, is classified as investment property.
Property that is currently being constructed or
developed for future use as investment property is
classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under
operating leases. Land held under operating leases
are classified and accounted for as investment
property when the rest of the definition of
investment property is met (see note 2.10).
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9

Investment properties (continued)

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
property is measured at fair value. Where fair value
of investment property under construction is not
reliably measurable, the property is measured at
cost until the earlier of the date construction is
completed or the date at which fair value becomes
reliably measurable.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are charged to profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value
or from the retirement or disposal of an investment
property is recognised in profit or loss.

If an item of inventories becomes an investment
property because its use has been changed, any
difference resulting between the carrying amount
and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer
is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (2= —NF+=A=+—HILFZE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a

series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed

period of time in return for a payment or a series of

payments. Such a determination is made based on

an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement

and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes

the legal form of a lease.

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases, with the following

2.

FESHBERME &)

2.10 #HE

HASERE - BLHEIRED
TEHRAEASEEENER -
B —F R — @B - AR
R (FPR—EARFHEERSF)
BRskeE—EEE - bl HE
TIERRHERNDME 2 F AT
h AT wRLHFHEREAR

()

FEEHELEES K

AEBRBEESHEMHE
BRENBAE D AR LD
BEETAKENEET
RBEMERH - KEAK
BEEENBAI D AR K
CHREEEAEENEE
VI SEEHEE - ETS
BIERIN -

exceptions:

- property held under operating leases — BiELaHERE
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definition of an investment property is E 2 WESRTE R
classified as an investment property MESBEEERED

on a property-by-property basis and,
if classified as investment property,
is accounted for as if held under a
finance lease; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Leases (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Classification of assets leased to the
Group (continued)

- land held for own use under an
operating lease, the fair value of
which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building
situated thereon at the inception of
the lease, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless
the building is clearly held under an
operating lease. For these purposes,
the inception of the lease is the time
that the lease was first entered into
by the Group, or taken over from the
previous lessee.

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use
of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms except where an
alternative basis is more representative of
the time pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased assets. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rental are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges as the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases
are included in investment properties in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
Rental receivable under the operating leases
are credited to profit or loss on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (& Z—%

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11

Inventories

(i)

(ii)

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Net realisable value takes into account the
price ultimately expected to be realised, less
applicable variable selling expenses and
anticipated cost to completion.

Cost comprises both the prepaid lease
payments for the land and development
cost of the property. Development cost of
properties comprises construction costs,
capitalised borrowing costs and other direct
development cost according to the Group’s
accounting policy and directly attributable
cost incurred during the development
period. On completion, the properties under
development are transferred to completed
properties held for sale. Properties under
development are classified as current assets
unless those will not be realised in one
normal operating cycle.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties remaining unsold at
the end of each reporting period are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost comprises development costs
attributable to the unsold properties.

Net realisable value is determined by
reference to the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable estimated selling expenses to

make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VPN

7 N =

B RS R AR MY Rt

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12

2.13

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition.

Financial assets

The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets
other than interests in subsidiaries and associate
are set out below. Financial assets are classified
into the following categories:

loans and receivables

- available-for-sale financial assets

- financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”)

- early redemption option embedded in
convertible notes

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired and where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and
only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular
way purchases of financial assets are recognised
on trade date. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the
case of investments not at fair value through profit
or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (2= —NF+=A=+—HILFZE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the

rights to receive cash flows from the investments

expire or are transferred and substantially all of

the risks and rewards of ownership have been

transferred.

The Group has the following types of financial
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assets:

(i)  Loans and receivables () ERENFE
Loans and receivables are non-derivative ERKREWSRIEBRLBE
financial assets with fixed or determinable BB Th 3% T {8 M B8 & E 3k
payments that are not quoted in an AEERIBZIFTES
active market. Loans and receivables are BE - ERKREWFKIARE
subsequently measured at amortised cost BERAE R R K178
using the effective interest method, less BCAS R E DR E S B R
any impairment losses. Amortised cost is 2o BN A TINERE
calculated taking into account any discount fa] Yo B 4T 5 ok s 1B 1& BT
or premium on acquisition and includes B UBEEBRERME
fees that are an integral part of the effective RZGEAFEEHD 2
interest rate and transaction cost. BH -

(i)  Available-for-sale financial assets (i) TRAELHEE

Non-derivative financial assets that do
not qualify for inclusion in any of the other
categories of financial assets are classified
as available-for-sale financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VPN
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Financial assets (continued)

(ii)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)
All financial assets within this category are
subsequently measured at fair value. Gain or
loss arising from a change in the fair value
excluding any dividend and interest income
is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in
the fair value reserve for available-of-
sale financial assets in equity, except for
impairment losses and foreign exchange
gains and losses on monetary assets,
until the financial asset is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.
Interest calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in profit or
loss.

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary
assets denominated in a foreign currency
is determined in that foreign currency
and translated at the spot rate at the
reporting date. The change in fair value
attributable to translation differences that
result from a change in amortised cost of
the asset is recognised in profit or loss,
and other changes are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at
each reporting date subsequent to initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (2= —NF+=A=+—HILFZE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. XESTEHREBE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.13 Financial assets (continued) 213 sREE (&)
(iii)  Financial asset at fair value through (i) HURFETABZHEH

profit or loss BE
Financial assets at FVTPL include financial AR EFAERAN S F
assets held for trading and financial assets EEREREEEN SR
designated at FVTPL. B ENEEIEUNAFE

SAARGENEREE

A financial asset is classified as held for ERATERENBRLT
trading if: ZIETREESWIER
EEE

. it has been acquired principally for . FEEBMNRATE
the purpose of selling in the near REALE
future;

. it is a part of an identified portfolio of . EREBEMNIHR
financial instruments that the Group eRTHRHBAE 2 —
manages together and has a recent HokBEEBRET
actual pattern of short-term profit- T ERREE
taking; or A sk

. it is a derivative that is not designated . NIZE =l (=F 2
and effective as a hedging AgemiTETA -
instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VPN

A N =

BTSRRI RE

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Financial assets (continued)

(iii)

Financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss (continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset
held for trading may be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing
one or more embedded derivatives,
and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability)
to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value arising
from remeasurement recognised directly
in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. The net gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss includes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (B2 =F—NF+=A=1+—HILFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESTHHEMEME &)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Financial assets (continued)

213 EREE (&)

(iv) Early redemption option embedded in
convertible notes

The derivative component of the convertible
notes is recognised initially at fair value. At
the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or loss on
remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other
than financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss and early redemption option embedded
in convertible notes are reviewed to determine
whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual
financial assets includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about one or
more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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A

BTSRRI RE

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Loss events in respect of a group of financial
assets include observable data indicating that there
is a measureable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from the group of financial assets. Such
observable data includes but not limited to adverse
changes in the payment status of debtors in the
group and, national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the assets in the
group.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured and recognised as follows:

(i Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss on loans and receivables
carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The amount of the loss is recognised in
profit or loss of the period in which the
impairment occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (2= —NF+=A=+—HILFZE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Financial assets (continued)

2.

FESHBERME &)

213 EREE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (continued) SHEERE (E)

() Financial assets carried at amortised cost (i) 1L K B2 & A&
(continued) E (&)
If, in subsequent period, the amount of NE% 7B (SREE
the impairment loss decreases and the B B > FER
decrease can be related objectively to an EERE L EHES
event occurring after the impairment was B4 - BIBEE:BEMER R
recognised, the previously recognised BER HEBLOTEFES
impairment loss is reversed to the extent BB ECEmMEBRAN A
that it does not result in a carrying amount B0 HE R FERRE
of the financial asset exceeding what the B AN o B[O &%
amortised cost would have been had the REABBARIBR AR
impairment not been recognised at the date 2o
the impairment is reversed. The amount of
the reversal is recognised in profit or loss of
the period in which the reversal occurs.

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets (i) AR ETHEE

When a decline in the fair value of an
available-for-sale financial asset has been
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity and there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
an amount shall be reclassified from equity
to profit and loss as impairment loss.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

Reversals in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-
sale are not recognised in profit or loss.
The subsequent increase in fair value is
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Impairment losses in respect of debt
securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised. Reversal
of impairment losses in such circumstances
are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets carried at cost

The amount of impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the
present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (2= —NF+=A=+—HILFZE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(ii)

Financial assets carried at cost (continued)

Financial assets other than early redemption
option embedded in convertible notes
and trade receivables that are stated at
amortised cost, impairment losses are
written off against the corresponding
assets directly. Where the recovery of trade
receivables is considered doubtful but not
remote, the impairment losses for doubtful
receivables are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that
recovery of trade receivables is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade receivables directly
and any amounts held in the allowance
account in respect of that receivable are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment losses in respect of unquoted
equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current
and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax
expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the reporting date
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
tax losses available to be carried forward as well
as other unused tax credits, to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit, including existing
taxable temporary differences, will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be
utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (B2 =F—NF+=A=1+—HILFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESTHHEMEME &)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.14 Accounting for income taxes (continued)

2.14 FBHZEFHE (8)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each end of the reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
the liability is settled or the asset realised, provided
they are enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities or deferred tax assets for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than
through sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESTHRBE @)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Accounting for income taxes (continued) 2.14 FiBH &5 % (&)
Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities RRERIEEESBECES - 15
are recognised in profit or loss, or in other PEFER SMEHEEFEER
comprehensive income or directly in equity if they Hbh 2R A Sz R BR kG
relate to items that are charged or credited to other AZHEE® AEETHME
comprehensive income or directly in equity. YA S b 2 P TERR, ©
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are BB IR E E R VB IB B (EE
presented in net if, and only if, FEATERAEREZ -

(@)  the Group has the legally enforceable right @ ATEEEEREERESHE
to set off the recognised amounts; and ZETEREN &

(b)  intends either to settle on a net basis, or (b) EEIVFRELE KB
to realise the asset and settle the liability ZEE - RREEZAE -
simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and REEETUTBERNFEZT

deferred tax liabilities in net if, and only if, BEHRBEERBELEHRBERE

(@)  the entity has a legally enforceable right to @ HZEBKEBHITEAB
set off current tax assets against current tax BN ERRE I8 & = BA BN BR 18
liabilities; and BEHE &

()  the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax (b) EXEBIBEERREERIE
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the BERBERE—HISLE
same taxation authority on either: MA TN ER—IEREWR Z

FRS% -
0] the same taxable entity; or () Fl — R E RS
=k
(i) different taxable entities which (i FERZEREHAE
intend either to settle current tax EHEBENBEER
liabilities and assets on a net basis, W 5] K B8 IR AE 5 18
or to realise the assets and settle BEHIEEZIRRK
the liabilities simultaneously, in each BRF] - DAFREE %
future period in which significant EERBBIEAR
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or HEENRKFEER
assets are expected to be settled or BENRBERAEZ
recovered. TRIERTIEL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2016)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.15

2.16

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is determined using the nominal value of
shares that have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they
are incremental costs directly attributable to the
equity transaction.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.
Contributions are recognised as an expense as
they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
A

B RS R AR MY Rt

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Employee benefits (continued)

Retirement benefits (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain percentage of its payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. Contributions
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
employees render services during the year. The
Group’s obligations under the plans is limited to
the fixed percentage contributions payable. Other
than the monthly contributions, the Group has no
further obligation for the payment of retirement and
other post retirement benefits of its employees.
The assets of these plans are held separately from
those of the Group in independently administrated
funds managed by the PRC government.

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the
cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a
result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed
formal plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (B2 =F—NF+=A=1+—HILFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESTHHEMEME &)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.17 Financial liabilities

217 s®EE

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade
payables, accruals and other payables, borrowings
and convertible notes.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All interest related charges are
recognised in accordance with Group’s accounting
policy for borrowing cost (see note 2.22).

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Financial liabilities (continued)

Convertible notes

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity
share capital at the option of the holder, where
the number of shares that would be issued on
conversion and the value of the consideration that
would be received at that time do not vary, are
accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability component and an
equity component.

At initial recognition the liability components of
the convertible notes is measured as the present
value of the future interest and principal payments,
discounted at the market rate of interest applicable
at the time of initial recognition to similar liabilities
that do not have a conversion option. Any excess
of proceeds over the amount initially recognised
as the liability component is recognised as the
equity component. Transaction costs that relate to
the issue of a compound financial instrument are
allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in
profit or loss on the liability component is calculated
using the effective interest method. The equity
component is recognised in the capital reserve until
either the note is converted or redeemed.

If the note is converted, the convertible notes
reserve, together with the carrying amount of the
liability component at the time of conversion, is
transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued. If the note is
redeemed at maturity, the convertible notes reserve
is released directly to retained profits.

Other financial liabilities

Trade payables and accruals and other payables
are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method, unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

HAMESEEER QT 2016 F Fi

2.

FESHERBE (8

217 @B E (&)

CIE-J &

HAEATEER A RRERER
R MARBBREZETZHR
MEE KAz KEBEBEERT
BZABRREE JIAERER
TERAAR B8 ENE

S A
mnap’r °

RYIGHERE  AAREERZE
ERDERENB A 2R
Bft 8 ROTHERRZERAD
SRR ETEL R ERE L
BOBE - SRR L P
RARABEHY 2 RER SR
Mo FRBETEAERMIAEZ
RBRATIRABHRIBZ DL
PN ERBERERED

BERD ERIZEHA AT AR
REERONBSERZNEX
HERAERNEEFE - #ah
DRENHETHER EEEH
SEELBRKBEESIE

MEBRER IR ARG
BRIBERD R 2 REE
BRERANEMDGE  ERH
BT ZRE - MRED K
ERER - AIRRERMEEE R
EIEREEH

Rt eME &

EM R - BRTERREMEN
RIBNTZ AR R FERR - HR
IR B R M K DA 35 B AR 5
B BRIFMRTEIAN HIIF
AT AR AR e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (B2 =F—NF+=A=1+—HILFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESTHHEMEME &)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.18 Provisions and contingent liabilities

2.18 BERIAREE

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the group
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course
of the allocation of purchase price to the assets
and liabilities acquired in a business combination.
They are initially measured at fair value at the date
of acquisition and subsequently measured at the
higher of the amount that would be recognised in a
comparable provision as described above and the
amount initially recognised less any accumulated
amortisation, if appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Financial guarantees issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within accruals and other payables.
Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised if and when it becomes probable that
the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group
under the guarantee and the amount of that claim
on the Group is expected to exceed the current
carrying amount i.e. the amount initially recognised
less accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (2= —NF+=A=+—HILFZE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

or

the party is a person or a close member of

that person’s family and that person

(i)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent
of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

the entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member);

the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Related parties (continued)

(b) (continued)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are

those family members who may be expected

to influence, or be influenced by, that person

in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (2= —NF+=A=+—HILFZE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. TEETEHRBME @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Segment reporting 2.21 SEHKE

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major products and service
lines.

The executive directors have identified the Group’s
three (2015: three) products and service lines as
operating segments as follows:

(@) Property development consists of the sales
of properties which were completed;

(b) Property investment consists of the leasing
of properties; and

(c) Property management consists of the
provision of property management services.

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the product and service lines
requires different resources as well as marketing
approaches. All inter-segment transfers are carried
out at arms length prices.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Segment reporting (continued)

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs, except that part of
operating lease charges, fair value changes on
derivative financial instruments, share of profit/
(loss) of an associate, part of finance costs and
corporate income and expenses which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment are not included in arriving at
the operating results of the operating segment. In
addition, the segment assets include all assets with
the exception of interests in an associate, available-
for-sale financial assets and other corporate
assets. Segment liabilities include all liabilities with
the exception of convertible notes, deferred tax
liabilities and other corporate liabilities.

Segment assets are all operating assets that are
employed by a segment in its operating activities
and that either directly attributable to the segment
or can be allocated to the segment on a reasonable
basis. In addition, corporate assets which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment are not allocated to a segment,
which primarily applies to the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities are all operating liabilities
that are employed by a segment in its operating
activities and that either directly attributable to
the segment or can be allocated to the segment
on a reasonable basis. In addition, corporate
liabilities which are not directly attributable to the
business activities of any operating segment are
not allocated to a segment, which primarily applies
to the Group’s headquarter.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2016)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.22

2.23

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing
costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are
being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are being undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are complete.

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified
as held for sale if it is highly probable that its
carrying amount will be recovered through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use and
the asset (or disposal group) is available for sale in
its present condition. A disposal group is a group
of assets to be disposal of together as a group in a
single transaction, and liabilities directly associated
with those assets that will be transferred in the
transaction.

2.

e R AR M R

(BE=F—r 4= A=+ —AIFE)

FESHEEEBE &)

2.22

2.23

BEA

Wi - ZRARETMNEERE
EMEEZEERA  REki
RN EEERRTEREMHR
FHIRAEAR - SEREER
FERFEEINREAELAHE
MR BE - HibEERERE
ERIIER

fEERAREBEELRS B8
RS B2 5 B BE BB TE P 2 3 R
EMAZERTIEETTHHEER
b FRABEBEEMANZ —#
Do EEREREERAREN
BREEMAZBAR D EHT
EEKE - THBEERARER
1t e

FFHEZFRBEE

WIEREEE (HhEMAR) 2k
B A] BB B EH B R 5 M IF %5
BEBYE ARZEE (S
SR 2HRBAIHEE - 8
DERFFELE - HEER/—
HRE-—RSHBTHEZEEM
Al AREBNRR ZEEZEH
EEREEMB2AE -

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2016




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. XESTHRBE @)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Non-current assets held for sale (continued) 2.23 FHEHEZIRBEE (&)
Immediately before classification as held for sale, BEERSEABIELSH  ERD
the measurement of the non-current assets (and all BENMEEARRNZAERB Y EE
individual assets and liabilities in a disposal group) FEBERSBRIREEHBRE
is brought up-to-date in accordance with the FETE - B2 RUIL DB R
accounting policies before the classification. Then EREBEZEER FRDEE
on initial classification as held for sale and until g EARRAREEEATE
disposal, the non-current assets, or the disposal MEERAZRIEERER - WE
group, are recognised at the lower of their carrying M BIERIELE - TEEE
amount and fair value less costs to sell. Investment KPR R 2FT I IR BT 2 o

properties, even if held for sale, would continue to
be measured in accordance with the policies set
out elsewhere in note 2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (2= —NF+=A=+—HILFZE)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferred Accounts

Amendments to Accounting for Acquisitions of
HKFRS 11 Interests in Joint Operations

Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable Methods
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 of Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Amendments to Annual Improvements 2012-2014
HKFRSs cycle

The application of these amendments has had no material
impact on the disclosures in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

The Group has not early adopted the following new and
revised standards, amendments or interpretation that have
been issued but are not yet effective.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and related
Amendments'

HKFRS 16 Leases?

Amendments to Sales or Contributions of Assets
HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28

between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure initiative*

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses*

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (B2 =F—NF+=A=1+—HILFE)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets,
financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and
impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the
Group are:

° All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair
value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets,
and that have contractual terms that give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”). All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair value at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. BRHAFITIRLIEITEBMER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING £ZA (®)

STANDARDS (continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit
or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects
of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as fair value through profit or loss is
presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under
HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires
an entity to account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

HARMEEEERAT 2016F FiF

ERMBREENFIREMTA

(&)

At ERERR AT E AERE
ZERMBEMNS  EEMBRSE
EAFORREANERAEE
GFZEERBREMELZ AT
BEEPEENEMEZHKARNZ
I BRIER E AL 2 A P RERR
ZREEERARESHTZEHENX
SR B A 2 &5t 88 A AIE R
e eRMABEERBRMELZ
RYPEZHERIGENORE
B RIEF LG ERIFHI9
% MERBRATEFAAEBRZ
TREEZBEEATEEHER
RIBEmAZT »

AREMEERE  BEVHKR
SHEAERRERTR—BHE
BRARN - MIEREFLES
ERERIL D HENEER
REARY - ZEBEEBKE
AHRE—BERASEEALE
ERANRESEMRNEREE
BR 2 B AR B 1) HER I
PREARMEERR - RO -
EEBRAZERRC I BHFERE
REEEMHREBDEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (2= —NF+=A=+—HILFZE)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2016,
application of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material
impact on the classification and measurement of the
Group’s financial assets. The Group’s available-for-sale
investments, including those currently stated at cost
less impairment, will either be measured as fair value
through profit or loss or be designated as FVTOCI (subject
to fulfillment of the designation criteria). In addition,
the expected credit loss model may result in earlier
recognition of credit losses.

However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of HKFRS 9 until the Group
performs a detailed review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

A N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

3.

K b

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to
a customer.

The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs.
In June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS
15 to address the implementation issues on identifying
performance obligations, application guidance on principal
versus agent and licences of intellectual property, and
transition. The amendments are also intended to help
ensure a more consistent application when entities
adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity
of applying the standard. The Group expects to adopt
HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 and is currently assessing
the impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (B2 =F—NF+=A=1+—HILFE)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and
HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets
out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most leases.
The standard includes two recognition exemptions for
lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term
leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee
will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the
lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use
the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-
of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the
definition of investment property in HKAS 40. The lease
liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest
on the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments.
Lessees will be required to separately recognise the
interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation
expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also
be required to remeasure the lease liability upon the
occurrence of certain events, such as change in the lease
term and change in future lease payments resulting from
a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount of
the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS
16 is substantially unchanged from the accounting under
HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases
using the same classification principle as in HKAS 17 and
distinguish between operating leases and finance leases.
The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 on 1 January
2019 and is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 16
upon adoption.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

4.

K b

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experiences and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (B2 =F—NF+=A=1+—HILFE)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(i)

(ii)

Income taxes and deferred taxation

Some subsidiaries of the Group operate in the
PRC and are subject to income tax in the PRC.
Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such difference will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provision in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

PRC land appreciation taxes

Some subsidiaries of the Group are subject to
land appreciation taxes in the PRC. However, the
implementation and settlement of these taxes
varies among various tax jurisdictions in cities of
the PRC, and those subsidiaries have not finalised
all of their land appreciation taxes calculation and
payments with any local tax authorities in the PRC.
Accordingly, significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of the land appreciation
taxes. The Group recognised these land
appreciation taxes based on management’s best
estimates according to the interpretation of the tax
rules. The final tax outcome could be different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, and these
differences will impact the income tax expense and
tax provisions in the periods in which such taxes
have been finalised with local tax authorities.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(iii)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the
directors have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the amount
of RMB247,000,000 (2015: RMB284,601,000) of
the Group’s investment properties will be recovered
through sale. Therefore, the directors have
determined that the “sale” presumption set out
in the amendments to HKAS 12 is not rebutted.
For these investment properties situated in PRC
with the fair value of RMB247,000,000 (2015:
RMB284,601,000),
deferred taxes on changes in fair value as those

the Group has recognised

properties are subject to land appreciation taxes
and enterprise income taxes upon disposal as
appropriate.

For other investment properties amounting to
RMB688,000,000 (2015: RMB678,000,000),
they are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. For
these investment properties, the presumption is
rebutted. The Group has recognised deferred taxes
on changes in fair value as those properties are
subjected to enterprise income taxes.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (B2 =F—NF+=A=1+—HILFE)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(iv)

v)

Depreciation, useful lives and residual values
of plant and equipment

The Group’s management exercises its judgement
in estimating the useful lives and residual values
of the depreciable plant and equipment other than
CIP. The estimated useful lives and residual values
reflect the management’s estimate of the periods
the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of these assets.

The Group depreciates its plant and equipment
other than CIP in accordance with the accounting
policies stated in note 2.7. The carrying amount of
plant and equipment is disclosed in note 15.

Estimates for net realisable value of properties
under development and completed properties
held for sale

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amounts
of properties under development and completed
properties held for sale are approximately
RMB1,299,920,000 (2015:
RMB1,466,005,000)
RMB355,407,000
RMB209,160,000),
assesses the carrying amounts of properties

approximately
and approximately
(2015:
respectively. The Group

approximately

under development and properties held for sale
according to their net realisable value based on the
realisability of these properties. Net realisable value
for properties under development is determined
by reference to management’s estimates of the
selling price based on prevailing market conditions,
less applicable variable selling expenses and the
anticipated costs to completion (including land
costs). Net realisable value for properties held for
sale is determined by reference to management’s
estimates of the selling price based on prevailing
market conditions, less applicable variable selling

expenses.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VPN

7 N =

B RS R AR MY Rt

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Estimated impairment on receivables

The Group’s management assesses the
collectability of receivables. This estimate is based
on the past collection, credit history and ageing
analysis of the Group’s receivables, as well as the
current economy and market condition. Impairment
on receivables is made based on the estimation
of the future cash flow expected to arise and the
original effective interest rate in order to calculate
the present value. The Group’s management
determines impairment of its receivables on a
regular basis and reassesses the impairment of
receivables at the reporting date.

Impairment of interests in associate

The Group’s management follows the guidance of
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
measurement, in determining whether there are
indicates of impairment on interests in associate.

Based on the Group’s assessment there is no
requirement to provide for any allowance for
impairment in value of interests in associate. The
Group’s carrying amount of interests in associate
at 31 December 2016 was approximately
RMB510,835,000 (2015:
RMB572,464,000).

approximately
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(vi)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (B2 =F—NF+=A=1+—HILFE)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(viii) Estimation of fair value of investment properties

(ix)

Investment properties are revalued at the end of
each reporting period based on the appraised
market value provided by independent professional
qualified valuers. Such valuations were based
on certain assumptions, which are subject to
uncertainty and might materially differ from the
actual results. In making the estimation, information
from current prices in an active market for similar
properties is considered and assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the
end of each reporting period are used.

Recognition and allocation of construction
cost on properties under development

Development costs of properties are recorded
as properties under development during the
construction stage and will be transferred to
completed properties held for sale upon completion.
Apportionment of these costs will be recognised in
the profit or loss upon the recognition of the sale
of the properties. Before the final settlement of the
development costs and other costs relating to the
sale of properties, these costs are accrued by the
Group based on management’s best estimate.

When developing properties, the Group may divide
the development projects into phases. Specific
costs directly related to the development of a
phase are recorded as the cost of such phase.
Costs that are common to phases are allocated to
individual phases based on the estimated saleable
area of the entire project.

When the final settlement of costs and the related
cost allocation is different from the initial estimates,
any increase or decrease in the development costs
and other costs would affect the profit or loss in
future years.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

The Group is organised into three (2015: three) business

7 EREH
AKRERT=ME(Z2—H5F: =)
EBEL - B AEHARSERTRR
RMREBERREAMER R AL
BEBREARE -

units, based on which information is prepared and reported
to the Group’s chief decision makers, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of performance.

AEB 2 2ERAIMED M2 ERIIR

Information of the Group’s operating and reportable

R

segments are shown as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2016

mF -

BE-ZE-—XF+-A=1+—HLEFE

Property Property Property
development investment management Total
MERRE MERE MEERE k]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AR¥Tn AREFR
Reportable segment revenue A& 5 Bl
External revenue HNRU S 477,758 23,476 5,530 506,764
Inter-segment revenue D EE U - - 2,003 2,003
477,758 23,476 7,533 508,767
Reportable segment profit/ | E D EER/
(loss) (&1|) 134,524 (27,420) (1,710) 105,394
— Business tax and other levies — &% R EMEE (17,278) (2,826) (440) (20,544)
— Compensation paid - BfE (205) = = (205)
— Fair vale changes on —REWMENFE
investment properties o - (27,836) - (27,836)
— Finance cost —BERAR - (17,523) - (17,523)
— Legal and professional fee - EEREEER (4,698) = = (4,698)
— Distribution cost — DA A (18,872) - - (18,872)
— Reversal of impairment - REZERPME
loss of properties BB ERE
under development 75,019 - - 75,019
— Reversal of impairment —REFHELE
loss of completed ZEBRTIYE
properties held for sale H R EE R 5,310 = = 5,310
— Reversal of over-provision —BOAFRE
of compensation in fhERE
previous years 2,807 - - 2,807
— Sundry income — HIEWA 90 510 - 600
Reportable segment assets AmENHEE 1,894,375 945,753 10,895 2,851,023
Additions to non-current FNREZIETRE
segment assets during the year & E - 235 - 235
Reportable segment liabilities AREoHas (788,120) (477,420) (3,101)  (1,268,641)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(BE=F—AF+=A=+—HILFE)

DEER (&)

(For the year ended 31 December 2016)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5.

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE-_Z—TmE+-_A=+—RIEE

Property Property Property
development investment  management Total
MEEE MERE MEER Rk
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Reportable segment revenue A& 2 &&=
External revenue MR AR 334,448 27,395 4,147 365,990
Inter-segment revenue o BF e - - 2,677 2,677
334,448 27,395 6,824 368,667
Reportable segment loss AHmE D IEE (89,281) (120,994) (957) (211,232)
— Business tax and other levies — &% KEMEE (23,815) (3,765) (378) (27,958)
— Compensation paid — BRHE (6,375) - - (6,375)
— Impairment loss of —FEHEZERT
completed properties MERRBEBE
held for sale (3,945) - - (3,945)
— Impairment loss of properties — ZEEHRYEL
under development REEE (112,895) - - (112,895)
— Fair vale changes on —REMENTE
investment properties ey - (152,735) - (152,735)
— Loss on disposal of - HEREMEY
investment properties EE - (1,609) - (1,609)
— Finance cost — BERA - (8,045) - (8,045)
— Legal and professional fee - ZEREEEBR (20,890) - - (20,890)
— Distribution cost — DA (12,461) - - (12,461)
— Reversal of over-provision — BOAFRE
of compensation in TERE
previous years 10,988 - - 10,988
— Sundry income . 21PN 10 20,682 - 20,692
Reportable segment assets AREDHBEE 1,794,542 987,468 3,911 2,785,921
Additions to non-current FRARNEZIERE
segment assets during the year 7 EfEE 113 56,435 - 56,548
Reportable segment liabilities AREHHEE (589,398) (427,015) (3,780)  (1,020,193)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. oHER @
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and T AREBIZARE R EEDIHE D
results by reportable and operating segments: W R EE DT
2016 2015
“E-RE ZE—1#F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFIT AREFIT
Revenue Uy &5
Total revenue from reportable segments EE e W 508,767 368,667
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 73 U 2 1 BE (2,003) (2,677)
Consolidated revenue e W 506,764 365,990
Profit/(loss) wBF L (E18)
Reportable segment profit/(loss) AHEsEEN S (E8) 105,394 (211,232)
Elimination of inter-segment profits 53 5 A 4 K 58 = -
Reportable segment profit/(loss) derive REAEBINARER
from Group’s external customers Al E D EEF S (E5i8) 105,394 (211,232)
Operating lease charges ERES W (1,451) (1,625)
Fair value changes on derivative financial FTESPMTAATEES
instruments (4,913) (2,937)
Share of (loss)/profit of an associate SMaEERE (BE), w5 (67,407) 36,966
Finance costs A& AN (52,495) (126,124)
Unallocated expenses ROEHZ (42,028) (36,594)
Unallocated income KB A 7,934 150,111
Loss before income tax KrET{S T Al & 1B (54,966) (191,435)
Income tax (expense)/credit Frigsi (FA%) /#H& (18,745) 76,309
Loss for the year FEEIE (73,711) (115,126)
Reportable segment assets A HRE D EEE 2,851,023 2,785,921
Corporate assets NEIBE 785,787 725,364
Group assets EBEE 3,636,810 3,511,285
Reportable segment liabilities AHEHEEE (1,268,641) (1,020,193
Corporate liabilities NRBE (538,583) (2,306,429)
Group liabilities SEaE (1,807,224) (3,326,622)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (B2 =F—NF+=A=1+—HILFE)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. oHEHE )

There was no single customer individually contributed over HE_Z—R"EF+A=+—HILF
10% of the Group’s total revenue during the year ended = Tﬁiﬂﬂ\ﬁ—ﬁﬁflﬁ|J¥T$E. B #
31 December 2016 (2015: Nil). MERBEBE10% (ZT—hF &) -

The Group’s revenues from external customers and its AREBERBINABRP ZWEMEIFRD
non-current assets (other than financial instruments) are BE (TEESRTIR) AU THRE :

divided into the following geographical areas:

Revenue from external customers: KREIAZTRE 2 W

2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT

Hong Kong (domicile) (note (a)) EFE (EBHER) (A15#(a) - 121
Mainland China A B A 506,764 365,869
506,764 365,990
Non-current assets (excluding available-for-sale financial ERBEE (THEESHEERIN)
assets):
2016 2015
—E-XREF —hHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFIT
Hong Kong (domicile) (note (a)) BB (EBFE) (K17 (a) 116 600
Mainland China R B g 1,248,193 1,536,030
1,248,309 1,536,630
Note: Hiazt -
(@) The place of domicile is determined based on the location (a) FEGET R IR IE P RE B AR AT

of central management.

EEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. oWER @)
The geographical location of customers is based on BT T AR AR A Sk M 3 P e 3t
the location at which the services were provided or the BARE - ERBEERBENAER
location of properties. The geographical locations of the FrE DIABERB S A EEBK 2
non-current assets and interests of associate are based BIRhBh A EAE o

on the physical location of the assets and location of
operation of the associate respectively.

6. REVENUE 6. WHE
The Group’s principal activities are disclosed in note 1 to NEEH 7 T EEERFNZESHESBER
these consolidated financial statements. Turnover of the FZMFE1 o KB BRBEERZ W INEIAK
Group is the revenue from these activities. Revenue from EFEESE  FNBRZAEFRTFTELE
the Group’s principal activities recognised during the year ST
is as follows:
2016 2015
—E-AF —T—-IF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFRT ARETT
Sales of properties SHEWE 477,758 334,448
Gross rental income from investment properties % &Y% 2 B4 W A B 58 23,476 27,395
Properties management fees MEEEE 5,530 4,147
Total st 506,764 365,990
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (2= —NF+=A=+—HILFZE)

OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME 7. HaBRIKAFEEHE
2016 2015
—E-XFE ZZZ—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFIT
Other revenue H bz
Interest income on financial assets WEERAARZCRMEEZ
carried at amortised costs F B HBA 1,177 740
Interest income on loan to an associate 4T EE R BB Z A BULA 5,040 6,180
Compensation from tenants MPEzmE = 682
Deposit forfeited on disposal of investment HEREMER R >
property b - 20,000
Management fee income from an associate REMEATZERBRA 1,430 923
Service income BRI WA - 37,100
Reversal of over-provision of RO FHEI NHBERE
compensation paid in previous years 2,807 10,988
Others HAith 887 1,105
11,341 77,718
Other net income Hi A5
Gain on extension of convertible notes B A AR BRI AR A B 2 Wi - 103,844
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEMHEHESRmEEY
financial assets Uz - 229
- 104,073
Total HEt 11,341 181,791
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. RMERA

2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT

Interest on bank loan borrowing, gross IRITIEE 2 F B A 32,010 16,998
Less: amount capitalised to properties under 3§ : B4 AERE EP%%Z
development (note (a)) S8 (M5 (a) 14,487 8,953
Interest on bank loan borrowing, net RITEEZF B FRE 17,523 8,045
Interest on other loans wholly HARAFANEBHREEZ
repayable within five years HtBERZFE 6,590 11,174
Interest on convertible notes AR EE 2 FLE 45,905 114,950
70,018 134,169
Notes: B -
(a) The borrowing costs have been capitalised of a range (a) BB K AEFE R R524%%F9.02%
from 5.24% to 9.02% (2015: 6.32% to 7.73%) per TE—AF B.32%E7.73%) B
annum. /ﬂ: °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (B2 =F—NF+=A=1+—HILFE)

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. BREIBHAIER
2016 2015
ZE-XRF —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFIT
Loss before income tax is arrived at BT ERATERE G
after charging/(crediting): (5t A) -
Cost of properties sold BEEMEKAR 385,303 253,297
Cost of properties management ER=REIDEN 6,800 4,726
Business tax and other levies (note (b)) EEBREMEE (K b) 20,544 27,958
Depreciation on plant and equipment (note (a)) iR K& Z&EITE (K17 (a) 541 1,107
Operating lease charges in respect of THIREFKEHE
land and buildings gy 1,451 1,625
Auditors’ remuneration ZE AP EN &
- audit services — FBEARTS 772 724
— other services — E M AR 339 302
(Reversal of impairment loss)/Impairment loss ~ ZEAYEA CREEE
of properties under development B@) mEEE (75,019) 112,895
(Reversal of impairment loss)/Impairment loss  $S{EHRE BB TN (A
of completed properties held for sale BiEgmE) REER (5,310) 3,945
Loss on written off of plant and equipment s E LR E 2 EE 579 85
Rental income from investment properties REMERS WA &
less direct outgoings (note (c)) Fx (Kit(c) (23,470) (27,395)
Notes: Bt -
(a) Depreciation expenses (a) WERX
Depreciation expenses of approximately RMB541,000 PrEmM L AREES41,000T (=&
(2015: approximately RMB1,107,000) have been included —HRF: HARM1,107,0007T) B
in administrative expenses respectively. DRIFFAITEER -
(b) Business tax and other levies (b) EEBREMBE

The Group was subject to business taxes of 5% and
other levies on their revenues in the PRC from sales
of properties and car park units, rental income from
investment properties and car park units and property
management income before 30 April 2016. Effective from
1 May 2016, the proceeds arising from these revenues
are subject to value added taxes and other levies. Value
added tax are deducted from the revenues.

BHE-_Z-R"FEA=+tHL ' ~H
KU P B R Y E R EESEAH
S REVEREESEUNES K
ARMEERBWA - BH5%E X
REMEE - {-_T—RFHLA—A
o EEWAEE R EABNIEE
BREMEE - BEHEKENG -
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8 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

9. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX (continued) 9. BRAIEHAEE @
Notes: (continued) Biat - (&)
(c) Rental income from investment properties (c) REWERSWA
There are no direct outgoings incurred for investment BE-_Z—R"EER-Z—RF+=A
properties for the years ended 31 December 2016 and Z+—HULEFE REVETEEE
2015. fisZ o
10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 10. EERAMXX (BERESH
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ [D)
EMOLUMENTS)
2016 2015

—EB-AF ZT4F
RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETT ARETT

Wages and salaries TERF® 15,631 14,722
Pension costs — defined contribution plans IRRACAN — FEBE M RATE) 950 1,033
16,581 15,755
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11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (B2 =F—NF+=A=1+—HILFE)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 11. EEMERSREEAETMH
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS
11.1 Directors’ emoluments 111 EEME
Executive directors and independent non-executive HITESERBYIFRITES
directors:
2016 —E-REF
Salaries, Contribution
allowances & to defined
Directors’ benefits in  Discretionary contribution
fees kind bonus plan Total
2 A 11 ERMHT
ESHe REVAR Mgt HE 5 @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFL AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
Executive directors YTEE
Mr. Zhang Gao Bin REERE
(Note (a)&(b)) (Wit k) - 95 - 1 9
Mr. Luo Zhangguan EEREE - 283 9 6 298
Mr. You Xiaofei (Note (3)) REREE (Hit(a) - 2,271 24 18 2313
Independent non-executive BUEHTES
directors
Mr. Lo Wai Hung EREERE 226 - - - 226
Mr. Chan Chi Mong, Hopkins BzEnsE 196 - - - 196
Mr. Mak Yiu Tong FREEE 196 - - - 196
618 2,649 33 25 3,325
Notes: Bt -
(@) With effect from 9 December 2016, Mr. You (a) BEZZ—R"F+ZANBE
Xiaofei resigned as an executive director; Mr. LEREEFHTRITES @ K
Zhang Gao Bin has been appointed as an RBLEEZTANITES -
executive director.
(b) From 1 January 2016 to 8 December 2016, Mr. (o) WH—FE—R"F—H-—HZZ

Zhang Gao Bin was a senior management officer
in the Group. The remuneration of being senior
management officer for 2016 was approximately
RMB1,592,000. Together with director’s
remuneration, the total remuneration of Mr. Zhang
Gao Bin for the year 2016 was approximately

RMB1,688,000.

T-XRFE+-ANB K5
BAEETASESRERE
ANE - ER-_ZT—XE5A
EREBEABHNBRMHOAR
#1,592,0007T ° & [F] & = A
T REALRER T —RF
B 4B B 49 A R #1,688,000
5T o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 1. EEMERSREBEAETMH
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S ()
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
11.1 Directors’ emoluments (continued) 11.1 EE@$ (8)
Executive directors and independent non-executive HITEENB Y IEHITES -
directors:
Salaries, Contribution
. allowances & to defined
Directors’ benefits i~ Discretionary  contribution
fees kind bonus plan Total
- ERHT
ik REDNE ey HEE5 &5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 AMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NBRTT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR

Executive directors HTES

Mr. You Xiaofei LEREE - 1,081 78 52 1,211
Mr. Luo Zhangguan (Note (8)  BEBEE (M) - 195 - 24 219
Mr. Ng Pui Keung (Note (b)) {ms % (M) - 740 - 6 746

Independent non-executive B kHTES

directors

Mr. Lo Wai Hung BEELE 212 - - - 212

Mr. Chan Chi Mong, Hopkins BrE54 166 - - - 166

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong (Note (c)) TEREE (Wit) 14 - - - 14

Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christna &l + (#(c)

(Note (c)) 180 - - - 180
572 2,016 78 82 2,748

Notes: Bat -

(@) With effect from 24 April 2015, Mr. Luo (a) E-ZE-—RFWOA=-+WMA
Zhangguan has been appointed as an executive B BECEECDEZTAY
director. TEE -

(0) With effect from 1 June 2015, Mr. Ng Pui Keung (o) BE-T—RFA—AR - f
retired as an executive director. TR EERANITES o

() With effect from 4 December 2015, Ms. Pang (c) E-E—AFT+-AEBE -
Yuen Shan, Christina has resigned as an EA B e i nay T AVIE |5 K
independent non-executive director; Mr. Mak Yiu B EREEACDEZAR
Tong has been appointed as an independent non- B IEHITESE -
executive director.

There were no arrangements under which a director BEESRTFABMEFELRESLR

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during EREFMAME 2 ZH (ZF—

the year (2015: Nil). HF &)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (2= —NF+=A=+—HILFZE)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 11. EEMERSREEAEHMH

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S (&)

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

11.2 Five highest paid individuals 11.2 ABREHAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the AEEFRNRAEZRFALTEE
highest in the Group for the year included three ZZ(CE—AHF  WB) EFE
(2015: two) directors whose emoluments are BEZMSERMEFI112HR2
reflected in the analysis presented in note 11.1. DMARKE - FAENHRTME
The emoluments payable to the remaining two “E—RF =) ALz
(2015: three) individuals during the year are as mr
follows:

2016 2015

—E-RE —ET—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e - FEEIREWMAE 1,547 2,976
Retirement scheme contributions IRIREFHEIHE K 64 94

1,611 3,070
The emoluments fell within the following bands: ZEMEBR TR

Number of individuals
EEA™
2016 2015
—E-AF  —THF

Emolument bands B < 48 B
RMB1,500,001-RMB2,000,000 AR#1,500,001 T

AR #2,000,00070 - 1
RMB1,000,001-RMB1,500,000 AER¥1,000,0017TE

AR #1,500,0007T 1 1
RMB500,001-RMB1,000,000 AR¥500,001 L&

AR #1,000,0007T = -
RMBO-RMB500,000 AREEOTLE

AR #500,0007T 1 1
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% NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 12. Fi8%HiMAxX (ER)
2016 2015
—E-XRFE —T-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARKTFT

Current tax BRERBE 18
The PRC — Corporate Income Tax PR — ERER
— Tax for the year — REEHIA 24,895 7,874
— Under provision in respect of prior years —DUAFERETR 277 -
25,172 7,874
The PRC — Land appreciation tax PR — IR ETR
— Current year — KFE 46,950 28,224
— Over provision in respect of — A FEREEE
prior years (5,957) (42,945)
40,993 (14,721)
Deferred tax ERERIE
— Current year — REE (33,177) (68,845)
— Over provision in respect of prior years — N FEBEREE (14,243) 617)
(47,420) (69,462)
Total income tax expense/(credit) e (K&e) 45 18,745 (76,309)
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12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (B2 =F—NF+=A=1+—HILFE)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 12. FiISHAX (ER) @)
(continued)
Reconciliation between tax expenses/(credit) and BERY (Ke) EiERHRtEe
accounting loss at applicable tax rates: FHER 2 18R -

2016 2015

—E-RE —ET—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT

Loss before taxation B AT E 1B (54,966) (191,435)
Income tax at the PRC income tax rate of RHRBIFTEHT E25%

25% (2015: Hong Kong profits tax (2015 : BAEFEHIB R

rate of 16.5%) 16.5%) B Z PR1SHE (13,741) (31,587)
Tax effect of different taxation rates Hih M e zE TRBE 2

in other tax jurisdictions Mg 502 (13,648)
Over provision in prior years DA SRR (19,923) (43,562)
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BRI N = 2 HBTE (3,893) (3,337)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TAIF A 2 B2 22,155 10,823
Tax effect of temporary differences %Tﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁf§§52$ﬁi‘x%

not provided (933) 1,137
Tax effect of prior year’s unrecognised FREAUEFERER

tax losses utilised this year BMIBER Y RIS 2 (4,494) (4,476)
Tax effect of unused tax losses RIERAREATIBEEZ

not recognised Hiss e 1,318 3,847
Tax effect of share of loss/(profit) of DIREE N FER S CER) 2

an associate M2 16,852 (9,242)
PRC land appreciation tax AR 4 (A R 46,950 28,224
Effect of PRC land appreciation tax B ISR S (5,963) (4,063)
Land appreciation tax on fair value WEMERTEESEEN

changes on investment properties TR E (23,096) (11,974)
Others Hih 3,011 1,549
Income tax expense/(credit) Frigifx ~ (k) 18,745 (76,309)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

7 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

12.

R

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

(continued)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
for the year.

The income tax provision of the Group in respect of
operations in Mainland China has been calculated at the
rate of 25% (2015: 25%) on the estimated assessable
profits for the year, based on the existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

PRC land appreciation tax is levied at progressive rate
ranging from 30% to 60% (2015: 30% to 60%) on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales
of properties less deductible expenditures including lease
charges of land use rights and all properties development
expenditures.
Furthermore, in accordance with the Detailed
Implementation Regulations for implementation of the new
Corporate Income Tax Law issued on 6 December 2007,
a 10% withholding tax shall be levied on the dividends
remitted by the companies established in the PRC to their
foreign investors starting from 1 January 2008. Dividends
coming from the profits generated by the PRC subsidiaries
after 1 January 2008 shall be subject to this withholding
tax. As at 31 December 2016, the earnings of the Group’s
PRC companies are approximately RMB914,596,000
(2015: approximately RMB921,160,000). As at 31
December 2016, the Group has not accrued any
withholding income tax for the earnings of its PRC
subsidiaries (2015: nil), because the Group does not have
an immediate plan to distribute earnings from its PRC
subsidiaries generated in the period from 1 January 2008
to 31 December 2016.

EEEBRAT 2016FF#HK

12.

Frie®iBx (E&) (&)

EBFERIBIBEAFE 2 G ER
SHAIE16.5% (ZE—FHE : 16.5%)
TR -

ZNER B B AP B R I SR S A 2 PS8
BIRBARFE AT ERTGEHN - £3R
BED - BRI ER T %R25% (=
T—HF :25%) MEAE -

PR THIZERBELHEBAECER
(BN$8 & W P13 FIB R 7] F0R F X
(BRELTHEREREEBRULTEY
¥EEITH)) REEB KI0%E60%
—T—AHF : 30%E60%) HU -

o - BBER ZEZT+F+-ANAHE
M EEMEPEERMAE B =F
ZENF—A—AR EFBKIZZAF
MEIEREERE D RSBEBKI0%TE
0N - REFERFR=ZZEZENF—A
—BZEERF 2’ E AL IETE
MR- RZE—ARF+=_A=+—8"
AEBFTEMBARNRBIHARE
914,596,000 (ZE—HF : HAR
¥921,160,0007T) R =ZF —RNF+ =
A=+—H X&BWEGEPBEKNEB
RNElZ BF ABEINFGHERE (=
—HF &) BASEL &K E
DEETHFENBARIB-_TETNF—
A—BEZZE—XR"F+ZA=+—HH
ERE 2 BF o



13.

14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (B2 =F—NF+=A=1+—HILFE)

LOSS PER SHARE 13.
Basic loss per share

The calculation of loss per share is based on the
loss attributable to the owners of the Company
of approximately RMB73,711,000 (2015: loss of
approximately RMB115,125,000) and on the weighted
average of 7,564,730,361 (2015: 3,313,398,324) ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share

Diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015 is not presented because the impact of
the conversion of convertible notes is anti-dilutive.

BRER

BREXERE
EREEDIREARQREA AEN
B89 AR 73,711,000 (= Z
—hF: BELYARK115125000
) MNFERBBETLBERZ NEFY
%(75647303611&(_ T — f F:
3,313,398,3240%) 5t & -

BREBEEHE
HRERIMREEAEERESTE
WY EYEHE T — /\E&_g_ﬁ
FH+ZA=+—HIEFEZSREEE
B

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REY=
2016 2015
—E-XRFE E—hfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
At 1 January R—A— 962,601 805,592
Exchange realignment I = ?%%‘ = 631
Additions =T 235 56,435
Disposals = - (13,322)
Loss from fair value adjustment N EFAREEE (27,836) (152,735)
Reclassified as held for sale (note 25) ENDEABELRE
(Bt5t25) (210,000) -
Reclassified from held for sale BR{EHEENHE = 266,000
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 725,000 962,601
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14.

The analysis of the net carrying amount of investment
properties according to lease periods as at 31 December
were as follows:

BEWME &)
BEMER+T A=+ AEAYNE
EEEDFIT -

2016 2015
—E-XRFE —E—hfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FiT AREFT
Outside Hong Kong, held on: REBRINGE -
Lease of between 10 to 50 years FAHANF10 =50 F 725,000 962,601

The fair values of the investment properties of the
Group as at 31 December 2016 were assessed by B.l.
Appraisals Limited, an independent qualified valuer. B.I.
Appraisals Limited is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors. For financial reporting purpose, discussions
and review of valuation processes and results are held
among the Group’s chief financial officer, senior officers
of relevant operation departments and the independent
professional valuer. The results are being directly reported
back to the executive directors of the Company.

The valuation for completed investment properties was
arrived at by considering the capitalised income derived
from the existing tenancies and the reversionary potential
of the properties or, where appropriate by reference to
market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties
in the similar locations and conditions.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are classified
and accounted for as investment properties.

Certain of the Group’s investment properties are leased
to third parties under operating leases, further summary
details of which are included in note 35.

HAMESEEER QT 2016 F Fi

AEBZIRENER_ZT—RET=A
= +t—HZAFELBEILEERKME
EMRABBIPR FT L BRR ARG (E o (RAEE
RAEERATABEBNEMBESHN
B RETUKER HEREFRER
MASENBRE A ELFIaR
BB MBI EXEMER R AR - M
HEERABEERARFRNITESE
$ﬁ o

ERTREVFEMEENDEERERNE
ENBERMEBWARDERERBRNE
(Em) 2ZHRME MR TREY
ERHEROMISERMET °

AEBREBELEHEFREARDER K

AERENREYEED  KAA
FEENXGFE  DBERARIRBERED
A

AEBETREDEIRELZHESY
MTE=7 FRAFBZE—THEH
IRHIEESS e



14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2016)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

As at 31 December 2016, investment properties of
approximately RMB688,000,000 were pledged to banks to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group to
the extent of RMB184,500,000. As at 31 December 2015,
investment properties of approximately RMB923,700,000
were pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group to the extent of RMB199,500,000.

The following table presents the Group’s investment
properties measured at fair value in the consolidated
statements of financial position in accordance with the
fair value hierarchy. The hierarchy groups the investment
properties into three levels based on the relative reliability
of significant inputs used in measuring the fair value of
the investment properties. The fair value hierarchy has the
following levels:

— Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets;

— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset,
and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available; and

— Level 3: inputs for the asset that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

14.

e R AR M R

(BE=F—r 4= A=+ —AIFE)

REWE (3)
RZE—RE+ZA=+—8" HA
R #688,000,0007T ) & & #) ¥ B K
BTRIT URSASEHER Y — K
R1TRE A R #184,500,0007T i =
T-RAFE+-_A=+—H HARE
923,700,000t W IE E M H¥ 2 H | TR
17 S ASEEER 2 —RIRTTRLE
AR#199,500,0007T °

TRENAKERBEAFERRIRES
MBIRARBRAFEFEZREYE -
BREMERBEFEZFREVELTE
FrAE AN ABIE 2 HE R SRR EIRAR
AR /= - RFERNBHEATF
A

- B HREEZEEMER
B CREHE)

- B F-RMERmENIN
WEEBEMBHARE L&
FERERELIBEZBABE -
EEBREZBABBRYETISE
B R

- DA WIEUBEMESMEH
BEREZEERABE (BEE
RZBARE) °

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2016




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REWE (&)
The Group’s investment properties stated at fair value in REJRELH  NEBTLHLE BT
the consolidated statements of financial position at each ZURAFEVNEREZIEEMES BUATA
reporting date is grouped into the fair value hierarchy as FERR
follows:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B et - #st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETT ARMTRH ARETT AREFT

Investment properties located FEEMNIEEE
in Guangzhou, the PRC =
Investment properties located DA IELE

725,000 725,000

in Guangzhou, the PRC RLF AR B E M Y
classified held for sale &Y - 210,000 - 210,000
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—X
+—A= - 210,000 725,000 935,000

HARMEEBERDTE 2016F Fif




14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (B2 =F—NF+=A=1+—HILFE)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was
a transfer of RMB210,000,000 from Level 3 to Level 2
because the Group had entered into an agreement for
the disposal of investment properties in 2016 and the fair
value of the properties at the end of the reporting period
was determined based on the agreed consideration set
out in the related sales and precedent agreement (level 2)
(see note 25).

Level 1
E—R
RMB’000
AEBFT

REWE (3)

HE-_FT—XXF+=ZA=+—H81
FE BHRASEEZEIILEREDY
(¥hE MEBF-REBEBAOARY
210,000,0007T & % — & - MR WEH
REMEN R FESRIELAERIEE AN
KO HE (B_R) FENBEREE
£ (RMIFE25) ©

Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-H E=H st

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
AR TIT ARETT ARETT

Investment properties located hEEMNEE
in Guangzhou, the PRC -

- 962,601 962,601

M

At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—RHF

—A=1+—H -

- 962,601 962,601

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there was a
transfer of approximately RMB245,700,000 from Level 1
to Level 3 because the disposal of investment properties
agreement that the Group signed in 2014 has been
terminated. The fair value of investment properties is
revalued as at 31 December 2015 and carried out by an
independent firm of surveyors, B.l. Appraisals Limited. The
Group’s policy is to recognize transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

HE-_Z—RAF+-_A=+—81tHF
B ARAEER _ZE—MERITHH
EREMEBBDERILE WBE—
A 8 4 A R #5245,700,000C 2 % =
T WEMENLRFER=-_ZTE—RF
+:ﬂz+faﬁi%ﬁﬁ'a%@m
ﬁIEEU%Eﬂifﬂ%ﬁll?’%%”?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ“
KEIMﬁﬁaﬂﬁiﬁiﬁﬁﬁ
m%mwiﬂiﬁ RIERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REWE ©)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements F=HKAFEFEER
2016 —E—XRF
Relationship of unobservable
Valuation techniques Unobservable input Range inputs to fair value
EEBRRZEHER
#ERTD EiER BHE 8§E AVENBE
Completed investment Market approach - Market rent RMB70-RMB300  The higher the market rent,
properties in Guangzhou, investment method per square meter  the higher the value
the PRC
TEENERTIRENE sk — REE [k BYRRARIONE  WEleHS - ATEES
ARE3007
Reversionary yield 55%-6.75%  The higher the reversionary
yield, the lower the value
EHkEE EEhREER - ATEEE
2015 —E-HF
Relationship of unobservable
Valuation techniques Unobservable input Range inputs to fair value
EEBREZEHER
HERT BRI BANE #E AYENEBE
Completed investment Market approach - Market rent RMB42-RMB175  The higher the market rent,
properties in Guangzhou, investment method per square meter  the higher the value
the PRC
TEENERTIRENE et — REE [k BT RAREQTE  mRReHS  ATEER
ARE1757
Reversionary yield 55%-7.0%  The higher the reversionary
yield, the lower the value
EElE BEhEEdS - ATEEE
Combination of investment ~ Estimated costs RMB34.7 milion  The higher the outstanding costs of
method and residual to completion development, the lower the valug
method
REFHSEERER CREShE AR¥UTRET REFERAEE ATELE
Market rent RMBB0-RMB136  The higher the market rent,
per square meter for office and the higher the value
RMB95-RMB4, 160
Square meter for retails
[k N EHHAEMBOM mEfeEs - ATEER
ARE136TREE
Efﬁ%%mﬁz%ﬁ
ARE4,1607
Estimated 20%  The higher the allowance,
developer's profit* the lower the value
CHEE BEUR - ATEME
Reversionary yield 3.8%-10.4% for office and  The higher the reversionary
5.6%-11.6% for retails yield, the lower the value
EENAE BRE8%-104% TEEN EEUGEHEE  ATEEE

HARMEEBERDTE 2016F Fif
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (B2 =F—NF+=A=1+—HILFE)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REWE )

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements F=ZRLAFEFEER (B)
(continued)

The movements during the year in the balance of these FR - BZHAFEFENEHESHN
Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows: T

2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AEEFTT

Investment properties located in BB KA B RN Y

Guangzhou, the PRC: wEYHE
At 1 January n—HA—H 962,601 805,592
Exchange realignment M 5, e B - 631
Additions NE 235 56,435
Loss from fair value adjustment N EFAEEE (27,836) (152,735)
Disposals k= - (13,322)
Reclassified as held for sale BN BEABIELE (210,000) -
Reclassified from held for sale BRIELEEHOE - 266,000
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 725,000 962,601
Fair value adjustment of investment properties is REWENAFERABRGEEBERERHE
recognised in the line item “fair value changes on tEEBARERZ REMEQFEE
investment properties” on the face of the consolidated B | R o

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

* Estimated developer's profit represents allowance on risk * (TR R AT IE R TP R H
associated with completing the project and investor’s [EpE A E R EERIR - LAE DL
return expressed in terms of a percentage. N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

15. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. BMEKZHE
Furniture,
fixture
Leasehold and office Motor

improvements  equipments vehicles Total
HEWME B #E

#E RBLAERE AE st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETT

Cost RS
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—RF—A—H 7,322 1,999 2,612 11,933
Exchange realignment PE 5 S 3 6 137 146
Additions NE 37 113 227 377
Written off sy (195) (44) - (239)
At 31 December 2015 and RW-FT—h&+— A
1 January 2016 =+t—BK
—E-R"F—-A—H 7,167 2,074 2,976 12,217
Exchange realignment [E 7 #H% 4 9 87 100
Additions B - - 1,609 1,609
Written off i sH - - (1,314) (1,314)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—REF
+=-RA=+—H 7,171 2,083 3,358 12,612
Deduct: accumulated W REHER
depreciation and WEEE
impairment loss
At 1 January 2015 R-_ZE—HFE—HF—H 7,207 1,269 1,111 9,587
Exchange realignment [ o 3= 2 6 104 112
Depreciation e 26 282 799 1,107
Eliminated on written off  FAlfi 4R35 54 (110) (44) - (154)
At 31 December 2015and WZZ—HF+=A
1 January 2016 =+—8K
NS 7,125 1,513 2,014 10,652
Exchange realignment [ 5 1 9 70 80
Depreciation e 10 353 178 541
Eliminated on written off  FAMSE K 3H - - (735) (735)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—X
+—A=+—H 7,136 1,875 1,527 10,538
Net book amount BREEE
At 31 December 2016 NZZE—RF
+=-B=+—8H 35 208 1,831 2,074
At 31 December 2015 WZ-_E—hLfF
+=—A=+—H” 42 561 962 1,565
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16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VAN
2 N =]

B FEERAR AL

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (2= —NF+=A=+—HILFZE)

16. RMTE ARl 2=

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries at 31 December 2016 and

31 December 2015 were as follows:

R-IFT—

NEFE+ZA=Zt+—HERZZE—

FF+ZA=+—H WEBRAZFE

LUl

Proportion of
ownership interest

BEERLY
Place/ Issued and Held by
country of fully paid a Subsidiary
incorporation/  share/paid-in Group’s Held by the of the
registration capital effective ~ Company  Company
HRAL/ ERIR interest AAFZ  Principal activities and
Name SMnY HERB piN- 1| KAT WEBZAR  places of operations
£ E BWER BRER B BE  IERBRERMY
Canton Million Investments British Virgin US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding in
Limited (i) Islands (‘BVI") 13T Hong Kong
ERRLES REBUEFRERR
Grandwill International Investment ~ Hong Kong HK$1 100% - 100%  Inactive
Limited i 1T TEZG
EHERRERRLA
Guangzhou City Liwan Qi Che Pei  The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% - 100%  Property investment in
Factory Company Limited (i) & (iv) & ARE the PRC
S e el 10,000,0007C RABRENERE
BIRAF @)K ()
Guangzhou Fanzhan Trading The PRC RMB2,158,425 100% - 100%  Inactive
Limited (), (ii) & (iv) Gl AR TEXH
BMWREESBRAA () - i) (v) 2,158,4257T
Guangzhou Fengmao Real Estate  The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
Development Limited (i), (i) & iv) & AR the PRC
BMEXEHEREERAR 10,000,000 R B SRERR
(i)~ (i) &()
Guangzhou Gaotian Investment The PRC RMB20,000,000 100% - 100%  Property development and
Limited (i) & (iv) i NEE property investment in
BMNEBRERRAG (1) £y 20,000,0007T the PRC
RABEREDERRR
NERE
Guangzhou Huangpu Caming Real  The PRC US$13,000,000 100% - 100%  Property development in
Estate Development Limited H 13,000,000% T the PRC
(), (i) & (i) RABRENELR

ENERERFERSERAA
()~ (i) & (i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (contnued)  16. RKIB AR 2 E#HE (&)
Proportion of
ownership interest
BEERLY
Place/ Issued and Held by
country of fully paid a Subsidiary
incorporation/  share/paid-in Group’s Held by the of the
registration capital effective ~ Company  Company
FRRL RE L interest ADFzZ  Principal activities and
Name SMnY HERB/ by N WEZAR  places of operations
£ Bx BRER BRER BE BE  IERHRERNE
Guangzhou Kinyang Real Estate The PRC RMB112,000,000 100% - 100%  Property development and
Development Co., Ltd. (i & (¥) AR property investment in
BNEGEHERRERAF 112,000,0007C the PRC
)2 i) ROERENELR
KERE
Guangzhou Talent Shoes Market ~ The PRC RMB2,000,000 90% - 90%  Property management in
Management Limited i) & () ARE the PRC
BHAREXTHEEER 2,000,0007C RABRENRER
BIRAR 4) & (i
Guangzhou Xianzhuang Properties  The PRC RMB33,000,000 100% - 100%  Property development in
Development Limited (i) & (iv) i ARE the PRC
BNBRRHEREARAR 33,000,007 RPBRENELR
(i) % (i)
Guangzhou Xinzhuo Properties The PRC RMB3,000,000 100% - 100%  Property management in
Management Limited (i), (i) & (iv) & ARE the PRC
BEMFENEERERAT 3,000,0007C RAERENFER
i), (i) £ (i)
Guangzhou Yijie Cleaning Company  The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in the
Limited () & (iv) e ANEE PRC and provision of
EMERRZERAR () £ (iv) 1,000,0007T cleaning services
RAEfEREAERR
RALE 2R
Guangzhou Yongxiang Investment  The PRC RMB11,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
Limited (i) & (iv) i AEE the PRC
BMXEREBRAR i) £ () 11,000,0007 R B SRARR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (2= —NF+=A=+—HILFZE)

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. RHB AT 2= (&)

Proportion of
ownership interest

BEERLY
Place/ Issued and Held by
country of fully paid a Subsidiary
incorporation/  share/paid-in Group’s Held by the of the
registration capital effective ~ Company  Company
FRRL BEIR interest KRRz Principal activities and
Name SMnY HERB piN- 1. | KAT WEZAR  places of operations
£ E BWER BRER B BE  IERBRERMY
Haikou Yicheng Industries Limited  The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
() (i) & (iv) G AR the PRC
BOSREZARRE () (i) & (iv) 10,000,0007C RABRERERR
Mark World Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
REEXARARA &k 18T the PRC
RAEHFRERR
Neo Bloom Limited (i) BVI US$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
HEERAF (i) HEERUHE e Hong Kong
REBUSREARR
Talent Property Group Limited The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
(i), (ii) & (iv) ﬁP ARE the PRC
HMARESEBRAR (i) (i) & iv) 50,000,0007C RABREREER
Profit Venture Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
KERERRAH &R 10,0007 the PRC
R SRERR
Smart Key Global Limited (ii) BVI US$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
RBRAHE =0 Hong Kong
REBRERARR
Sure Win Inc. Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
KBRXERAF Bl 1007 the PRC

RPEESRERER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
A

BTSRRI RE

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (EtZ2=—F—NF+-A=1—HILFE)

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)  16. RAMIEB AT 2% (5)
Proportion of
ownership interest
BEERLY

Place/ Issued and Held by

country of fully paid a Subsidiary

incorporation/  share/paid-in Group’s Held by the of the

registration capital effectve ~ Company  Company

FRRL/ BRTR interest ARDFzZ  Principal activities and
Name SWnY HERB/ by N WEZAR  places of operations
&R BX BlWEX BRER =2} BE  IEEBREERY
Talent Central Limited (ii) BVI US$101 100% - 100%  Investment holding in

EBERAHS 101%7T Hong Kong

REBRSFREARR
Talent Property Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% - 100%  Inactive
MAMERRAT 3 10,0007 7T LEXK
Talent Prosper Corporation i) BVI US$2 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
KREEER L (i) RERUEE 2ET Hong Kong
REBRERALER
Yunnan Xin Tian Culture Travel The PRC RMB50,000,000 60% - 60% Inactive
Development Limited (i), (i) & (i) % ARE TEEY
EEMANLREERERAR 50,000,000
(i)~ (i) & (1)

Notes: B -

(i)

(i

(ii)

(iv)

The above companies are registered as a wholly foreign
owned enterprises under the PRC law.

The above companies are registered as limited companies
under the PRC law.

The statutory financial statements of these subsidiaries
are not audited by CHENG & CHENG LIMITED reflect
total net assets at approximately RMB1,197,462,000 and
turnover at approximately RMB4,059,000 constituting the
related consolidated totals.

The names of certain companies referred in
these consolidated financial statements represent
management’s best effort in translation of the Chinese
names of these companies as no English names have
been registered or available.

HARMEEEERAT 2016F FiF

(if)

(i)

(iv)

B A BRESRBAEEMRINEE
A%k -

BRABREPEZEZRZEMRBERA
Al e

ZEMBRRINATE M B HRERALIFR
BHSHEEHEAARAREL - 2
EEFBEREXE D HMGHBAR
%)\ R #61,197,462,0007T 2 A R ¥
4,059,0007T °

MR EEMKATBZEXHME - K
FAMBREMBLE T AR ZAME
REEBENHRERRZIPXEH
PIYEZ RXBRE -



17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#Z2 =-F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE 17. R—EBE LT 2ER

2016 2015
—E-RFE —ET—HF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT

Cost of investment adjusted for share of result  gtUtiE % D(EEEE A T EE S

of associate after acquisition KB 2 519,952 587,359
Less: unrealised profit in associate W REEE AR 2 REIRE A (9,117) (14,899)
510,835 572,464

The following list contains the particulars of the associate TR BFLE QR E QRS

which is a private company:

Proportion of
ownership interest

BRERLH
Held by a
Group’s subsidiary
effective Held by of the
Country of  Paid-in interest the Company  Principal activities and

Name registration capital X%@8  Company KQFe  places of operations

1 HMER BEWER ERER AAFHE WELAREE TEERREERY

Guangzhou Xintian Properties The PRC RMB710,503,607 30% - 30%  Property development

Development Limited (i), (i) & (i) ARET710,503,6077 in the PRC (iv)

BHFAEHERRERLA REERENEEE (i

) (i) & (i

Notes: B -

0] The English name of above company referred in 0] A ETM B2 BB - it
these consolidated financial statements represent LAV BmMERMRR s L RAF 2
management’s best effort in translation of the Chinese EBEXEBREEBESNEZSELFZ
names of this company as no English names have been XA TBATIEZ BEXCEIRE -
registered or available.

(ii) The statutory financial statement of above associate is (ii) LBt E R A AR BRI IER
not audited by CHENG & CHENG LIMITED. HE e TR =T AR A A TE

(iii) The above company is registered as limited company (iii) FHARRBERBEEZARABERA
under the PRC law. A e

(iv) Guangzhou Xintian Properties Development Limited (iv) BN AEHEZRAGR AT ([E
operates (“Guangzhou Xintian”) in the PRC and is a MR RPBIEE - AR&EEE
strategic partner for the Group in developing the property MERBEEBNEBESERE  ME
development where Guangzhou Xintian has expertise and MNEFT R EHER 5 mEEERA
financial support from its holding company. AMEERMBER -

The above associate is accounted for using the equity LB R AR AR ARG S MBS W

method in the consolidated financial statements. AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#Z2 =—F—NF+=-A=+—HI FE)

17. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 17. R—RB& AR 2% (&

Summarised financial information of the associate,
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and
reconciled to the carrying amounts in the consolidated

financial statements are disclosed below:

BERBMBERBR
EPTERE NGRS M IEHRRANKREE
ZHRWBENT

PLERTHRE

Guangzhou Xintian

Properties
Development Limited
BMNFREMERRE
BRATA
2016 2015
ZE-XRE —h%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFT
Gross amounts of the associate =N FERE
Current assets BB E 3,979,849 2,567,054
Non-current assets EmBNEE 658 1,471
Current liabilities mENEE (2,313,636) (1,313,833)
Non-current liabilities FRBAE (466,654) (167,793)
Equity MR 1,200,217 1,086,899
Revenue Wz 1,362,784 1,770,760
Profit for the year F a7 113,317 341,406
Other comprehensive income Hih2m WA -
Total comprehensive income ZEW AL 113,317 341,406
Dividend received from the associate REEE R AR RS = -
Reconcile to the Group’s interests in BEAREBEMAFEHES ATH
the associate e H IR
Gross amounts of net assets of the associate <N alF & EE%E 1,200,217 1,086,899
Group’s effective interest REBEBREZ 30% 30%
Group’s share of net assets of the associate AREED(EBENREEFE 360,065 326,070
Goodwill [EES 3,828 3,828
Effect of fair value adjustments at acquisition — BT A EFHENTE 156,059 257,461
Less: unrealised profit in associate B R E AR 2 KREIR G 9,117) (14,895)
Carrying amount in the consolidated WiRe M miR e REE
financial statements 510,835 572,464

HAMESEEER QT 2016 F Fi




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#tZ2 =F—NF+=-F=1+—HILFZ)

17. R—EBELAT2ER (&)
SE—FIMA AT Y (B1B),/ %2 HER

INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Reconciliation of share of (loss)/profit of an associate is

18.

disclosed below: BT
2016 2015
—E-RXE —ET—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFIT
Profit for the year F & A 113,317 341,406
Group’s effective interest REEBERER 30% 30%
Group’s share of profit before fair value BRUCEER A ERAENE -
adjustments at acquisition REFEDERF 33,995 102,422
Change in effect of fair value adjustments IR N BN E
at acquisition k=) (101,402) (65,456)
Group’s share of (loss)/profit REBSE (BB), & H (67,407) 36,966
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 18. AIHLESMERE
ASSETS
2016 2015
—E-XRE —T—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFTT
Unlisted equity securities outside REABINMEE 2 FE T
Hong Kong, at cost (note (a)) MEAFEFH - IR (H7t(a)) 1,000 1,000
Total Bt 1,000 1,000
Notes: Biat -
(a) The unlisted equity securities represented investment in (@) IF £ RRANGE 5 HE B R B AN 2 AL

EENKRE - SBERAAHRRER
E-HREERESEMSRELS
BRATEMFHEERK  BARAE
ERRBEAEFABARTE - A&
EESRARSREEZES

a private company registered in the PRC. The amount is
stated at cost less impairment as the investment does not
have a quoted market price and range of reasonable fair
value estimate is so significant that the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the fair value cannot be
measured reliably. The Group did not intend to dispose
the securities in the foreseeable future.

All available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in EAHLESREESUARKES
RMB. (ER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (2 =—F—NF+=-A=+—HI FZ)

19. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 19. BREHPYE
2016 2015
—EBE-X"E —ZT—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFIT
Properties under development BEEPME 1,299,920 1,466,005
All properties under development are located in the PRC. FrEBREPYEDGATE - FHH 1+
Land use rights are held on leases over 50 years. FHERSOFERFEE -
As at 31 December 2016, none of the properties N—_ZE—XNEFE+_H=+—8"
under development (2015: approximately value ME(—CE—TFE: BEHAREE
RMB544,980,000) were pledged as collateral for the 544,980,0007T) B R A ¥ - B HE A
Group’s bank borrowings granted to the Group (2015: to EARNEFBEFRRITEE 2 HKAFR (=
the extent of RMB200,000,000). T—RHF : AR¥200,000,0007T) °
Amounts of properties under development expected to be FEHIN A EI R —FER KB EE
recovered after one year from the end of reporting period Y E A EE A R1,299,920,0007T
is approximately RMB1,299,920,000 (2015: approximately (ZE—HF : ©H AR¥A1,466,005,000
RMB1,466,005,000). None of the other properties are o) o B E M EEEE RN —FE R
expected to be recovered within one year. [ o
20. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR  20. F{EHEZEBRI Y
SALE
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥FT ARETFT
Completed properties held for sale, BEREZE BT
at cost — AR 355,407 209,160

The completed properties held for sale are located in the
PRC. Land use rights are held on leases over 50 years.

As at 31 December 2016, none of the completed
properties held for sale (2015: approximately value
RMB78,020,000) were pledged as collateral for the
Group’s bank borrowings granted to the Group (2015: to
the extent of RMB200,000,000).

Amounts of completed properties held after the end of
the reporting period for sale expected to be recovered
within one year is approximately RMB355,407,000 (2015:
approximately RMB209,160,000). None of the other
properties are expected to be recovered after one more
than one year.

HAMESEEER QT 2016 F Fi

RELEZCRIVMEGUNTE - +
HfE FARE RO E BB B50%F o

R—ZE—XRNFE+-_A=+—H"
BME(ZCEZE—HF: EEHNARE
78,020,0007t) HIEHE 2 E R T ¥
¥ CEFEAAEEERRITEE
—E—FHF: AR¥200,000,0005T)
2R -

BEHEZER T WEEHNR
HARE —FREKBHEBRAARH
355,407,000t (ZZE— R F : LA
#209,160,0007T) ° £ E 4th ) £ 78 53
B EERE—F gk -

oF0 3% Of
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#Z2 =-F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

TRADE RECEIVABLES

& Wi B R

2016 2015

—E-RE ZT—1F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT AREFTT

Trade receivables JiE W BR 3R 15,230 38,554
Less: Provision for impairment of i D HEREUER R

trade receivables recognised LB B (2,153) (2,153)

Trade receivables — net FEWER R — FE 13,077 36,401

The directors considered that the fair value of trade
receivables are not materially different from their carrying
amounts because these amounts have short maturity
periods in their inspection.

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, trade
receivables are mainly arose from rental income from
investment properties and sales of properties. Proceeds
are to be received in accordance with the terms of
related tenancy agreements and sales and purchases
agreements.

Provision for impairment of trade receivables is recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied
that the recovery of the amount is remote, in which case
the impairment loss is written off against trade receivables
directly. Movement in the provision for impairment on
trade receivable is as follows:

SEERRRURR 2 A FEREREE
VEEAER  HTHREERRZFER
BN ERARIE -

—E-RFEt+-A=+—Bk=Z%—FH
F+-—A=+—8 EWERIEBRZ
HEMERSWMAREHE - TSR
HIRBEMEBEL R E B iR U ER -

L B > o (U A P R B R
7 S 15 A0 M B 35 BB e
B RUERT - R AR EE R
Ui BE o 8 o UK K 2 R
mF -

2016 2015

—E-RF —T—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FIT AREFT

At the beginning and end of the year RENRER 2,153 2,153

At each reporting date, the Group reviews trade
receivables for evidence of impairment on both an
individual and collective basis. As at 31 December
2016, the Group’s trade receivables of approximately
RMB2,153,000 (2015: approximately RMB2,153,000)
were individually determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired receivables related to customers that
were in financial difficulties and the management assessed
that the receivables were not expected to be recovered.

REBRSME B HRZRER RBEELE
BN ERREREERE RZT—XF
TZRA=+—H  AEEREREERE
JEEW AR R4 AR 2,153,000 (=&
—HRF : HAR¥2,153,0007T) HIER
18 o & Bl (B &9 FE Y BR 3 B8 B K R 2 /9
XPEE - BEENHRAZEERER
A KA gEY[E] -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#Z2 =—F—NF+=-A=+—HI FE)

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. BWERER (@)
Based on the terms of related tenancy agreements and JEW BRI BN E S HHEIFRZ
sales and purchases agreements, the ageing analysis of IR ATT -

the trade receivables is as follows:

2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT

0 to 90 days 0 £90 H 11,647 36,116
91 to 180 days 91 £180 H 12 180
181 to 365 days 181 £365 H 1,418 39
Over 365 days Hi@365 H - 66
13,077 36,401
The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables that AEBRREHHEAHERRBEZ
were past due as at the reporting date but not impaired, FERERE IR HAH 2 BRER DT 2O T -

based on due date is as follows:

2016 2015
—E-RE —T-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARKETT

Neither past due 3 48 261 HA 9,566 35,378
Within 30 days past due BEISOH AT 1,978 417
31 to 60 days past due #HI31Z=60H 95 112
61 to 90 days past due #HI612£90H 8 209
Over 90 days past due B EARE B0 1,430 285

13,077 36,401
Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired I 8 BR SORU B 2 R AR TR B K & T[]
related to a large number of diversified customers for HRREFEH ZEXPUELBHER
whom there was no recent history of default of payments. EBYGEs AR EFPEMEARELER
The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the - AREREERRBR -

customer base being large and unrelated.

HAMESEEER QT 2016 F Fi
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#tZ2 =F—NF+=-F=1+—HILFZ)

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a large number of diversified customers that
had a good track record of credit with the Group. Based
on past credit history, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and these balances are still considered to be
recoverable.

The Group did not hold any collateral in respect of trade
receivables.

As at 31 December 2016, all of the Group’s trade
receivables are denominated in RMB (2015: RMB), no
interest is charged on trade receivables.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

21.

22.

FEWBR TR ()

B HA M i SRR 2 B BR SR A B R
REREEAE - ZEEFRAALE
CRERERERT - REBARER
B TEEMRRL AREEERTES
KB AR EHEBDBEETRE - &
BA ARSI ERE o

N Ry A E S R R CIE A il

an °

—EAFTZASt—8  AEEF
BRURHE U ARS (ZF— 5% -
AR FHE - 305 AR

B o
iy

ANRE - RERHBEWK
|

2016 2015

—E-XFE ZZ—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AEEFIT

Deposits e 4,210 3,787
Prepayments TE IR 28,948 1,235
Other receivables (note (a)) H b e kA (Kiit(a)) 86,776 119,702
119,934 124,724

Note:

(a) As at 31 December 2016, the amount of other receivables
included the approximate amount of RMB53,700,000
(2015: RMB53,700,000) which was interest receivable
from an associate. Balance is expected to be recovered
within twelve months after the end of reporting period.

Wit

(a) RNZTE—RE+-_A=1+—0  Hit
FE UK TE B AT R UM — R B A R R
B4 AR#53,700,000T (T —H
£ AR ¥53,700,0007T) 78 Hi 45
BAONRBER T ARWKD -
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BB ERRM

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#Z =%

—NFFZA=1—HILFE)

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

23. UAFEEFABEZENESMEE

2016 2015

—E-XE T —RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFIT AREFIT

Other financial asset, held for trading (note (a)) Eh&®@EE @ 8 (Wit(a) 140,000 -

Note:

(@)

Included in the balance RMB120,000,000 (2015:Nil)
represented investment in wealth management products
of which the investment amount are guaranteed. The
products were issued by a licensed financial institution in
the PRC with expected return of 2.5% per annum. The
Group can require the financial institution to redeem the
products at any time at the prevailing market price at the
time of redemption. The products were purchased on
13 December 2016 and 14 December 2016 amounting
to RMB120,000,000 and have been redeemed on 6
January 2017 and 23 February 2017 amounting to
RMB65,450,000 and RMB55,125,000 respectively.

Included in the balance RMB20,000,000 (2015:Nil)
represented investment in wealth management products
of which the investment amount are not guaranteed. The
products were issued by a licensed financial institution in
the PRC with expected return of 2.01% per annum. The
Group can require the financial institution to redeem the
products at any time at the prevailing market price at the
time of redemption. The products were purchased on
13 December 2016 amounting to RMB20,000,000 and
have been redeemed on 18 January 2017 amounting to
RMB20,057,000.

FREEBEEBRDE 2016 F F#

Wit

(@)

EHRBE-KREEABRAREK
120,000,000 (Z & —HF | &)
MM ER HEEEIZHER-
EmBTEFESmEEET - B
ORERABGF25%  NEFA] EK
7 B TE P () BRF ) 4 FE [0 I 9 3R
THEBRZER EmIR_E—
NE+T-_A+T=HREZZE—XRF+=
A+HBEA  YIER-_T—LF—
ARNBER=ZZE—tF-_A=-+=8%
AA A R #65,450,0007T & A R #
55,125,000 CE& [ -

EHBE-REEBARE
20,000,000 (ZZE—HF ' T) 1Y
BWER HEREEITEER -Em
R EFESREERT  EHER
KEFF2.01% c NEBEAERZSE
b M B R R B m B A IR 1T

MEBELNZESR Em/IR_ZT—X
F+ZA+=HEE  eEAARK
20,000,0007C ' ER=FE—+F— A
+ N\ BAAR%20,057,000 L E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#Z2 =-F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24. BERBEEEY
Cash and cash equivalents include the following RekReEEYBEEATAKIS
components:
2016 2015
ZE-XRE C—ZT—hfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHEES 241,239 127,430
Included in bank and cash balances of the Group AREERFEITNRSESRBPIEFRRTEH
approximately RMB238,883,000 (2015: approximately BRBITUAARE ([ARE]) stEZ
RMB122,827,000) was denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) FRIE 4 A R #238,883,0007T (=& —
placed with banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely T - HARME122,827,0007T) - AR
convertible currency. Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange BRTEEBMRARZEE - BRIFFEIIN
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement and MEEIRIEDI R AETE - SEMNSEEER
Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, F o AEEEFFBEERETHEITINE
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign ERZIRITEARE LB AINE o
currencies through banks that are authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR 25. Z7EABELHEZEE
SALE
Commercial units of Tianlun Garden At EEEEN

On 1 August 2016, the Group entered into an agreement
for the disposal of investment properties of &N &5
EEZE AR QT (Guangzhou Kinyang Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.) (commercial units of Tianlun
Garden). As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount
of Tianlun Garden of RMB210,000,000 was determined
based on the agreed consideration set out in the related
sales and purchase agreement. Details of this disposal
were set out in the announcement dated on 1 August
2016. As at 31 December 2016, the disposal was not yet
completed.

RZZE—ARENA—HB AEEREE
EMEEEHWEZRBRAFNKE
WE((XKBIER]) 2HEEAMF LI
FoRZE—XRF+-A=+—8" X
it B M ERMEE A A RK210,000,000
T DEREBEEREFEHERE

METE - RHEFBHR T —RFN
A—HBELORM - BE-_T—RF+

“RA=1+—HB ZELERKRTX
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% NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (2 =—F—NF+=-A=+—HI FZ)

26. TRADE PAYABLES 26. EFERR
Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the EREBRFIREZE 2RERONAT ¢

trade payables were as follows:

2016 2015
ZE-XF —ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFRT ARETT

0 to 90 days 0Z90H 98,431 83,509
91 to 180 days 91£2180H - -
Over 365 days 18365 H - -
98,431 83,509
All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁi@%g/ﬁﬁ HHE - E - B
of trade payables are considered to be a reasonable AeEHMERRESEEQRFESER
approximation of fair value. |
= =h
27. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. EtERARHEMENIE
2016 2015

—E-XRFE —T—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFIT

Deposits received (note (a)) BliRE® (MitaE) 135,024 7,816
Receipts in advance from customers BEERMR 532,408 182,079
Accruals fEEtE A 15,107 60,197
Other payables (notes (b)&(c)) HAb R RIE (M2 ) K (c) 333,439 284,132

1,015,978 534,224
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#Z2 =-F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

(continued)

27. ETERARHEMENSTIE @)

Notes: iz -
(@) As at 31 December 2016, the amount of deposit received (a) RZEB-—RE+ZA=+—H B
included the approximately amount of RMB125,810,000 EeoRBERBERRIERE & H
(2015: Nil) which was the down payment and second N Z B3 5K 49 A R 125,810,000
installment from the purchaser of Tianlun Garden. T (ZZE—HF . T) -
(b) As at 31 December 2016, the amount of other payables (b) NZE—RNE+-_A=+—8  E
included the approximate amount of RMB272,628,000 B REREREMN —EBE AR 2R
(2015: RMB225,287,000) which was the amounts due H 4 AR #272,628,0007T (=& —
to an associate. This amount was unsecured, interest- hF: AR ®225287,0000T) © A&
free and no repayment term except for the approximate EIRF - B HEERE - EEHPL
amount of RMB60,000,000 (2015: RMB60,000,000) was A R#60,000,0007T (= — FH4F -
charged at 4% per annum and repayable on demand. A R #60,000,0007T) & & F4%5:t
B BERERKEER -
() As at 31 December 2016, the approximate amount () RZE—R"F+ZA=+—H0 " EN
of RMB27,105,000 which was the amount due to Mr. RARTESRRALE ([R%E
Zhang Gao Bin (“Mr. Zhang”), an executive director of the 1) AR 27,105,000t £ 5 A
Company was unsecured, interest-free and no repayment mIKH . mE . EEBERH e (2T —
term. (2015: RMB17,032,000 which was the amount A F: AR#17,032,0007T © FE fF
due to Mr. Zhang, the convertible notes’ holder was AMBREREEARTESEAER
unsecured, interest-free and no fixed repayment term.) Wo\ms  EETENRE )
BORROWINGS 28. B
2016 2015
—E-XFE —T—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFIT
Borrowings included in: STAZER
Bank borrowings — secured (note (a)) RITIER— B (HiF @) 184,500 399,500
Other borrowings — unsecured (note (b)) Hih &R — | (K7 0b) 60,548 89,854
245,048 489,354
Less: current portion of long-term B BERREERZ
borrowings — secured (note (a)) BERER 5 (K73t (a) (64,000) (225,500)
current portion of other borrowings HEmsEiEne
— unsecured (note (b)) BNEAER > (K17t (b)) (60,548) (89,854)
Less: Amounts due within one year shown B ORBBEETH R —FA
under current liabilities FEIM &R (124,548) (315,354)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities ERBBEE T REE 120,500 174,000
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28. BORROWINGS (continued) £h (&
The maturity of the borrowings included in non-current SFAERBEEZBR BB RN
liabilities is as follows: T~
2016 2015
—RE —ET—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFIT
Between 1 and 2 years —FEMFH 120,500 53,000
Between 2 and 5 years 4 £ 4 A - 121,000
120,500 174,000
Notes: k23
(@) The Group has variable-rate bank borrowings which carry (a) REEZFERITERIZFBEIARE
interest ranged from the People’s Bank of China 3-15 T=ZFE2+RAFEREANFRFE
year loan base rate. Interest is repriced annually. BFEHELE X -
As at 31 December 2016, the effective interest rates RZE—R"F+=ZA=+—H" ZK%
(which are also equal to contractual interest rates) on the EIRITERCEREMNE (THEERE
Group’s bank loans range from 8.5% to 9% and secured BT =) /1 F8.5EE9E %B.Zﬁ
by investment properties. RISEYEEEIR o
As at 31 December 2015, the effective interest rates R-ZZ—RFE+-_A=+—H K&
(which are also equal to contractual interest rates) on the fﬁﬁféf?ﬁ\zgﬁf’%ﬂi? (IMEERET
Group’s bank loans are range from 8.5% to 9.02% and NFIR) A8EEZE.02F  HIREW
secured by investment properties and certain properties X¥RETERPUERBELEZE
under development and completed properties held for BT -
sale.
The fair value of the Group’s current bank borrowings REREBH - ZISE.//miUfEﬂfﬁm
approximates their carrying amounts at each of the ZATFEHEAEERERE
reporting date.
The fair values of the Group’s non-current bank EWREHH  AEEIIERBRITE
borrowings approximate their carrying amounts at each of éhZ AN EHEEREERS
the reporting date.
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group’s bank R-IE—RNEN_ZT—RF+-A=
loans were all denominated in RMB. +—H  NEBRABRITEFTHEUA
R¥ETE -
(b) As at 31 December 2016, the effective interest rates on (o) RZZ—RFE+TZA=+—0 " K&

Group’s other unsecured borrowings are 5% (2015: 5%)
and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the fair value of the
Group’s current unsecured borrowings approximates their
carrying amounts at each of the reporting date.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group’s
unsecured borrowings were all denominated in RMB.

HARMEEBERDTE 2016F Fif

/\ﬁtﬁﬁ}fiﬁ1ﬁih2a|3%ifrlJ$7%ST
“ET-hfF:5E) RIREREE -

KRB AER-F—HET=A=
+—H  AEERESHREBEHEHE
BHERZAFEHEELR®ER
%o

RIE—RFLRZZE—RF+-A=

+—a" K‘ilfﬂi?ﬁ#ﬁfﬁ FHEUAR
atE



29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#Z2 =-F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

DEFERRED TAX

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using the applicable
tax rates prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

The Group has total tax losses arising in Hong Kong
and the PRC of approximately RMB104,911,000 (2015:
approximately RMB88,042,000), subject to the agreement
with the relevant tax authorities, that are available for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not
been recognised in respect of these losses which arose in
subsidiaries with unpredictability of future profit streams.

Deferred tax liabilities in respect of the temporary
differences associated with the undistributed earnings
of subsidiaries have not been provided as the Group is
in a position to control the timing of reversal of these
differences and it is probable that such differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. As at 31 December
2016, the earnings of the Group’s PRC companies are
approximately RMB914,596,000 (2015: approximately
RMB921,160,000).

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The
analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting
purpose is as follows:

29.

ESEB IR

BEHIA TR B AR A R B R T 4
EERERERZ B RN ES R E
2 -

AEEBBEREEBERTEAZHEERS
H 4 AR ¥104,911,000T (ZE—h
£ AR#88,042,0007T) © FHEH
MEHERE%  AJREREZEEBE
NEIZ RRERBRF - WEZEHB
RAAREEBBR I BT WELE - BT
REMEBEBRECHEEE -

I £% gk B B A Rl R 9 Ik & F AR B By
ERBELERBABELEE D
AR ASEENIESZEER 2EE
RRAMZEEZER R RRATED
D0 - R_E—R"F+-_A=+—
A AEEFBEAFRNAFNOAARE
914,506,000 (ZE—HF : HAR
#921,160,0007T) °

W FERMOEAITEMN G AR IR E E
EPAVEIR AR E S REE - MEEN A
Wk R - T5HE  AELRSREE
REER FIAKE - s 5 HRE B o0
EETRIRAESR DA AT

2016 2015
=F-R"E —FT0F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT AREFIT

Deferred tax assets BEFTREE (10,400) -
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 286,266 323,268
275,866 323,268
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29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

29. EZEHIE (5)

The net movements on the deferred taxation are as BERIB 2 FEBINT ¢
follows:
Fair value
adjustments
Accelerated  Revaluation arising from
tax of investment  acquisition of
depreciation properties  subsidiaries LAT Tax losses Total
REHE
AAfEEZ
MERENE EffRENE  ATESR DHBER REER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANBEFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT ARETT AREFT
At 1 January 2015 RZE-1%5-A-H 23,573 153,227 162,322 71,014 (17,417) 392,719
Exchange realignment A% 1 - - - - 1
Deferred tax charged/{crecited) to the ~ £#IB /(;A) A%
income statement during the year LERE 6,247 (45,300) (45,083) (1,824) 16,498 (69,462)
As at 31 December 2015 and RZE-R5+ZA=1-H
t 1 January 2016 \12 ~E-A-H 29,831 107,927 117,239 69,190 (919) 323,268
Exchange realignment ER% 18 - - - - 18
Deferred tax charged/[credited) tothe  £A3I% /(3 A) AR
income statement during the year LEERE 7,136 (56,053) (1,092) 33,078 (30,489) (47,420)
As at 31 December 2016 RZE-RE+ZA=1-H 36,985 51,874 116,147 102,268 (31,408) 215,866
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30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#Z2 =-F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 20 May 2013, the Company adopted a new share
option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company’s
directors, including executive, non-executive or
independent non-executive directors, other employees of
the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group,
customers of the Group, the Company’s shareholders,
and any non-controlling shareholder of the Company’s
subsidiaries. The Scheme will remain in force for a period
of 10 years from 20 May 2013 unless otherwise cancelled
or amended.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is
an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the
shares of the company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in
a general meeting.

Share-based employee compensation will be settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation
to repurchase or settle the options in cash. Share options
granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the independent
non-executive directors. In addition, any share options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the company or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the company’s shares at the date
of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 30. BIRAETE (&)
The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted EBRAIME BT ZE2HBANREE
within 28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of AIRREEHEBT T/ \HREMNIES
a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. B 2 B - ZETEI TP B AR R
An option may be exercised under the Scheme at any BRRERLEE BRI B8R T F AR
time during a period not exceeding 10 years after the date TE B2zt —RKERA
when the option is granted and expiring on the last date 1
of such period.
The exercise price of the share options is determinable by BREZITFEREEET K
the directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the ROERBRHRIEERLEREE R
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on EBRX 2 WHE (AR ERmDRE
the date of the offer of the share options; (i) the average EREERCEREASNNAEASS AR
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares B FT 2 U THE ¢ R (i) @R E A
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of =E72EEE -
the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of an ordinary share.
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to A EY A P B3 A ABRAR B
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. BERZRE ZEF -
As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, there is RIE—RF+_A=+—HEZ
no option granted and outstanding under the Scheme. AF+-_A=+—8  #HEREZ aﬁ‘%ﬂ

A frT B i o
31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES 31. ATRRERE

On 10 December 2010, the Company issued convertible
notes with a principal amount of HK$3,100,000,000
as part of the consideration to acquire Talent Central
Limited. The convertible notes were denominated in Hong
Kong Dollars, unsecured, transferrable and interest-free.

R_ZE—FF+_A+8  KAFET
7K 4 %83,100,000,000% JT 2 7] # f% =2
B EAWYEETalent Central LimitedZ
MBAORE - TRBREBEABILEE @ &
?fﬁﬁﬂ AEZELEE TREREEET

The holders of the convertible notes can convert the HEBAEFN - AJRRGHEERER
convertible notes, in whole or in part, into ordinary shares —E—RHE+-_A+BH (E8HBAD (8

of the Company at a conversion price of HK$0.33 per
share, at any time after the expiry of the put option to and
including 10 December 2015 (the “Maturity Date”). The
Company has option to redeem the outstanding principal
amount of the convertible notes at any time after the third
anniversary from the date of the issue of the convertible
notes at 100% of the face amount thereof.

HARMEEBERDTE 2016F Fif
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

At the date of completion of the Acquisition, the fair value
of the aforesaid convertible notes was HK$2,574,228,000
which included the equity component of fair value
HK$602,879,000. The fair value of the liability component
was HK$1,971,349,000.

The embedded derivatives relating to the Company’s
redemption option which are not closely related to the
host contract shall be separately measured and included
together with the liabilities component as a financial
liability. The effective interest rate of the host contract is
determined to be 6.42% The residual amount is assigned
as the equity component for the conversion option and
was included in the convertible notes equity reserve.

On 20 October 2015, the Company entered into a deed
of amendment with Talent Trend for the extension of both
the conversion period and the maturity date of the total
convertible notes held by Talent Trend with the principal
amount of HK$1,929.85 million by a period of one year,
such that the maturity date will become 10 December
2016 (“Extended Maturity Date”). Apart from the extension
of the maturity date and the conversion period, all terms
of the convertible notes held by Talent Trend remain
unchanged from the original terms.

On 4 November 2015, a transfer of convertible notes
in the principal amount of HK$210 million from another
one holder to Talent Trend took place (the “Transfer”).
Following the completion of the Transfer, the Company
entered into a supplemental deed of amendment with
Talent Trend for the addition of such convertible notes with
the principal amount of HK$210 million to the Extended
Maturity Date.

31.
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31.

R

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

Immediate after the completion of the Transfer, on 4
November 2015, convertible notes in principal amount
of approximately HK$170,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB141,549,000) was converted by the holder of
convertible notes into 515,151,515 ordinary shares at a
conversion price of HK$0.33 per conversion share.

On 4 December 2015, all conditions precedent to
the deed of amendment (as supplemented by the
supplemental deed of amendment) have been satisfied.
As a result, the extension contemplated therein became
effective on 4 December 2015.

The extension of maturity date is considered not to be a
substantial modification of terms of the convertible notes
as the discounted present value of the cash flows of the
liability and conversion option derivative components
of the convertible notes with Extended Maturity Date
is less than 10% different from the discounted present
value of the cash flows of the liability and conversion
option derivative components of the outstanding
convertible notes prior to the Extension Maturity Date.
As such, the amount of the future cash flow of the
extended convertible notes as at 10 December 2015 is
discounted by the original effective interest rate amount
to approximately HK$2,010,782,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,674,256,000). The difference between the carrying
amount of extended convertible notes and the amount of
discounted future cash flow of the extended convertible
notes of approximately HK$129,068,000 (equivalent to
RMB103,844,000) has been recognised in other net
income (see note 7).

EEEBRAT 2016FF#HK
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The decrease in fair value of the derivative component
before the Extended Maturity Date of approximately
HK$23,415,000 (equivalent to RMB18,839,000) and the
increase in fair value of the derivative component after the
Extended Maturity Date of approximately HK$19,765,000
(equivalent to RMB15,902,000) have been recognised in
the profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2015.

On 8 December 2015, convertible notes in principal
amount of approximately HK$21,420,000 (equivalent
to RMB17,835,000) was converted by the holder of
convertible notes into 64,909,090 ordinary shares at a
conversion price of HK$0.33 per conversion share.

On 11 January 2016, the Company entered into the
Second Supplemental Deed of Amendment allowing a
holder to convert the convertible notes into conversion
shares, resulting in it holding 30% or more in the issued
share capital of the Company. Talent Trend has agreed to,
within five Business Days subsequent to the satisfaction
of: (a) obtaining approval from the Stock Exchange; (b)
obtaining the Whitewash Waiver from the Executive and
(c) obtaining Independent Shareholders’ approval at the
Special General Meeting, issue the Conversion Notice to
the Company for the conversion of, and to convert, the
convertible notes in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$2,139,850,000 in accordance with the terms of the
convertible notes.

On 3 June 2016, all the outstanding convertible notes,
which were held by Talent Trend, in the principal amount
of HK$2,139,850,000 (equivalent to RMB1,843,766,000)
were converted by the holder of convertible notes into
6,484,393,939 ordinary shares at a conversion price of
HK$0.33 per conversion share.
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31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued) 31. A RKREE ®)

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT

Liability component BEH - 1,680,243
Derivative component PTET RS - (16,457)
- 1,663,786
Liability component =Rt
At beginning of the year REF 1,680,243 1,740,704
Exchange realignment ME W F8 R 130,196 86,915
Effect on extension of convertible notes HA IR EIRE A s e - (103,844)
Conversion during the year F AR (1,856,344) (168,482)
Imputed finance cost HERER AR 45,905 114,950
At end of the year RER - 1,680,243
Derivative component TTETAESS
At beginning of the year REA) (16,457) (18,762)
Exchange realignment bE W AR (1,034) (830)
Conversion during the year F AR 12,578 198
Fair value change NEEEZSY 4,913 2,937
At end of the year RER = (16,457)
Carrying amount ERHEE - 1,663,786

At 31 December 2016, no convertible notes
(2015: convertible notes with principal amounts
HK$2,139,850,000) remained outstanding.

RZE—RF+-_A=+—H8 ' 1TE
—E—hF  KN&%AE2,139,850,000
BILH A R ) AR RIEIRTT
fif o
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32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. ®&
2016 2015
—E-RE —ET-RHF
Number Number
of shares HK$°000 of shares  HK$'000
KGEE FET RirEH FET
Authorised: JETE
Ordinary shares of FRAEEO0.0048 T
HK$0.004 each ZEBK
At 1 January and at R—A—Ak
31 December +=ZA=+—H 125,000,000,000 500,000 125,000,000,000 500,000
2016 2015
“B-RE “E-1f
Equivalent Equivalent
Number to Number fo
of shares HK$000  RMB’000 of shares  HK$'000  RMB'000
REZE TET ARETR RiEE TAET ARETT
Issued and fully paid: BETRER:
Ordinary shares of BRAEBE0.004ETT
HK$0.004 each LBk
At 1 January Wm—A—H 3,808,742,615 15,235 14,384  3,228,682,010 12,915 12,452
Convertible notes exercised EOETRREE  6,484,393,939 25,938 23,244 580,060,605 2,320 1,932
At 31 December MTZA=+—H  10,293,136,554 4,173 37,628  3,808,742,615 15,235 14,384
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33.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

therein during the year are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

U]

(i)

(iii)

Share premium and capital redemption
reserve

The application of share premium account is
governed by Section 40 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents
the surplus arising from the Group’s capital
reorganisation in respect of its capital reduction,
share subdivision and share consolidation in 2003.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), contributed surplus is available for
distribution to shareholders. However, a company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus; if:

— the company is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due; or

— the realisable value of the company’s assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of
its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium accounts.

Capital reserve

Reserve are transferred from retained earnings for
compensation if loss and any accident incurred
in the future. The capital reserve arose due to the
acquisition of PRC subsidiaries in previous year
and re-organisation of Hong Kong subsidiaries in
previous years.
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33. f@fE @)

33. RESERVES (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Currency translation reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2.5.

Convertible notes reserve

On 10 December 2010, the Company issued
five years zero-coupon Hong Kong Dollar
convertible notes, due on 10 December 2015 for
a principal amount of HK$3,100,000,000 which
was part of the consideration for the acquisition
of Talent Central Limited. The convertible notes
are convertible, at the option of noteholders into
ordinary shares of HK$0.004 each of the Company
at an initial conversion price of HK$0.33 per share,
at any time after the expiry of the Put Option up to
and including 10 December 2015.

On 4 December 2015, the Company entered
into a deed of amendment with Talent Trend, to
extend the maturity date of the convertible notes.
The extension is for a period of one year and the
conversion period will accordingly be extended
from 10 December 2015 to 10 December 2016 for
a principal amount of HK$2,139,850,000. Apart
from the extension of the maturity date and the
conversion period, all terms of the convertible
notes remain unchanged from the original terms.

The convertible notes contain two components,
liability and equity element. The liability component
is carried as a long term liability on the amortised
cost basis until extinguished on conversion or
redemption. The equity element is presented in
equity as “Convertible notes reserve”.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
securities held at the end of each reporting period
and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2.13(ii).

(iv)

(v)

(vi)
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34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34. BEXRAEE

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT

Capital commitments (contracted BEARAEE (BETH
but not provided for): BREME)
Capital injection into subsidiaries M B RREE 33,270 8,342
Capital injection into an associate m—HEEATEE 26,249 26,249
Construction costs of properties under BEPMERKEME
development and investment properties P 383,217 226,000
442,736 260,591
Capital commitments (authorised BAEE (BRE
but not contracted for): BRETH) -
Construction costs of properties BERPYIERENAK
under development 91,931 169,613
534,667 430,204
35. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 35. REHEHRIE
As Lessee EREBEA
As at 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease RZFE-—RF+ZA=1+—H  &x&H
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in BRETAHESCEHEER T MIEFIE
respect of land and building are payable by the Group as Nz BEREEERIBATENAT
follows:
2016 2015
ZE-XRE —Z—hfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFT
Within one year —FR 3,427 216
In the second to fifth years E_EERF - 135

3,427 351
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e R AR M R
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OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 35. REMHEERE )
(continued)
As Lessee (continued) EARFEBA (8)
The Group leases a number of properties under operating AREBRESLHERRETYYE -2
leases. The leases run for an initial period of one year EHAOEELHEME AR —EEHaE
to two years (2015: one to two years), with an option —E—FE: —FEEWE) AEET
to renew the lease and renegotiated the terms at the EREEAEE TR ESREARG EE
expiry date as mutually agreed between the Group TR EEGIEE - ERAY A SR
and respective landlords. None of the leases include a4
contingent rental.
As Lessor EAEAA
At 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease R-ZE—XNE+-_A=+—8 &=EH
receivable under non-cancellable operating leases in BIERT RS LS T REFE
respect of land and building are receivable by the Group Uy B SREEHEAENT
as follows:
2016 2015
ZE-RE —ZT-I¥F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFT
Within one year —F R 872 1,571
In the second to fifth years FE_EERF 840 3,647
Later than five years AFi% 945 1,155
2,657 6,373
BANKING FACILITIES 36. RITRE

As at 31 December 2016, the banking facilities
including bank loans are secured by the Group’s
investment properties with the approximate value of
RMB688,000,000. The total banking facilities amounted to
RMB184,500,000 of which RMB184,500,000 were utilised
at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2015, the banking facilities including
bank loans are secured by the Group’s investment
properties and properties under development and
completed properties held for sale with the approximate
value of RMB923,700,000 and RMB623,000,000
respectively. The total banking facilities amounted to
RMB399,500,000 of which RMB399,500,000 were utilised
at the end of the reporting period.

R-E—RF+_A=+—8 " 78
RERITREHAERLEME (DA
K #688,000,0007T) {E#E # o $R1T Rt
& 458 5 AR #184,500,0007T © R R
HHREBHAE R ARKE184,500,000
5T o

R-ZE—RF+-_A=+—8  R17E
RERITRERLEBREMERER
FPYERBELREZERIYE (AR
2 A4 A R #923,700,0007T & A K #&
623,000,0007T) {EHE # - RITHL & &
%8 & A R #399,500,0007T © W ¥R & HA
KEEBAE+ ARE399,500,0007T °
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36.

37.

BANKING FACILITIES (continued)

There
which

are no banking facilities granted to subsidiaries
are secured by the corporate guarantee of the

Company as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

BITEE (©

A=
B BMERTHBAFZETRED

—AFR-E-EF+=A=T

AR AT 2 AT ERIFER -
MR AR

2016 2015
—B-X"E —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFIT
Guarantee in respect of mortgage facilities REBETDMEBEMNERZ
for certain purchasers of the Group’s RIERMEER (Kita@)
property units (note (a)) 240,680 56,570

Notes:

(a)

The Group has in cooperation with certain financial
institutions arranged mortgage loan facility for its
purchasers of property and provided guarantees to
secure obligations of such purchasers for repayments.
As at 31 December 2016, the outstanding guarantees
amounted to RMB240,680,000 (2015: RMB56,570,000).
Such guarantees will be discharged upon the earlier of (i)
issuance of the real estate ownership certificate which will
generally be available within one year after the purchasers
take possession of the relevant property; and (ii) the
satisfaction of relevant mortgage loan by purchasers.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in
mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is
responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage principals
together with any accrued interest and penalty owed by
the defaulted purchasers to the banks, and the Group
is entitled to take over the legal title and possession of
the related properties. The Group’s guarantee starts from
the dates the mortgagees grant the mortgage loans.
The directors consider that the likelihood of default in
payments by purchasers is minimal and therefore the
financial guarantees measured at fair value are immaterial.
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. EBEALTRE

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed BRZEVERREMTIBEEZRS
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had NI - NEE B EEH A THETT
the following significant transactions with related parties: HERRS :
(a) Compensation of key management (a) FEEBAEHE:
personnel:
The directors are of the opinion that the key BEERE NABZHITRIEHR
management personnel were the executive and TEEFAETEEEAE  KE2
non-executive director of the Company, details of NGB ERHIEEI1.1 o
whose emoluments are set out in note 11.1.
(b) Balance with related party: (b) EEEEBEAL &R :
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—1F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT
Balances due from/(to) FEWL (FEfS) BB AT
a related party i
— included in prepayment, — ETATENFIAE - ke Rk
deposits and other receivables o fE W IE
Associate: B NT
Guangzhou Xintian Properties BENMFREHEEE
Development Limited (note (b)&(f)) BRRAT (Kim) % (0) 53,700 53,700
— included in accruals and — FTAERERK
other payables HAth fE T 5RI8
Associate: il /N
Guangzhou Xintian Properties BN TR B M EE R
Development Limited (note (c)) BRAR (Kitc) (272,628) (225,287)
Related company: BEEAT
Tianlun Holdings Limited Company K@ERER AT
(note (d)) (Me(a)) (133) -
Executive Directors: WITESE
Mr. Zhang Gao Bin (note (e)) REBILE (Hitle) (27,105) -
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 38. BEEEA TR F (&)
(c) Transaction with related party: (c) EERABEALZRE:

2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT

Interest income on loan to LTHEBALERZ
a related party FBUA
Associate: & AT
Guangzhou Xintian Properties BEINFT Rt E B R
Development Limited (note (a)&(b)) BRAT (K@) Rb) 5,040 6,180
Interest paid on current account to B RERT T EH A A
a related company ZHE
Associate: /N
Guangzhou Xintian Properties BN R E B R
Development Limited (note(c)) BRAR (KHitc) (2,440) (2,806)
Management fee income from RERREEATZ
a related party EEBRA
Associate: B NT
Guangzhou Xintian Properties BN R B B B R
Development Limited (note (g)) BRRAT] (K@) 1,430 923

Management fee paid to a related party BTYBBALT 2 EFERSE

Related company: BEEAT :
Guangzhou Tianlun Property Management  EM X EEE

Limited Company (note (h)) BRAT] (KiEm) 3,775 -
Rental payment paid BTHEBMALZHESTH

to a related party

Related company: BEAT
Tianlun Holdings Limited Company Ki@iERBR AR
(note (h)) (et n)) 1,065 -
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (&% %

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

Transaction with related party: (continued)

Notes:

(@)

Balances due from an associate are unsecured,
charged at 5% per annum. The amount has been
fully repaid as at 31 December 2015.

Balances due from an associate are unsecured,
interest free and repayable in the year ended 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

Balances due to an associate are unsecured,
interest free and no repayment terms in the year
ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December
2015 except for the approximate amount of
RMB60,000,000 (2015: RMB60,000,000) was
charged at 4% per annum and repayable on
demand.

Balances due to a related company are unsecured,
interest free and repayment on demand.

Balance due to a director are unsecured, interest
free and repayment on demand.

No provision for impairment have been made in
respect of this balance.

Management fee income from an associate was
charged at a negotiated value.

Management fee and rental payment paid to
related companies were charged at a negotiated
value.

BTSRRI

—NFFZA=1—HILFE)

n‘/—.ﬁ

38. BBEALRE (B

(c)

HEBMALTZRS

- (%)

Hiat -

(@)

JE Ui Bt ) ] A R A AR AR
T*iﬁS%aJr 8 ZREDR
£¢+ A=+—8%

o 4
il

%ﬂ

T

JEUCHE & N A A B A AR AR
%%\&m Eki_y RET
—A EJF*HJJ:ifEE‘% o

éti_7 NE+ZA=+—
Bk-_Z—AF+=-A=+—
ElJLEBZ R EE R R &
BRAEEKE. 2EREEN
B mmAE%mmmwo
T(ZZE—HHF: AR
60 000,0007T) & & F4%5t
RBRESKEFEERID o

FEAS BREE R Rl AR A R
B MEERE -
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of

39.

MEEREER A FEFE

AEBARERBERHERKRE ST

financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations FRZEE T EASTHBERR o BF1EE
and in its investment activities. The financial risks include BefEmsRk (BEEERR - FX
market risk (including currency risk, interest risk and other Bk EEABRRR) EERE MR

price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group does not have written risk management
policies and guidelines. Generally, the Group employs
a conservative strategy regarding its risk management.
Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarters, in close co-operation with the board of
directors periodically. The overall objectives in managing
financial risks focus on securing the Group’s short to
medium term cash flows by minimising its exposure to

financial markets. Long term financial investments are

BETRR -

AEEWEEENRREEBRERKLE
5l —fRME - AEERERREER
RRTRE - BERREEEIBELRE

BadtnR TEHREESEERS
- BRFHEREE B ZETR R
R 2 BTSRRI ERIE - MR
EAEERHREFRAZRASRE - £7
BERBKFEA - BERHPHRE A
EERFAER - ARAEBAAR 2T

managed to generate lasting returns with acceptable risk SRk (BIEEERR  FXREREE
levels. As the Group’s exposure to market risk (including HEKRR)  EERREREE SR
currency risk, interest risk and other price risk), credit 9 e 1 N B AR K S+ U SR B A A
risk and liquidity risk are kept at a minimum level, the FETETIASHEMTEELHAE -

Group has not used any derivative or other instruments
for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold or issue
derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
The most significant financial risks to which the Group is
exposed are discussed below.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 30. BiEKBREERAFETE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (&)

RRERE AEEZSRIATER
EAHEESRMEENATET AR
HNSREE BORBLSEY - E
WEER - e RE MR EIE - e
2 ERTBRER - FEEHE R R H A RE T 2K
TH R G EK o

As at the reporting date, the Group’s financial instruments
mainly consisted of available-for-sale financial assets,
financial asset at fair value through profit and loss, cash
and cash equivalents, trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables, loan receivables, trade payables,
accruals and other payables and borrowings.

(a) Categories of financial assets and (a) =WMEEREEZER
liabilities

REBZEMBMARRABRET 2
FHEENTRHEERERE

The carrying amounts presented in the Group’s
statements of consolidated financial position relate

to the following categories of financial assets and EHERIEA :
financial liabilities:
2016 2015
—E-XNE —T—HEF
Financial assets RMB’000 RMB’000
SRMEE ANRETT AREFIT
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESRERE 1,000 1,000
Financial asset at fair value through AR FEFTABZERN
profit and loss TREE 140,000 -
Early redemption option embedded REE DR R BT
in convertible notes HRA R B AR A = 16,457
Loans and receivables B G IE
— Trade receivables — FEUER R 13,077 36,401
— Deposits and other receivables — trd R HE M WK
(note 22) (Bat22) 90,986 123,489
— Cash and cash equivalents —HeRBEEEY 241,239 127,430
485,302 303,777
486,302 304,777
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 39. KEAKBEERAFETE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (&)
(a) Categories of financial assets and (a) =RMEERAEBZER (&)
liabilities (continued)
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZE—RF
Financial liabilities RMB’000 RMB’000
tRMEE ARETFT AREFIT
Financial liabilities measured REHEAAFTEZ
at amortised cost eHMaE
— Trade payables — ERERR (98,431) (83,509)
— Accruals and other payables — Rt ERANREM
FES FhE (1,015,978) (534,224)
— Borrowings — &% (245,048) (489,354)
— Convertible notes — AR - (1,680,243
(1,359,457) (2,787,330)
(b) Foreign currency risk (b) HSNEREEK
Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value EBEAKESRTAE Y AFER
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will KRB R EOME XS K
fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency. AR o
The functional currency of the Company and its AAFREREEHNIEHRBL

major subsidiaries in Hong Kong is HK$ in which
most of the transactions are denominated. The
functional currency of those subsidiaries operating
in PRC is RMB in which most of its transactions are
denominated. Certain bank balances of the Group
are denominated in HK$ and RMB respectively.
As at the reporting date, foreign currencies were
translated into RMB at the closing rate.

The management considers future commercial
transactions, monetary assets and liabilities are
denominated in the functional currency of each
entity of the Group. Therefore, the foreign currency
risk is immaterial.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

The policies to manage foreign currency risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years and
are considered to be effective.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises
from granting credit to customers in the ordinary
course of its operations.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables and cash and cash
equivalent included in the face of the consolidated
statement of financial position represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to its financial assets.

For the sale of and rents receivables from
properties, the Group has policies in place
to ensure that sales and leases are made to
customers with an appropriate financial strength
and appropriate percentage of down payments
and rental deposits. It also has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount
of each individual trade and other receivables
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group has
no significant concentrations of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a large number of counter
parties and customers.

39.

(b)

(c)

MBERBREERAFEFE

(#&)

SMNERER (8)

AEE B A EINE SR ER
A - EIEEEEIMNERR - I
R BRFE BHEARIMNE R o

A E 3B A B AR — B
EENERB 2K - L RAR
SHFEBA -

FERR

EERRESRTAZZZHTF
RERBERMT A GREITH
BEEMSARBERZMBRRZ
Bk AEBEAZZEERBRE
EXERAEEBBETRAER
BTEE-

AR A M B R 2 AR
Ao Be REAMRUGRIRIA KR
MR EEEYERESANEE
HREMBEEAZZ&EKRNEER

G o
A

REHEREEEEME - &
SEEEMBERBEROABESE
BAFBRREZMEE B DL
EHRENEERS ZEPETT
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EL 1R A2 Fr DA AR SR BV HE B UR
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group maintains its cash and cash equivalents
with reputable banks in Hong Kong and the PRC,
therefore the directors consider that the credit risk
for such is minimal.

The credit and investment policies to manage credit
risk have been followed by the Group since prior
years and are considered to have been effective
in limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a
desirable level.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from interest
bearing bank deposits, bank borrowings and
unsecured loan. Bank borrowings at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. In
addition, unsecured loan at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk.

The Group has interest-bearing assets and liabilities
in relation to cash at bank and borrowings. Details
of which are disclosed in note 28. The Group
currently does not have any interest rate hedging
policy and will consider enter into interest rate
hedging should the need arise. The Group ensures
that it borrows at competitive interest rates under
favourable terms and conditions.

As 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the
Group’s interest-bearing borrowings bore interest at
fixed rate. Management considers the exposure to
the changes in market interest rate should not be
materially enough to cause adverse financial effect
on the Group’s position.

The policies to manage interest rate risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to be effective.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#Z2 =-F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(e)

(f)

Other price risk

All of the Group’s unlisted equity classified as
available-for-sale financial assets are recognised
at cost, the management consider that the effect
to the change in fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets on the change in market prices is
minimal.

The policies to manage other price risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
consider to be effective.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial assets. The Group is
exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement
of trade payables, accruals and other payables,
borrowings and convertible notes, and also in
respect of its cash flow management. The Group’s
objective is to maintain an appropriate level of liquid
assets and committed lines of funding to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The Group manages its liquidity needs on a
consolidated basis by carefully monitoring the cash
inflows and outflows due in day to day business.
Liquidity needs are monitored in various time
bands, on a day to day and week to week basis, as
well as on the basis of a rolling 30 day projection.
Long term liquidity needs for a 180-day and 365-
day lookout period are identified monthly.

The Group’s liquidity is mainly dependent upon
the cash received from its tenants of investment
properties and customers of trading goods and
property held for sale, and funds financing for
property under construction. The directors of the
Company are satisfied that the Group will be able
to meet in full its financial obligations as and when
they fall due in the foreseeable future.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the
Group since prior years and are considered to be
effective in managing liquidity risks.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#Z2 =—F—NF+=-A=+—HI FE)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 3. BEEREERAFETFE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (&)

()  Liquidity risk (continued) (H REBEELER (H)
The following tables detail the remaining contractual TRFANAEERARRRFEITE
maturities at the reporting date of the Group’s and ERBERNRSAHRZRBRED
the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities, HARR - L5 ER A 4 RBIIRIRS
which are based on contractual undiscounted mEMAREEEARRDF A REEE
cash flows and the earliest date the Group and the KEMFIBEz &FBHAMED :

Company can be required to pay:

As at 31 December 2016
R=2-R"E+ZA=1-H
Total Within Between Between
contractual one year oneyear  two years
Carrying  undiscounted or on and two and five ~ More than
amount cash flow demand years years five years
ANRER —£h -z MEE

REE ASREAE  ABEX RER IfH  BBIF
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ABETE  AEBTL AEBRTL ARRTL ARRTL ARETR

Trade payables ERER 98,431 98,431 (98,431) = = -
Accruals and other payables st B R E BB

(principal amount plus interest) (K& EMFIE) 1,015,978 1,018,378  (1,018,378) - - -
Borrowings (orincipal amount &3¢

plus interest) (REEMAE) 245,048 275,211 (143,931) (131,280) - -
Financial guarantees BERER 240,680 240,680 (240,680) - - -

1,600,137 1,632,700  (1,501,420)  (131,280) - -

As at 31 December 2015
RZE-RF+-A=+-H

Total Within Between Between

contractual one year oneyear  two years
Carrying  undiscounted oron and two andfive  More than
amount cash flow demand years years five years

AOKER —FR —FE MFE
BEE AEREEE  AREX A BFR  BERF
RMB'000 RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ABRTL  AREFL  AREFT  ARRTT  ARRTT  ARETR

Trade payables LT 83,509 83,509 (83,509) - - -
Accruals and other payables  JE:f B R EMERTUE

(orincipal amount plus interest)  (R&EMFIS) 534,204 536,624 (536,624) - - -
Borrowings (orincipal amount 3%

plus interes) (K2EMF|S) 489,354 555721 (355,382 (68,492  (131,847) -
Convertible notes BElies 1,663,786 1781724 (1,781,724) - - -
Financial guarantees BRER 56,570 56,570 (56,570) - - -

‘ 2,827,443 3014148 (2813809 (68492  (131,847) -

188 FREEERRAR 2016 F F#H




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#tZ2 =F—NF+=-F=1+—HILFZ)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(9)

Fair value measurement recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial
position

The hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities
into three levels based on the relative reliability of
significant inputs used in measuring the fair value
of these financial assets and liabilities. The fair
value hierarchy has the following levels:

— Level 1:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets and liabilities;

- Level 2;  inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for

which market data are not available; and

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the financial asset or liability is categorised in its
entirety is based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement.

39.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#Z2 =—F—NF+=-A=+—HI FE)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 3. BEEREERAFETFE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (&)
(g) Fair value measurement recognised in (9) REEHMBMRRRERZZAT
the consolidated statement of financial BEsTE (&)
position (continued)
The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair PRI B RIZAFETE
value in the consolidated statement of financial JEMEBEENBERBAUTA
position are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as FERR
follows:
2016
—E-RF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& E& E=H wst

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
AREBTT AREFTT ARETRT ARETR

Assets BE

Financial assets at AR BT AIBEE
fair value through SEEE

profit or loss - 140,000 - 140,000
2015
—E—RF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EF—H E-M E=H #agt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETIT AKREFT ARETT ARETT

Assets BE

Derivative financial  RJ AR ZE4E 7 T4
instruments under &R T EZHD

convertible notes - - 16,457 16,457
During the year ended 31 December 2016, there HE-_T-—R"F+=-HA=+—8H
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, EFE  F—REE-_F2HEL
or transfers into or out of Level 3 (2015: nil). The | TEERSNENE S
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between HZ(ZE—RHF &)  BELASE
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the BIBR - BB LRSS RE
reporting period in which they occur. RAFESHEHR 2 EHEEE o
The fair value of the financial assets through REREEBREURFEFAER
profit or loss at the end of the reporting period HNeREENAFTELRERF
was determined based on the purchase cost of HiFEemgEEaRERR
wealth management products issued by financial BEEMERZKAERE -

institutions in PRC which closed to the end of
reporting period.

HAMESEEER QT 2016 F Fi




39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e EHRRME
(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#Z2 =-F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

MBERBREERAFEFE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (#8)
(g) Fair value measurement recognised in (9) REEHBMRRERZZQF
the consolidated statement of financial BEF 2 (&)
position (continued)
The movement during the period in the balance of HRNE=ZRATEFEEHR &
Level 3 fair value measurements is as follows: BT
Derivative
financial
instruments
under
convertible
notes
AREEEZ
FTESMIAR S
RMB’000
ABREFIT
At 1 January 2015 RZE—RF—HA—H 18,762
Exchange realignment b 5, S8 B 830
Cancellation of convertible note I RR R (198)
Fair value change N EZSH (2,937)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE-—RF+-A=1+—H 16,457
Exchange realignment ME 5, e 28 1,034
Conversion of convertible notes H R Eig (12,578)
Fair value change NEEES (4,913)

At 31 December 2016 RZF—A"F+ZA=+—H -

Fair value changes on derivative financial
instruments under convertible notes are included in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

ABRRERZ2TESBRTARD
MR FEZEStAGERR LA
fib 2 ER AR K o

The methods and valuation techniques used for
the purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged
compared to the previous reporting periods.

SFERFERAITAERMEERD
B A E R BRI AR A o

The available-for-sale financial assets at fair value

BRAFEIENAIHEESHE

are denominated in RMB. Fair values have been
determined by reference to their quoted bid prices
at the reporting date and have been translated
using the spot foreign currency rates at the end of
the reporting period where appropriate.

EUARKHE  AFELEY
LHEARESET  LERE
FA 185350 T 8 PR R 2 9 o B B0 B o
1 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

7 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#Z2 =—F—NF+=-A=+—HI FE)

39.

40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(g) Fair value measurement recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial
position (continued)

The derivative financial instruments under
convertible notes are denominated in HK$. Fair
values have been determined by reference to
the valuation made by an independent qualified
valuer by using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing
Model that includes some assumption that are not
supportable by observable market prices or rates.
As at 31 December 2016, no derivative financial
instrument under convertible notes, since all the
outstanding convertible notes were converted into
ordinary shares. As at 31 December 2015, the
significant unobservable input used in the fair value
measurement is the expected volatility at 2.23%.
The fair value measurement is positively correlated
to the expected volatility. As at 31 December 2015,
it is estimated that with all other variables held
constant, an increase/decrease in the expected
volatility by 1% would have decreased/increased
the Group’s loss by RMB6,666,000.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objectives are to ensure
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing
goods and services commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure
and shareholder returns, taking into consideration the
future capital requirements of the Group, prevailing and
projected capital expenditures and projected strategic
investment opportunities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

HARMEEBERDTE 2016F Fif
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#tZ2 =F—NF+=-F=1+—HILFZ)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group regards total equity attributable to the
owners of the Company presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of financial position as
capital, for capital management purpose. The amount
of capital as at 31 December 2016 amounted to
approximately RMB1,809,395,000 (2015: approximately
RMB164,472,000), which the management considers
as optimal having considered the projected capital
expenditures and the forecast strategic investment
opportunities.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The directors consider Talent Trend Holdings Limited,
which is incorporated in the BVI, to be the ultimate
holding company.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On 4 January 2017, Guangzhou Fanzhan Trading Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary established in the PRC of
the Company formed a subsidiary, Guangdong Guoyou
Logistics Co., Ltd. (“Guangdong Guoyou”) established
in the PRC, with an independent third party for 51%
shareholding. The registered capital of Guangdong
Guoyou is RMB48.88 million and the scope of business
of Guangdong Guoyou is investment, operation,
development and management of logistics informatization.

40.

41.

42,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#Z2 =—F—NF+=-A=+—HI FE)

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 43. ZATMNBBRIREEE S
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE r
COMPANY
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFTT ARBFor
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Plant and equipment [ K 5tk 30 38
Interests in subsidiaries N GIENGIPE T - -
30 38
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries AR EENGIE S 1,912,664 2,006,447
Prepayments, deposits and TERTRIR - e REM 861 492
other receivables JE W IE
Tax recoverable AJ U Bl 718 12 12
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEFEY 242 1,198
1,913,779 2,008,149
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables FEzt BB R EMENRIE (1,363) (5,021)
Amounts due to a director R —RESFHIR (9,857) -
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETHT B A B 1B (82,717) (82,042)
Convertible notes Al IARE =R - (1,663,786)
(93,937) (1,750,849)
Net current assets REEEFRE 1,819,842 257,300
Total assets less current liabilities #REERRBERE 1,819,872 257,338
EQUITY =
Share capital iz 37,628 14,384
Reserves (Note (a)) 8 (Mit(a) 1,782,244 242,954
Total equity BB 1,819,872 257,338

Zhang Gao Bin

Luo Zhangguan

REE EEE
Director Director
BF EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#tZ2 =F—NF+=-F=1+—HILFZ)

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 43. XAGWNHER IR EIESET

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE =)
COMPANY (continued)
Note: B -
(a) Reserve movement of the Company (a) RN TG EE)
Currency Capital  Convertible
Share  translation  Contributed  redemption notes  Accumulated
premium reserve surplus reserve reserve loss Total
Ll s o] By
Rit&fE HaRE #ABH ff ZERE ZithR ol

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABBTR  ARETR  AREFT  ARETL ARETR AREFT ARETA

At 1 January 2016 KRB E-F-H 798,198 (212,421) 398,107 82 364,185 (1,100,197) 242,954
Loss for the year FEER - - - - = (283,150) (283,150)

Other comprehensive income EEEMREMA -

for the year:
Bxchange gain on translation ~ BEAAF 2 BEHR - 1,018 - - = = 1,918
of the Company’s ERNE

financial statement

Total comprehensive loss FELEERLE - 1,918 - - - (3150 (281.29)
for the year
Conversion of convertiole notes B ATHRES 2,184,707 - - - (364,185) - 1,820,522
As at 31 December 2016 RZE-RE 2,982,905 (210,503) 393,107 82 - (1,388,347) 1,782,244
tZR=t-H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#ZE_-F—NF+-A=1+—HILFEZ)

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 43. AXAGHNHEIR AR EEET

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE = ®
COMPANY (continued)
Note: (continued) W (#&)
(a) (continued) (a) (#)
Currency Capital Convertible
Share translation ~ Contributed redemption notes  Accumulated
premium reserve surplus reserve reserve loss Total
g% e Bty
Hi&E REGE gARE 1 ERE ZitFR ait

RUB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NERTL  ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR

At 1 January 2015 RZE-1§-F-A 610,850 (216,584) 393,107 82 395,182 (1,086,185) 96,452
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - - (14012) (14,012)
Other comprehensive income EEEM2ENA : - 4,163 - - - - 4163
for the year:
Exchange gain on translation WERRR 2 BEER - - - - - (14,012) (14012)
of the Company's ZER s

financil statement

Total comprehensive loss EELABRAS - 4,163 - - - (14,012) (9,849)
for the year
Conversion of convertible notes EhBRRZE 187,348 - - - (30,997) - 156,351
As at 31 December 2015 W-8-1F 798,198 (212,421) 393,107 82 364,185 (1,100,197) 242,954
tzA=t-8

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Company R-E-RNEN_ZE—FREFE+=
had no balance of distribution reserves available for A=+—8B KRRV EDIKEH
distribution to the owners. BEBRAEYIRTHEA A -

HARMEEEERAT 2016F FiF
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